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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERWE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited (the “Company”
and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to
present to the shareholders of the Company the annual report
and audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Reporting Period”).

Business Review

The Group is an electronic manufacturing services (the “EMS”)
provider offering comprehensive assembling and production
services of printed circuit board assembly (the “PCBASs”) in
the PRC that integrate research and design, selection and
procurement of raw materials, assembling of PCBAs, quality
control, testing, logistics and aftersales services.

The Group tapped into the financial technology business with the
cooperation of a third-party business partner (the “Regan Group”)
since the second half year of 2022 by acquisition of the 60%
registered capital of Shanghai Regan Financial Information
Service Co., Ltd.” (the “Regan Financial Information”) (the
“Acquisition”), which is principally engaged in provision of the
financial-related application platform (the “Financial Application
Platform”) and related maintenance services (the “Platform
Maintenance Services”). However, being a new entrant to the
fintech and insurance related market, the Group is facing keen
competition from large insurance groups with their own online
platforms in the PRC and find it difficult to expand the customer
scale, and the development of the financial technology business
was slower than expected. Regan Financial Information provided
an impairment loss on its intangible assets of approximately
RMB14.7 million for the Reporting Period.

Moreover, it has come to the Company’s attention that there are
certain negative news and legal proceedings targeting the Regan
Group in the market and Regan Group has been experiencing
difficulty in running its business operation.

*  For identification purpose only
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)
FEHRE @)

Taking into account the performance of the Financial Application
Platform and Platform Maintenance Services business since its
commencement of operations and the recent negative news
targeting Regan Group, the Board has made a reassessment
of the development potential of Regan Financial Information
and decided that the Group should cut its losses by disposing
of the business of Financial Application Platform and Platform
Maintenance Services at a consideration of RMB1.0.

2023 was a tough year for the EMS industry. Economic recovery
was slower than anticipated. Downturn macroeconomic
environment impacted the demand for smartphones and other
consumer electronic devices. The Group is facing a more intense
competitive environment.

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a net loss
of approximately RMB31.5 million for the Reporting Period as
compared with the Group’s loss of approximately RMB7.1 million
for the corresponding period in 2022.

Prospects

The economy environment in China and the world remains
uncertain and challenging. The Group is taking proactive
measures and making active responses in an effort to sustain the
business and actively diversify or expand our customer base and
product base to broaden the sources of revenue and diversify
business risk. In view of the decreasing gross profit margin, the
Group will also take actions to adjust the product mix to improve
the profitability of the Group.

Also, the Group will continue to invest in our development
of in-house capabilities and keep ourselves abreast of the
development of latest technology advancement in our industries
to secure more opportunities in the EMS business.

At the same time, the Group will keep more cautious on its
spending and expansion to reduce finance risk. We will continue
to strive a balance among the interests of shareholders,
employees and customers, and pursue long-term and sustainable
development for the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (Continued)
FERE @)

Gratitude

On behalf of the Company, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to the management team and our staff for
their tenacious efforts and outstanding contributions to the
development of the Group. | would also like to extend my
heartfelt thanks to our shareholders, investors, customers and
business partners for their continuous trust and support to the
Group.

By order of the Board
Li Hao
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong
27 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN WK o

Operating Results

Revenue by Customers’ Geographical Location
The Group’s revenue by customers’ geographical location, which
is determined by the location of customers, is as follows:

RERE
REFHEMES S HKE
AEBBREEILEGE (ENESUEERT)
BSHKEEIT :

Revenue for
the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HL

FEHWE

2023 2022

— '%FE —= ="
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
The PRC EP 265,415 263,177
The United States of America (the “USA”) EFBERE([ER]) 158 71
Total 5t 265,573 263,248

The Group derives its revenue from (i) manufacturing and sales
of PCBAs and (ii) Financial Application Platform and Platform
Maintenance Services. Based on the usage of the electronic
products which incorporated with our PCBAs, our PCBAs can
be broadly applied to electronic end products for three principal
industries, namely, telecommunication devices, loT products,
and automotive related devices. The table below summarises
the amount of revenue generated and as a percentage of total
revenue from each product category for the Reporting Period
and for the year ended 31 December 2022, respectively:

NEBHUWREB (IPCBARIRIE R IHE &
iWEMERFARTAHERE EARER
2 & 7 fIPCBAKI & F & M B I #PCBAR]
BeREBAR-ZAEBITENE FTRIKE R
BEMEE  PHAERLTEMRBERE - T
FEARRERREBEE T -_—_F+ A
T+ BLFESEEREENKEZSER
BRI E DL -

Revenue for % of total revenue for
the year ended 31 December the year ended 31 December
B2+-A=1+-AL B2+-A=1+-AL
FEMKER FEMMAREAA L
2023 2022 Change 2023 2022 Change
—B-=F Z%-Z B8 —T-=F —T-_F 28
RMB’000  RMB'000 %
AE®TR ARETT %
PCBAS for AR DA 2 mm B PCBA
Telecommunication devices ~ EFEE 140,704 131,643 6.9 53.1 50.0 3.1
loT products WEE B 62,489 89,421 (30.1) 235 34.0 (10.5)
Automotive related devices B IEBEE 58,794 31,430 87.1 22.1 12.0 10.1
Others Hit 2,470 8,020 (69.2) 0.9 3.0 2.1
264,457 260,514 15 99.6 99.0 0.6
Financial Application Platform £ BER ¥ A &
and Platform Maintenance £ 4 % ER#%
Services 1,116 2,734 (59.2) 0.4 1.0 (0.6)
Total @it 265,573 263,248 0.9 100.0 100.0 -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ERE MmN DN @)

Qur revenue generated from sales of PCBAs for
telecommunication devices increased by approximately 6.9%
from approximately RMB131.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately RMB140.7 million for the
Reporting Period, primarily due to that the Group successfully
achieved orders from new customers, which were partially offset
against the reduced orders from existing major customers.

Our Group recorded a decrease in revenue derived from sales of
PCBAs for loT products from approximately RMB89.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB62.5
million for the Reporting Period, which was mainly attributable to
the decline market demand for the consumer electronic devices
under the downturn macroeconomic environment.

Our revenue generated from sales of PCBAs for automotive
related devices increased by approximately RMB27.4 million from
approximately RMB31.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 to approximately RMB58.8 million for the Reporting Period,
primarily due to the increased orders from the automotive related
devices customers as a result of the increased demand for
automotive devices.

Other revenue mainly include (i) PCBAs for industrial use devices
and other electronic devices; and (ii) the revenue generated
from the sale of auxiliary and other materials. Other revenue
decreased from approximately RMB8.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 to approximately RMB2.5 million for the
Reporting Period, which was mainly caused by the decreased
orders from the industrial use devices customers due to the
slowing down of the economy.

The revenue derived from Financial Application Platform and
Platform Maintenance Services decreased from approximately
RMB2.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
approximately RMB1.1 million for the Reporting Period. As
mentioned before, the Group is facing keen competition from
large insurance groups with their own online platforms in the
PRC and find it difficult to expand the customer scale, and the
development of the financial technology business was slower
than expected.

B E AR EAEE R PCBAE £ /W A
HE-_ZTZ-_—_F#+-A=1+—HILEENHY
AR®A131.6 B B L N 46.9% & W & 8 [
MHOARE1407BE L TEE2HREMK
NESVEFIE BHrBERBXERFR
FTERALRIER

7S B 5 P W Bk 4 = fm 1O PCBABR 15 M &
HEBEEZE-_T-_—_F+-A=+—HLFEHD
MARBSABETLR I EREHHENLOA
REe2o5BET TESHREREANEE
RBREBET  HEETRENMSHEL TR -

RIS TERERENPCBAE MRS HA
HE-_ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—HLEFEMHNY
AREIABELENHARKE27T48E T
EREPENHDARESBSHEE T TER
AR RERER KB NERREREEEDN
RTEEIE N

HWEZFTER(ARTERGEEREM
BT EAPCBA : & (i) 5 & 5 B 2 H i #7 8
EEMRE HilkashmEBEz—_S_—F+=
A=+—BLEFEMNHARKSOEETRED
EREHENOARE255E T TEHR
KOERG FIXRAREERFNTERD
FTEL »

CRERTAaRTeERBNKEREE
—E-_F+_A=1+—BLEFEMHAR
BoOTEBLRERSTHENNOARKIAE
BT o AR AT - NG B 1 R B E ER R A AR B
SEEEMETANEERS  BUIBERER
FPHE SRBREERERREENTER -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEEF WD @)

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit of the Group for the Reporting Period was
approximately RMB14.2 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RM15.2 million or approximately 51.6% as
compared with approximately RMB29.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022. Overall gross profit margin decreased
from approximately 11.2% for the year ended 31 December
2022 to approximately 5.4% for the Reporting Period.

Gross profit for
the year ended 31 December
BE+=-—A=t+—-8L

ERNEEF R
AEERFEHENENOABARK1427
BT BEE-_T-__F+-A=t—HIt%F
EWHARE204BETRH I HARKE52
BETHA51.6% BEEFNEKHBEE-Z
T oF+ - A=+ HIEFEMNO11.2% D
EREHRMNL5.4% °

Gross profit margin for
the year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—-BL

FEWEF FENERE
2023 2022 Change 2023 2022 Change
—E-=F —T-_-F BE —T-=F —ZT--F )
RMB'000  RMB'000 (%) (%) (%) (%)
AR®TR ARETR (%) (%) (%) (%)
PCBAS for PRI T E m#PCBA
Telecommunication devices ~ EFEE 3,354 17,953 (81.9) 2.4 13.6 (11.2)
loT products M REER 2,958 4,294 (31.1) 4.7 48 (0.1)
Automotive related devices ~ JTEMBRE 10,380 5,444 90.7 17.7 17.3 04
Others Hity 52 434 (88.0) 2.1 5.4 (3.3)
16,744 28,125 (40.5) 6.3 108 4.5)
Financial Application Platform & & FEFEF & &
and Platform Maintenance £ A # &R #%
Services (2,529) 1,258 (300.6) (226.1) 46.0 (272.1)
Total Bt 14,221 29,383 (51.6) 5.4 11.2 (5.8)
PCBAs PCBA

The gross profit for PCBAs for telecommunication devices
decreased by approximately 81.3% to approximately RMB3.4
million for the Reporting Period (2022: approximately RMB18.0
million). The gross profit margin decreased to approximately 2.4%
for the Reporting Period (2022: approximately 13.6%), which was
primarily due to the lower selling price and decreased gross profit
margin for the orders from new customers in order to expand the
customer base of the Group.

The gross profit for PCBAs for 10T products decreased by
approximately 31.1% to approximately RMB3.0 million for
the Reporting Period (2022: approximately RMB4.3 million).
The gross profit margin decreased to approximately 4.7% for
the Reporting Period (2022: approximately 4.8%), which was
primarily due to the decreased sales of loT products.

10
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ERE MmN DN @)

The gross profit for PCBAs for automotive related devices
increased by approximately 90.7% to approximately RMB10.4
million for the Reporting Period (2022: approximately RMB5.4
million). The gross profit margin increased to approximately
17.7% for the Reporting Period (2022: approximately 17.3%),
which was mainly due to the increased sales orders from the
automotive related devices.

The Group recorded gross loss for Financial Application Platform
and Platform Maintenance Services for the Reporting Period,
which was due to the decreased revenue as mentioned before.

Other Income

Other income of the Group for the Reporting Period of
approximately RMB8.6 million (2022: approximately RMB7.0
million) mainly represented government grants and bank interest
income.

Other Losses, Net

Other losses, net mainly represented (i) net gain or loss on
disposal of property, plant and equipment; (ii) written off
of property, plant and equipment; (iii) interest income from
unlisted corporate bonds and loans; (iv) dividend income; and
(v) exchange difference. For the Reporting Period, other losses
decreased from approximately RMB2.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB1.9 million for
the Reporting Period, which was mainly due to the written off of
property, plant and equipment of approximately RMB2.6 million,
which offsetting the decrease of exchange difference.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly comprised (i) relevant
employee benefit expenses; (ii) transportation costs; (iii)
depreciation; (iv) entertainment expenses and other expenses.
For the Reporting Period, selling and distribution expenses
amounted to approximately RMB2.4 million (2022: approximately
RMB3.0 million), representing a decrease of approximately 20.0%
as compared to the year ended 31 December 2022. Selling
and distribution expense ratio remained stable at approximately
1.0% against revenue for both the Reporting Period and the year
ended 31 December 2022.

AR /AEEEENPCBAR E R N4
7% EREHENNARK1048E L (=
T _F HARBSAEE L) cEFEXR
WMEBHEEBNENITTI (T —F: 4
173%) T ERAHRAEEBEERFR T &
RIS EE RT BE4E A0 -

AEERREHRHESRERFERTAH
ERGEBHRGSER T E2HRAEN KR
TERPTEL ©

Ha g A
$EIEA$&¢H‘7@F3E’J%@H&M’7E}\E%8 6
ABELT(ZEZZF : HARB708ET)
FERBFERETHEWA o

Hit g8 FH
At ERFBREERE()DENE  BEMN
BHFIRERIEIR - () % - B R ﬁM%
(i) 3 £ TR R EH R E RO BIA (IR
BUYA - R(WERZE - RIREHR - KA
BHEBE_F-_—F+-A=+-HLLEE
MOARB20EBILA L EREHEHOLA
RE19BBT IZRANMBEDE BE
RENARE26E BTIEY T ENZEN
g -

HERDHBAX
HERDHEAY EZE () AEEE RN
(i SBERCA ¢ (i) YT 8+ (v) BMEERD L R EFESE -
REPHENEERDERAIOAEARK247H
BT (ZZEZ_F :HAREIEETL) &
HE_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HLEFERD
#920.0% - EHERBEE_T-_—_F+ A
=+ —HILEFE HERSHATHRKEN
LR ERFBERL1.0% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EREEWmN DN @)

Administrative and Other Expenses

Administrative and other expenses mainly represented (i)
employment benefit expenses; (i) depreciation; (jii) professional
fee; (iv) rental expenses; (v) travelling expenses; (vi) utilities; (vii)
telecommunication; (viii) office expenses and other expenses.
For the Reporting Period, administrative expenses amounted
to approximately RMB31.7 million and approximately RMB3.9
million from continuing and discontinued operation, respectively
(2022: approximately RMB37.3 million and approximately
RMB2.3 million, respectively), representing a decrease of
approximately 10.1% as compared to the year ended 31
December 2022. The decrease in administrative and other
expenses was mainly because of the decreased depreciation and
professional fee incurred for the Reporting Period.

Impairment Losses on Financial Assets and
Contract Assets

For the Reporting Period, impairment losses of approximately
RMB7.5 million (2022: approximately RMB0.3 million) was made
against the financial asset at amortised cost, other receivables
and the trade receivables for customers who probably have
credit risk. The increase in amount by approximately RMB7.2
million was mainly due to the recognised of impairment loss on
amount due from a disposed subsidiary, which was unlikely to be
collected.

Impairment losses on Intangible Assets

An impairment loss of approximately RMB14.7 million was
provided for the intangible assets for Financial Application
Platform and Platform Maintenance Services segment as the
development of this segment was slower than expected and the
recoverable amount for the intangible assets was lower than the
carrying amount.

Finance Costs

QOur finance costs mainly comprised interest expenses on bank
borrowings and leases liabilities. For the Reporting Period, the
finance costs of the Group were approximately RMB0.8 million
(2022: approximately RMB1.2 million). The decrease in finance
costs was in line with the decreased average balance of bank
borrowings and lease liabilities.

Income Tax (Expense) Credit

The Group recorded Income tax expense of approximately
RMBO0.2 million and approximately RMB4.2 million from
continuing and discontinued operation, respectively, for
the Reporting Period (2022: income tax (expense) credit of
approximately RMBO0.5 million and approximately RMB1.1
million, respectively), which was primarily due to the reversal of
deferred tax assets in regard to the tax losses arising from the
Financial Application Platform and Platform Maintenance Services
segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEEFWNE DN @)

Loss for the Year

As a result of the facts discussed above, the Group recorded
a net loss of approximately RMB31.5 million for the Reporting
Period as compared to net loss of approximately RMB7.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Loss for the Year Attributable to Non-controlling
Interest

Loss for the year attributable to non-controlling interest
decreased to approximately RMB7.7 million for the Reporting
Period (2022: profit of approximately RMB2.0 million), which was
due to the share of loss from the Financial Application Platform
and Platform Maintenance Services business for the Reporting
Period.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net Current Assets

The Group had net current assets of approximately RMB139.9
million as at 31 December 2023 (2022: approximately
RMB144.3). The current ratio of the Group increased from
approximately 2.7 as at 31 December 2022 to 3.6 as at 31
December 2023.

Borrowing and the Pledge of Assets

The bank borrowings of the Group amounted to approximately
RMBS3.8 million as at 31 December 2023 (2022: approximately
RMB8.0 million). As at 31 December 2023, the above bank
borrowings were secured by bank deposits of Nil (2022: RMB1.7
million); property, plant and equipment with carrying amounts
approximately RMB10.1 million (2022: RMB23.0 million) and a
corporate guarantee provided by the Company.

Gearing Ratio

QOur gearing ratio, which is calculated by total borrowings and
lease liabilities divided by total equity, was approximately 4.4%
and 5.8% as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022,
respectively. During the Reporting Period, our bank borrowings
and lease liabilities decreased by approximately RMB5.7 million.
The gearing ratio remained low due to our low level of bank
borrowings and lease liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Capital Structure

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 18 October 2019. There has been no change in the capital
structure of the Company since then. As at 31 December 2023,
the number of issued shares of the Company was 250,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

Foreign Exchange Exposure and Exchange Rate
Risk

The Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions are mainly
denominated in RMB, US$ and HKS$. There are no significant
assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies.
Management considers that the Group is not exposed to any
significant foreign exchange risk as at 31 December 2023
as there are no significant financial assets or liabilities of the
Group denominated in the currencies other than the respective
functional currencies of the Group’s entities.

Capital Expenditure

For the Reporting Period, the Group had capital expenditure of
approximately RMB21.4 million (2022: approximately RMB12.3
million). The capital expenditure was mainly related to the
additions of office equipment, plant and equipment and intangible
assets.

Dividend

The Board does not recommend payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

Employees, Emoluments Policy and Training

The key components of the Group’s remuneration package
include basic salary, and where appropriate, other allowances,
bonuses and the Group’s contribution to mandatory provident
funds or state-managed retirement benefits scheme. Other
benefits include share options to be granted under the
Share Option Schemes. The Group provides comprehensive
training and development opportunities to its employees on a
regular basis. The trainings are arranged according to needs
to employees, which are identified annually by individual
departments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 771 employees (2022:
754 employees) with a total remuneration of approximately
RMB85.7 million during the Reporting Period (2022:
approximately RMB74.9 million). The salaries of the employees
were determined with reference to individual performance, work
experience, qualification and current industry practices.

Pension Scheme

Pursuant to the relevant labor laws and regulations of the PRC,
the employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC
are required to participate in a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme (the “Defined Contribution Scheme”) operated by the
PRC government. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of basic payroll costs to the Defined Contribution
Scheme.

The Group’s contributions to the Defined Contribution Scheme
vest fully and immediately with the employees. Accordingly,
(i) during the Reporting Period, there was no forfeiture of
contributions under the Defined Contribution Scheme; and (ii)
there were no forfeited contributions available for the Group
to reduce its existing level of contributions to the Defined
Contribution Scheme as at 31 December 2023. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the Defined Contribution Scheme.

Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s capital commitment
amounted to approximately RMB1.3 million (2022: approximately
RMB3.2 million). The capital commitment was mainly related
to the acquisition of machinery and equipment to enhance our
production efficiency.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Material Acquisitions, Disposals of
Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures
and Significant Investment

On 21 August 2023, Wanhai Big Data Technology (Shanghai)
Limited* (88 KX &IE R (£)8) BB 2 7)) (the “Disposal
Vendor”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Regan Shiye Group Co., Ltd.* (ERE XS E B R A 7)) (the
“Disposal Purchaser”), and Shanghai Wanhai Jinyuan Business
Management Limited* (E /888 &R EEEE AR A 7)) (the
“Target Company”) entered into the Agreement, pursuant to
which the Disposal Vendor has agreed to sell, and the Disposal
Purchaser has agreed to acquire the entire equity interest of the
Target Company, at the consideration of RMB1.0. The Target
Company owns 60% of the registered capital of Regan Financial
Information. Upon the completion of this transaction on 21
August 2023, (i) the Group ceased to hold any interest in the
Target Company and Regan Financial Information; (i) the Target
Company and Regan Financial Information ceased to be
subsidiaries of the Group; and (iii) the financial results of the
Target Company and Regan Financial Information was no longer
consolidated into the financial statements of the Group. Detailed
information please refer to the announcement of the company
dated 21 August 2023.

Saved as disclosed herein, the Group did not have any material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures during the Reporting Period.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as of 31
December 2023 (2022: nil).

Event after Reporting Period

The Group does not have any important events after the
Reporting Period and up to the date of this report.

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Executive Directors

Mr. Li Hao (Z%) (“Mr. Li”), aged 52, is an executive Director,
chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of our Group
and the cousin of Mr. Xu Shizhen. Mr. Li joined our Group
in March 2000 and has over 23 years of experience in the
electronic engineering and manufacturing industry. He is primarily
responsible for the overall strategic planning and business
development and overseeing the daily operation of our Group.

Mr. Li obtained his diploma in industrial electrical automation
from Wuhan University of Science and Technology (formerly
known as Wuhan Institute of Metallurgy) in July 1993. He
further completed a top-up degree in electronic and information
technology from University of Electronic Science and Technology
of China in January 2019 through online studies. From July 1993
to March 1996, Mr. Li worked as a sales manager in Shenzhen
International Business Data Co., Ltd* (R I BB 5 2 &iE A R
A Al). From April 1996 to July 1998, Mr. Li Hao worked as a
sales manager in Shenzhen Tefa Songli Electronic Industry Co.,
Ltd.* ORINF BRI EFEZE BB A F]), an electronic products
manufacturer. He then worked in Shenzhen Bolinshijia Modern
Households Co., Ltd.* (RIITIHEMERBRRERRBRAA)
(formerly known as Shenzhen Xinwei Industry Co., Ltd.* (FIIITH
ZHEE AR A A), a household products trader, as a deputy
general manager from August 1998 to February 2000. He has
been the director and general manager of Shenzhen Confidence
and Xinzhi (Shenzhen) Electronic co., Ltd.* (B2 CRII) TF4F
fR A A]) (the “Xinzhi Shenzhen”) since March 2000 and March
2019, respectively. From April 2017 to September 2021, he has
been the director of Confidence Intelligence, Inc. He also been
the director of New Trive Limited and New Trive (HK) Limited (T
i (BFHB) BB 2 A since January 2019 and January 2019,
respectively.

* For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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Mr. Zhang Bizhong (5& £ #&) (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 58, is an
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Zhang joined our Group
in February 2002 and has over 28 years of experience in the
electronic engineering and manufacturing industry. He is primarily
responsible for overseeing sales and operations of our Group.

Mr. Zhang obtained his diploma in physics from Zhejiang Normal
University in July 1988. From February 1990 to August 1992, Mr.
Zhang worked as a production engineer in Lianguang Electronics
and Plastics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd* (Bt B F 8RB CRII) &
B2 7~ |), an electronic products manufacturer. He then joined
Shenzhen Dinghan Electronics Technology Co., Ltd.* (Rl & &
T T H T AR A 7)), an electronic technology service provider,
as a production manager from September 1992 to October 1995.
He then worked in Shenzhen Bao’an Tongbang Electronics Co.,
Ltd.* ORI E =M H EFH R QA a PCBA manufacturer,
as a factory head from November 1995 to February 2002. He
has been the deputy general manager of Shenzhen Confidence
since February 2002 and has been appointed as a director since
December 2015. He also has been the manager of Chongqing
Xinken Technology Company Limited* (EEZ R R AR A
A]), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, since October
2020.

Mr. Xu Shizhen (& tt &) (“Mr. Xu”), aged 50, is an executive
Director and the chief financial officer of our Company and the
cousin of Mr. Li. Mr. Xu joined our Group in March 2000 and
is primarily responsible for the overall financial, accounting and
secretarial affairs of our Group.

Mr. Xu obtained his diploma in finance and accounting from
Wuhan University of Technology (formerly known as Wuhan
Automotive Polytechnic University) in July 1996. From September
1996 to December 1998, Mr. Xu worked as a sales manager in
Shenzhen Tefa Songli Electronic Industry Co., Ltd* (&3I4 %
MY EFEZEHBR AR, an electronic products manufacturer.
He then joined Shenzhen Suzhu Co., Ltd.* (EIITTBERRR A F)
as a purchasing manager from January 1999 to January 2000.
He has been the chief financial officer of Shenzhen Confidence
since March 2000 and has been appointed as a director, financial
controller and secretary of the board since December 2015. He
also been the supervisor of Xinzhi Shenzhen since March 2019.
He also has been the executive director of Chongging Xinken
Technology Company Limited* (£ E {528 B H R A 7)), a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, since October 2020. He
also has been the executive director of Anhui Xinken Information
Technology Company Limited* (Z B3 EEHEBR A F), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, since October 2022.

* For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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Ms. Li Bigiong (Z £ IR) (“Ms. Li”), aged 51, is an executive
director of the Company and the human resource director of
the Group. She jointed our Group since November 2009 and
has above 20 years of experience in the electronic engineering
and manufacturing industry. She is mainly responsible for the
administration and human resources affairs of the Group.

Ms. Li graduated from Sichuan Xichong Yixing High School* (4
JIIPE7E %2 B E2) in 1991, From February 1991 to September
2003, Ms. Li had worked at Huagao Wangshi Technology
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* (& £ KR ORI) BBR A ) as the
supervisor of the Quality Control Department, mainly responsible
for overall quality control management. From October 20083 to
June 2004, Ms. Li had worked at Shenzhen Yudafu Electronics
Co., Ltd.* (RIYI T #E E E FH R A F]) as the supervisor
of the Manufacturing Department, mainly responsible for the
overall management and planning of production activities.
From July 2004 to May 2007, she had worked at Shenzhen
Jinyuantong Electronics Co., Ltd.* (ZII T &£ FRBEE T HR
‘A A]) as the supervisor of the Quality Control Department,
mainly responsible for overall quality control management. She
subsequently joined Shenzhen Juji Electronics Co., Ltd.* (%
NTEESBFERAA) from June 2007 to May 2008 as a
manager of the Manufacturing Department, mainly responsible
for the overall management and planning of production activities.
After that, from June 2008 to October 2009, Ms. Li had worked
at Dongguan Ruiping Electronics Co., Ltd.* (R i F &
A BR /A B]) as the supervisor of the Sales Department, mainly
responsible for handling customer orders and sales matters.
Since November 2009, Ms. Li has joined our Group and served
in various positions, including as manager of the Administration
Department, mainly responsible for administration and human
resources affairs. She is also the chairman of the board of
supervisors of Shenzhen Confidence Intelligence Electronic
Co., Ltd.* OFIIMEREREE T HER 2 7)) and the supervisor of
Chonggain Xinken Technology Limited* (EE Z 2R B AR A 7))
and Anhui Xinken Information Technology Company Limited* (%
Bz 15 ERHEEBR A A), our subsidiaries.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. Hao Xiangjun (# 48 &) (“Mr. Hao”), aged 64, is an
executive director of the Company. He joined our Group since
April 2022 and has more than 26 years of experience in the fields
of economics and finance. He is mainly responsible for business
of Financial Application Platform and Platform Maintenance
Services of our Group.

Mr. Hao obtained a Bachelor’s Degree from the Northeastern
School of Heavy Machinery* (3 4t & & # % £ %) majoring
in mechanical engineering in 1982 and a Master’s Degree of
Mechanical Engineering from the Harbin Institute of Technology*
(KB EBE I % KX 2) in 2001. He also obtained a Doctor of
Business Administration Degree from the United Business
Institutes in 2016 in the United States of America and Executive
Doctor of Business Administration Degree from Lincoln University
in the United States of America in the same year. From March
1987 to August 1989, he was a deputy director of the Information
Center Editorial Office at the Harbin Economic Commission* (*&
BT &% Z 8 €). He subsequently joined Harbin Planning
Commission* (" B E T 5 8| & B €) as a director of the
Dispatch Office in the same month and left in October 1991.
From October 1991 to December 1994, he was a deputy director
of the General Affairs Department at the Harbin Economic
Committee of the Communist Party of China* (1 MK &
&% & 8 9). He then joined the Communist Party of China’s
Policy Research Office of the Harbin Municipal Committee*
(R HEBHREMZBERMEE) as a director of the second
division in December 1994 and was promoted as an assistant
inspector and subsequently as deputy director, before he left in
December 2000. In January 2001, he joined Shanghai Shenyin
Wanguo Securities Research Institute Limited* (/& B iR &
FEEM AT AR A Al) as a director of the General Office and
left in November 2004. From December 2004 to April 2009, he
joined Shanghai Financial Working Committee of the Communist
Party of China* (£ /8T £ 8 T1EZ B €) and his last held
position was deputy director of the office of the committee, after
which he joined the Shanghai Financial Industry Federation* (_t
B e RIER A 2) as the secretary general in April 2009 until April
2019. He has also been a deputy director at Shanghai Institute of
Technology and Finance of Shanghai University* (_E /& X2 )&
Rl R & B AT 9T A7) since December 2013. He has also been the
supervisors of Wanhai Jinyuan since September 2022.

* For identification purpose only
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Huang Jianfei (Z &l 3F) (“Mr. Huang”), aged 54, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of our
Group on 19 October 2022. He is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee of our Group. Mr. Huang
graduated in July 1991 from the Tiangong University (&% T 2
X £) in the PRC majoring in chemistry. He later obtained a
Master of Business Administration from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in April 1994. He has more than 10 years
of experience in the technology industry and business
management. From January 2000 to July 2005, Mr. Huang
worked as a marketing manager at Shenzhen Hengpeng
Technology Development Company Limited* (3% 311 7 18 BB &} #%
7 2 B BR A 7)) (“Shenzhen Hengpeng”). In April 2015, Mr.
Huang rejoined Shenzhen Hengpeng as a vice general manager
responsible for business planning and marketing management.
He subsequently left the company in July 2018. Since November
2019, Mr. Huang took the position of director of GuangDong
BeiDou Mobile 10T Industry Institute (&5 & 1t 2} 1 8h ) B 48 =
FEHTERR).

Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund (& & &) (“Mr. Wong”), aged
39, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
of our Group on 20 September 2019. He is the chairman of the
Audit Committee, a member of the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee of our Group. He is responsible for
providing independent advice to the Board. Mr. Wong obtained
his Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy from Hong Kong Baptist
University in November 2007, Master of Science in Applied
Accounting and Finance from Hong Kong Baptist University in
November 2013, and Master of Business Administration from
The Open University of Hong Kong in October 2016 and Master
of Corporate Governance from The Open University of Hong
Kong in August 2017. Mr. Wong is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom, the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Chartered

*  For identification purpose only
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Governance Institute (formerly known as the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators). Mr. Wong has more
than 14 years of experience in accounting, taxation and auditing.
He joined Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as an audit associate
in September 2007 and left as an audit senior in November
2011. Mr. Wong joined Patrick Wong C.P.A. Limited as an
audit manager in February 2012 and has been its practicing
director since March 2013. From June 2017 to May 2021, Mr.
Wong was the independent non-executive director of InvesTech
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1087) which is principally engaged
in the provision of network system integration. Mr. Wong is also
the independent non-executive director of Deyun Holding Ltd., a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1440) which is principally engaged in lace manufacturing
and dyeing service from December 2020 to September 2022.
Since July 2023, Mr. Wong is the independent non-executive
director of China Merchants Commercial Real Estate Investment
Trust, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code:1503) which is principally engaged in
investing in income-producing commercial properties . Since
September 2023, Mr. Wong is the independent non-executive
director of High Fashion International Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:608)
which is principally engaged in the manufacture and trading of
garments, as well as property investment and development.
Since March 2024, Mr. Wong is also the independent non-
executive director of China Everbright Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:165)
which is principally engaged in investment activities and the
provision of financial services. Mr. Wong is currently a member of
the Legislative Council of Hong Kong.
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Ms. Mu Lingxia (£% &) (“Ms. Mu”), aged 53, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company since
18 October 2021. She is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Nomination Committee and the
Audit Committee of the Group. She is responsible for providing
independent advice to the Board. She has above 20 years of
experience in corporate governance and management and
securities affairs. From June 1992 to April 2003, Ms. Mu had
served in different positions at Shenzhen Overglobe Development
Company Limited* (& 31l i1 1 18 3 & i 2 B BR A &), including
secretary of the board of directors and representative of
securities affairs. Starting from 2003, she had served at
Shenzhen Neptunus Bio-engineering Company Limited* (3% 3|
mAETEY I EREM AR QR (Shenzhen Stock Exchange:
000078) as manager of the office of the board and representative
of securities affairs, until April 2016. During the period from April
2016 to September 2021, Ms. Mu (i) joined Shenzhen Neptunus
Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited* (& 3Il 1 /8 £ 28 45 &

A YR TR D B R A A)) (Stock Exchange: 8329) and served
in various offices, such as vice general manager, company
secretary, board secretary, financial controller and authorized
representative, and (ii) subsequently worked at the company’s
subsidiary, Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical Company
Limited* (@M /8 ER &R B R A 7)), as an executive
director and vice general manager. In October 2021, Ms. Mu
commenced her position as a partner at Shenzhen Value Online
Consulting Co., Ltd.* (XY B EEEAEABEREER A A). Ms.
Mu graduated from Xi’an Jiaotong university in the PRC majoring
in Applied Economics and obtained therefrom a Master Degree
in Economics. She subsequently obtained a Master’s Degree
of Corporate Governance from the Hong Kong Metropolitan
University (formerly known as the Open University of Hong Kong).
Ms. Mu is an associate of the Chartered Governance Institute and
an associate of the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute.
She has also obtained the Certificate of Qualification of Board
Secretary” (B F @MW EEKFZE) issued by the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, the Qualification of Securities Practice* (3% 7 % #t %
A B &%) issued by the Securities Association of China, and the
Certificate of Accounting Professional issued by the Bureau of
Finance of Nanshan District, Shenzhen* (7 LU [& B/ BUB).

* For identification purpose only
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Senior Management

Mr. Yang Zougao (#% &£ &) (“Mr. Yang”), aged 47, is the
general manager of production of our Group and is responsible
for overseeing productions and quality control of our Group. He
has over 21 years of experience in the electronic engineering and
manufacturing industry.

Mr. Yang obtained his diploma in electrical engineering from
Hunan Industry Polytechnic in July 1998. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Yang worked as a technician in Dongguan Jinzheng
Digital Technology Co., Ltd.* (RZEm & EZBRIFE AR A 7))
from February 1998 to August 2000. He worked in Dongguan
Jinzhong Electronics Co., Ltd.* (REEmM & R EFTER A
A]) as an equipment officer from August 2000 to December
2000. He then worked as a production line engineer in BBK
Educational Electronics Co., Ltd* (3 £ 5HEEFER A
A]), a company principally engaged in the sales and supply of
electronic products, from January 2001 to July 2001. In August
2001, he joined Shenzhen Confidence as the general manager of
production and became a director since December 2015.

* For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company recognises the value and importance of achieving
high corporate governance standards to enhance corporate
performance, transparency and accountability, earning the trust
of shareholders and the public. The Board strives to adhere
to the principles of corporate governance and adopt sound
corporate governance codes to meet the legal and commercial
standards by focusing on areas such as internal control,
adequate disclosure and accountability to all shareholders.

The Company has adopted and complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
during the Reporting Period except the following deviation:

CG Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
of the Board and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Li is the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of our
Group, which was deviated from the CG Code. However, having
considered the nature and extent of our Group’s operations,
Mr. Li's extensive experience in the industry, familiarity with the
operations of our Group since its business operation, that all
major decisions are made in consultation with members of our
Board and relevant Board committees, and that there are three
independent non-executive Directors on our Board offering
independent perspectives, our Board is therefore of the view
that there are adequate safeguards in place to ensure sufficient
balance of powers and authorities between our Board and the
management of our Company and that it is in the best interest
of our Group to have Mr. Li taking up both roles. As such, the
roles of the chairman and chief executive officer of our Group
are not being separated pursuant to the requirement under code
provision C.2.1 of the CG Code. The Board will also continue to
review and monitor the practices of the Company for the purpose
of complying with the CG Code and maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices of the Company.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions
of Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”)

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
C3 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. All Directors have confirmed
that, following specific enquiry by the Company, they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report.

Corporate Governance Duties

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out in code provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code. During the Reporting Period, the Board had reviewed and
discussed the corporate governance policy of the Group and
was satisfied with the effectiveness of the corporate governance
policy of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

CG Code provisions C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The Company does not
segregate the roles of chairman and chief executive officer and
Mr. Li currently holds both of the chairman and chief executive
officer positions, as explained in the paragraph headed “Corporate
Governance Practices” above in the Corporate Governance
Report.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience
in the fields of accounting, finance and business. Their
skills, expertise and number in the Board ensure that strong
independent views and judgement are brought in the Board’s
deliberations and that such views and judgement carry weight
in the Board’s decision-making process. Their presence and
participation also enable the Board to maintain high standards
of compliance in financial and other mandatory reporting
requirements and provide adequate checks and balances to
safeguard the interests of shareholders of the Company and the
Company.
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The Company annually assesses the independence of each
independent non-executive Director during their terms of
appointment. During the Reporting Period and up to the
date of this report, the Company received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors a written confirmation of
their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

The Board

The Board currently comprises five executive Directors, namely
Mr. Li Hao (chairman and chief executive officer), Mr. Zhang
Bizhong, Mr. Xu Shizhen, Ms. Li Bigiong and Mr. Hao Xiangjun;
and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Wong Chun Sek Edmund, Mr. Huang Jianfei and Ms. Mu Lingxia.
The number of independent non-executive Directors represents
not less than one third of the Board. The biographical details of
and relationships among the members of the Board are disclosed
under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 17 to 24 of this annual report.

The Directors believe that the composition of the Board reflects
the necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business development of the Group and
for effective leadership as all the executive Directors possess
extensive experience in management and professional knowledge
in business, while the three independent non-executive Directors
possess professional knowledge and broad experience in
finance and business. The Directors are of the opinion that the
present structure of the Board can ensure the independence
and objectivity of the Board and provide a system of checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of the shareholders of the
Company and the Company.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. The statement of the independent auditor of the
Company about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
page 104 to 117. The Board is responsible for leadership and
control of the Company and oversees the Group’s business,
strategic decisions and performance and is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board shall
take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities
to the Board committees. Board meetings are structured so as to
encourage open discussion, frank debate and active participation
by Directors in meetings. The Company provides the Board
with information and explanations that are necessary to enable
Directors to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before the Board.

Appointment, Re-Election and Removal of
Directors

Each of Mr. Li Hao, Mr. Zhang Bizhong and Mr. Xu Shizhen has
signed a letter of appointment with our Company with a term of
three years commencing from 18 October 2019 and continued
thereafter. Each of Ms. Li Bigiong and Ms. Mu Lingxia has signed
a letter of appointment with our Company with a term of one year
commencing from 18 October 2021 and continued thereafter.
Mr. Hao Xiangjun has signed a letter of appointment with our
Company with a term of one year commencing from 1 April 2022.
Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund has signed a letter of appointment
with our Company with a term of one year commencing from 18
October 2019 and continued thereafter. Mr. Huang Jianfei has
signed a letter of appointment with our Company with a term
of one year commencing from 19 October 2022 and continued
thereafter. These appointments may be terminated in accordance
with the terms of the letter of appointment.
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According to the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), at each annual general meeting, one third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple
of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years. The Directors to retire by rotation
shall include any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer
himself for re-election. Any further Directors so to retire shall be
those who have been longest in office since their last re-election
or appointment but as between persons who became or were
last re-elected Directors on the same day those to retire will
(unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined
by lot.

At any time or from time to time, the Board shall have the power
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
on the Board or as an additional Director to the existing Board
subject to any maximum number of Directors, if any, as may be
determined by the members in general meeting. Any Director
so appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until
the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any Director so
appointed as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the first annual general meeting of the Company after
his appointment and be eligible for re-election at such meeting.
Any Director so appointed by the Board shall not be taken into
account in determining the Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation at an annual general meeting.

Accordingly, Mr. Li Hao, Mr. Zhang Bizhong and Ms. Mu Lingxia
will retire from office as Directors by rotation at the 2024 AGM
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2024
AGM.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of a diverse Board with
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives to
enhance the quality of its performance. All Board appointments
will be considered against selection criteria.
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The Company seeks to achieve the diversity of the Board through
the consideration of a number of factors in the Board members’
selection process, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background of the Board, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge, industry experience, ethnicity
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy and contribution that the selected candidate will
bring to the Board, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge
and skills, including knowledge and experience in the areas
of EMS business, transportation and logistics, auditing and
accounting, economics and finance industry, technology industry
and business administration. Furthermore, the Directors range
from 39 years old to 64 years old, and comprise 6 males and 2
female.

The Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy,
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the board diversity
policy and discusses any revisions that may be required and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration
and approval.

Proceedings of Board Meetings and Board
Committee Meetings

The Board may meet for the dispatch of business, adjourn and
otherwise regulate its meeting and proceedings as it thinks fit
and may determine the quorum necessary for the transaction of
business. An AGM and an extraordinary general meeting called
for the passing of a special resolution shall be called by at least
21 days’ notice in writing, and a meeting of the Company other
than an AGM or an extraordinary general meeting for the passing
of a special resolution shall be called by at least 14 days’ notice
in writing. A meeting of the Board or any committee of the Board
may be held by means of such telephone, electronic or other
communication facilities as permit all persons participating in the
meeting.

When a Director and the enterprise(s) involved in a proposal of a
Board meeting have connected relations, such Director shall not
exercise his/her voting rights on such proposal, nor shall he/she
exercise any voting rights on behalf of other Directors.
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Set out below are details of the attendance record of each
Director at the Board, committee and general meetings of the
Company during the Reporting Period:

L‘AT%ZE‘JX§$ﬁF“$E¢HHFﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ’ﬂK@
FAEZEEeR ZEBE9RMRRANEMHF
S~

Attendance/Number of Meetings Held

HER/ERBMAY
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Ezg ERZES REZEE yHZEEE
Name of Directors BEhg E ] EE ] ] ] BREAE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Li Hao iy e 44 - - - 17
Mr. Zhang Bizhong RUERE 4/4 - - - 17
Mr. Xu Shizhen T EEE 4/4 - - - 1/1
Ms. Li Bigiong FERLT 4/4 - - - 1N
Mr. Hao Xiangjun MRELE 4/4 - - - 17
Non-executive Director FUTES
Mr. Yuan Shuntang RIBEEE 4/4 - - - 17
(resigned on 1 September 2023) (R=Z==F
hA—REHE)

Independent Non-Executive Directors B E#TES
Mr. Huang Jianfei BRlIEEE 4/4 2/2 17 17 17
Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund BRERE 4/4 202 1A 17 17
Ms. Mu Lingxia REENT 4/4 2/2 1A 17 17

representing chairman of the board, the committees or the general meeting

The Board has established three committees, namely, the audit
committee (“Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”), for overseeing aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All committees have been established with
defined written terms of reference, which were posted on the
Stock Exchange (www.hkex.com.hk) and the Company website
(www.szxinken.com). All committees should report to the Board
on their decisions or recommendations made.

All committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expense.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 20 September 2019
with terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code for
the purpose of making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and removal of the external auditor, to review the
financial statements and related materials and provide advice
in respect of the financial reporting process, and to oversee
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The Audit Committee comprises three members, all
being independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wong
Chun Sek Edmund (Chairman), Mr. Huang Jianfei and Ms. Mu
Lingxia. The Group’s accounting principles and policies, financial
statements and related materials for the year had been reviewed
by the Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee
has held two meetings for discussion on the audit and financial
reporting related matters. At the meetings, the Audit Committee
had reviewed the final results for the year ended 31 December
2022, the interim results for the six months ended 30 June
2023 and the Group’s internal controls and risk management
for the year ended 31 December 2022. Full minutes of the
Audit Committee meetings are kept by the company secretary.
Draft and final versions of the minutes of the Audit Committee
meetings are circulated to all members of the Audit Committee
for comments and approval and all decisions of the Audit
Committee are reported to the Board subject to applicable
restriction.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the website of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.

The external auditor was invited to attend the Audit Committee
meetings to discuss with the Audit Committee members on the
audit and financial reporting related matters. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee provided the Board with a briefing on the
significant issues after each Audit Committee meeting.
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The Group’s final results for the Reporting Period had been
reviewed by the Audit Committee before submission to the Board
for approval. The Audit Committee had also reviewed this annual
report, and confirmed that this annual report is completed and
accurate, and has complied with the Listing Rules. There is no
disagreement between the Directors and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection and appointment of the external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 20 September
2019 with terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code
for the purpose of making recommendations to the Board on
the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to the
Directors and senior management of the Group, to review and
evaluate their performance in order to make recommendations
on the remuneration package of each of the Directors and senior
management of the Company. The Remuneration Committee
comprises three members, all being independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Ms. Mu Lingxia (Chairman), Mr. Huang Jianfei
and Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee
has held one meeting. Full minutes of the Remuneration
Committee meetings are kept by the company secretary. At the
meeting, the Remuneration Committee had reviewed and made
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policies
of the Directors and the senior management as well as the
remuneration packages for the year ended 31 December 2022
and the year ending 31 December 2023 and the performance
of the Directors. Draft and final versions of the minutes of the
Remuneration Committee meetings are circulated to all members
of the Remuneration Committee for comments and approval and
all decisions of the Remuneration Committee are reported to the
Board subject to applicable restriction. The terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are available on the website of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange.
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Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

The Group has paid and accrued the amounts of approximately
RMB1.2 million, BMBO0.9 million, RMBO.7 million, RMBO0.3 million,
RMBO0.3 million, RMBO0.1 million, RMBO.1 million, BMBO0.1 million
and RMBO.1 million to Mr. Li, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Xu, Ms. Li, Mr. Hao,
Mr. Yuan, Mr. Wong, Ms. Mu and Mr. Huang, respectively, as
Directors’ remuneration, for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Directors’ remuneration is determined based on a variety of
factors such as market conditions and responsibilities assumed
by each Director. As at 31 December 2023, there was no
arrangement in which the Directors waived their remuneration.

Nomination Committee

The Board would follow a set of formal, considered and
transparent procedures for the appointment of new directors
to the Board. The appointment of a new director has been
a collective decision of the Board, taking into consideration
the candidate’s qualification, expertise, experience, integrity
and commitment to his/her responsibilities within the Group.
In addition, all candidates to be selected and appointed as a
director must be able to meet the standards set out in Rules 3.08
and 3.09 of the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee was established on 20 September
2019 with terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code
for the purpose of making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors and the management of the
Board succession. The Nomination Committee consists of three
members, all being independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Huang Jianfei (Chairman), Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund and
Ms. Mu Lingxia.
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During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee has
held one meeting. At the meeting, the Nomination Committee
had reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors, reviewed the board diversity policy and other matters
of the Company. Full minutes of the Nomination Committee
meetings are kept by the company secretary. Draft and final
versions of the minutes of the Nomination Committee meetings
are circulated to all members of the Nomination Committee for
comments and approval and all decisions of the Nomination
Committee are reported to the Board subject to applicable
restriction. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are available on the website of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange.

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy for the
Nomination Committee to consider and make recommendations
to shareholders for election as Directors at general meetings or
appoint as Directors to fill casual vacancies.

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

—
—

) reputation for integrity;

(2) accomplishment and experience in the business in which
the Group is engaged in;

(8) commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest;

(4) diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,
gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and educational
background and length of service;

(5) qualifications which include professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy;

R|BEME - RBRZEGEHET-REHE R
R REAZESCRINESTENRE B
BRARK  FHEBLIFRITESNBILME 2
NEFEZTMRERARAHEMEE - 12
FERBENTERRLBHARANERE -
ERRERZEENEAREREZEENSG
FLBEVREERERN  REREHEZER &t
o BREXBERARS  BRIREEREG A
BREHARNEZTGER - REEZESNR
REHE A NARE) R PR ER

RABBE
ARAFRCARAZAGRMN—BREAEE
NEBRRREAG LEREFHETES U
SR R B 2 R A AR R AR M M AR

5 3
MERFE

REZBEENHEZREAZEAERS

2ETIEE

(1) WEEE;

@ EARKBEMEEESTEORHRER

@) Al AR A R A B ) R RO A

@ BHTEOZTE BRETRRER-
MR- Fie (185K A L) ~ XL RHE
BERARRGES

G BE BREXARFERNMQAKEKHE
FAMEXER - e - MBRITERER

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2023 35



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
TEERRE @)

(6) the number of existing directorships and other commitments
that may demand the attention of the candidate;

(7) requirement for the Board to have Independent Non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and
whether the candidates would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines set out in
Rules 3.08, 3.09 and 3.13 of the Listing Rules;

(8) Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any measurable
objectives adopted by the Nomination Committee for
achieving diversity on the Board; and

(9) such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.

Director Nomination Procedure

Subject to the provisions in the Articles of Association of the
Company and the Listing Rules, if the Board recognises the need
for an additional Director or a member of senior management,
the following procedure will be followed:

(1) The Nomination Committee and/or Board will identify
potential candidates based on the criteria as set out in the
selection criteria, possibly with assistance from external
agencies and/or advisors;

(2) The Nomination Committee and/or the Company
Secretary of the Company will then provide the Board
with the biographical details and details of the relationship
between the candidate and the Company and/or Directors,
directorships held, skills and experience, other positions
which involve significant time commitment and any other
particulars required by the Listing Rules, the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands and other regulatory requirements for
any candidate for appointment to the Board;

(8 The Nomination Committee would then make
recommendation to the Board on the proposed candidate(s)
and the terms and conditions of the appointment;

(4) The Nomination Committee should ensure that the

proposed candidate(s) will enhance the diversity of the
Board, being particularly mindful of gender balance;
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(5) In the case of the appointment of an Independent Non-
executive Director, the Nomination Committee and/or
the Board should obtain all information in relation to the
proposed Director to allow the Board to adequately assess
the independence of the Director in accordance with the
factors set out in Rules 3.08, 3.09 and 3.13 of the Listing
Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made by the
Stock Exchange from time to time; and

(6) The Board will then deliberate and decide on the
appointment based upon the recommendation of the
Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of
the Nomination Policy and report to the Board annually.

Whistleblowing policy

In compliance with the CG Code, the Group has implemented
whistleblowing policy to provide a well-defined and accessible
channel for reporting fraud, corruption, dishonest practices,
or other similar matters and guidance on how an investigation
would be initiated upon receiving a complaint. The policy also
protects employees who report fraudulent activities in good faith
and reasonable belief. The Board will monitor and review the
effectiveness of the whistleblowing policy from time to time.

Anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy

In compliance with the CG Code, the Group has implemented
anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy. According to the Group’s
anti-corruption policy, all employees shall abide by the laws
and regulations of the PRC and shall not engage in any illegal
activities. Employees shall uphold the code of ethics, advocate
fair competition and act against bribery. Any bribery, fraud,
money laundering and embezzlement are prohibited. Employees
must not accept or request any improper benefits including
banquets, gifts, securities, valuables and high-expenditure
entertainment activities from business partners, suppliers and
merchants, etc. When there is any alleged case in violation of
laws, regulations, code of conduct or Group’s policies, the Group
will investigate and impose disciplinary actions upon offenders
after verification. The Group also provides trainings to directors
and employees from time to time to ensure that they comply
and familiar with the anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy of the
Group. The Board will monitor and review the effectiveness of the
anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy from time to time.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board does not have a Corporate Governance Committee.
The functions that would be carried out by a Corporate
Governance Committee are performed by the Board as a whole
and are as follows:

1. to develop and review the Company'’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

5.  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The corporate governance policy is formulated with an emphasis
on the Board’s quality, effective internal control, stringent
disclosure practices and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company. The Board strives to comply with
the code provisions and reviews its corporate governance policy
regularly in order to maintain high standards of business ethics
and corporate governance, and to ensure the full compliance of
the Group’s operations with applicable laws and regulations.

Continuous Professional Development

Pursuant to the CG Code provision C.1.4, all Directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the Company had arranged to provide trainings
to all the Directors.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Directors participated
in the following continuous professional development:

BE-F-=F+-A=t+-ALTE E
FLRTIIRATLER

Training on corporate governance,
director’s duties, environment, social
and governance, and/or
regulatory update

FHLXER ESHE -

Big - HBRERR D

Name of Directors EENA EREE R IEI
Executive Directors BTES

Mr. Li Hao FERE v
Mr. Zhang Bizhong o WA 68 S A 4
Mr. Xu Shizhen APt E A v
Ms. Li Bigiong FERRL v
Mr. Hao Xiangjun AR L4 v/
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYKHITES

Mr. Huang Jianfei =RIFFEE v
Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund |mEWETE 4
Ms. Mu Lingxia REBR+ v

External Auditor’s Remuneration

The Company engaged Mazars CPA Limited (“Mazars”), as
its external auditor since the audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.
There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation
or dismissal of the external auditor. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the fee payable to Mazars, is set out below:
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Amount of Fee

BERASHE
RMB’000
ARET T

Nature of Services REME
Annual audit services FEETRHG 1,352
Non-audit services. IEFET RS 405
il %
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Internal Control

The Company does not have an internal audit department and
is currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up
an internal audit department within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business and structure. The
Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system and risk management to safeguard the investments
of the shareholders and Group’s assets and reviewing the
effectiveness of such through Audit Committee on an annual
basis. The Audit Committee oversees the internal control system
and risk management of the Group, reports to the Board on any
material issues and makes recommendations. An annual review
of the effectiveness of the system of internal controls and risk
management of the Group will be conducted.

During the Reporting Period, the Company also engaged an
independent internal control adviser to carry out review on the
internal control system and risk management system of the
Group. The review involves all material monitoring aspects,
including but not limited to finance, operation, compliance and
risk management. The adviser has conducted analysis and
independent assessment on the adequacy and the effectiveness
of the internal control system and risk management of the Group,
and has submitted the findings and recommendations to the
Audit Committee and the Board. The Board is of the view that
the internal control measures and risk management in place are
adequate and effective to safeguard the interest of shareholders
and the Group’s assets.

Delegation by the Board

In general, the Board oversees the Company’s strategic
development and determines the objectives, strategies and
policies of the Group. The Board also monitors and controls
operating and financial performance and sets appropriate
policies for risk management in pursuit of the Group’s strategic
objectives. The Board delegates the implementation of strategies
and day-to-day operation of the Group to the management.
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Company Secretary

Ms. Jian has been appointed as the company secretary of the
Company and is responsible for overseeing all the company
secretarial matters of the Company. In the opinion of the Board,
Ms. Jian possesses the necessary qualification and experience,
and is capable of performing the functions of the company
secretary. During the year ended 31 December 2023, Ms. Jian
confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training. The Company will provide fund for Ms. Jian
to take no less than 15 hours of appropriate professional training
in each financial year as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

Shareholders’ Rights

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board. An
AGM of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place
as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other
than an AGM, shall be called an extraordinary general meeting.

Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Putting Enquiries by Shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the company secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals by
Shareholders at Shareholders’ Meetings
Shareholders of the Company are requested to follow article
72 of the Articles for including a resolution at an extraordinary
general meeting. The requirements and procedures are set
out above in the paragraph headed “Proceedings at general
meeting”.

Pursuant to article 113 of the Articles, no person other than a
Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by
the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director at
any general meeting unless a notice signed by that person (other
than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote
at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also a notice signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration office of the
Company provided that the minimum length of the period, during
which such notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven days and
that (if then notices are submitted after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election) the period for
lodgement of such notice(s) shall commence on the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven days prior to the date of
such general meeting.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a
person for election as a Director is posted on the website of the
Company. Shareholders of the Company may refer to the above
procedures for putting forward any other proposals at general
meetings.
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Investors Relations

The Company believes that effective communication with the
investors is essential for enhancing investors’ knowledge and
understanding of the Company. Information of the Company is
disseminated to the shareholders in the following manner:

° Delivery of annual and interim results and reports to all
shareholders;

e  Publication of announcements on the annual and interim
results on the website of the Company and Stock
Exchange, and issue of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules; and

e The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and
shareholders.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to the Board or the
Company may be sent by post to the Company’s principle place
of business in Hong Kong.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy that aims to provide
the guidelines for the Board to determine whether dividends
are to be declared and paid to the Shareholders and the level
of dividend to be paid. Under the Dividend Policy, in deciding
whether to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend
amount, the Board shall take into account, among others,

—
—

) the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

(2) the Group’s expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

(8) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

(4) the Group’s liquidity position;
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(5) interest of shareholder;
(6) taxation consideration;
(7) potential effect on creditworthiness;

(8) the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Group; and

(9) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall
remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the Board and
is also subject to any restrictions under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules, the laws of Hong Kong
and the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association
and any other applicable laws and regulations. The Company
does not have any pre-determined dividend distribution ratio. The
Company’s dividend distribution record in the past may not be
used as a reference or basis to determine the level of dividends
that may be declared or paid by the Company in the future.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update,
amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and
the Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

Constitutional Documents

On 29 May 2023, the Company has adopted the second
amended and restated memorandum and articles of association
for the purpose of (i) conforming with the core shareholder
protection standards set out in the Listing Rules which took effect
on 1 January 2022; and (ii) incorporating other consequential
and housekeeping amendments, which had been uploaded to
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Save as
disclosed above, there had been no significant changes in the
constitutional documents of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2023.
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Scope and Reporting Period

The Board is pleased to present its first Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) report, which highlights its ESG
performance from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (the
“Reporting Period”).

This ESG report was prepared with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Reporting Guide”) as described in Appendix C2 of the Listing
Rules set out by the Stock Exchange.

The Group is mainly engaged in provision of electronic
manufacturing service and over 90% of its revenue derived
from the PRC market. The scope of this ESG report covers
the Group’s business in the PRC, where the Group’s principal
operations and manufacturing plant are located (the “Factory”),
and its major revenue is derived. The Group’s operations outside
the PRC are not included in the scope as they do not have
significant environmental and social impacts.

Reporting Principles

The reporting principles of this ESG report emphasise the
following areas:

° Materiality: The threshold at which environmental, social
and governance issues become sufficiently important to
investors and other stakeholders is the core content of this
ESG report.

e  Measurability: The key performance indicators used to
assess the effectiveness of ESG policies.

e  Consistency: Information in this ESG report is consistently
presented. If there are any changes in methods or key
performance indicators used or other factors affecting a
meaningful comparison, these changes will be disclosed in
this ESG report.

° Balance: The information is presented without the
inappropriate use of selections, omissions or other forms of
manipulation that would influence a decision or judgment by
the reader.
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The Group applied the principle of materiality to determine the
scope of this ESG report. The scope of this ESG report covers
the Group’s business and all entities in the PRC. The Group’s
operations outside the PRC were not included in the scope as
they do not have significant environmental and social impacts.

ESG Governance

The Group strictly follows its established ESG policies,
commitments, strategies and objectives in order to ensure
a sustainable business development. The structure of ESG
governance mainly comprised of two components, namely the
board of directors (the “Board”) and the management team.

The Board holds the overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG
strategy and reporting by overseeing the overall governance and
progress of the Group’s ESG management system, policies,
commitments, strategies and objectives.

Management of the Group is responsible for the collection and
analysis of ESG data, implementation of appropriate strategies
to improve the Group’s ESG performance, assessment of
whether current ESG policies and improvement measures are
effective, compliance with relevant ESG laws and regulations
and the reporting of major issues to the Board. To assess the
effectiveness of the Group’s ESG policies, management sets
key performance indicators and compares the indicators of
current year with those of prior year. Based on the results of this
comparison, ESG reports and the feedback from stakeholders,
the Board reviews the progress made by the Group against its
ESG-related goals and targets. The relevance of ESG-related
goals and targets to the Group’s business operations are
determined by regular communications with stakeholders.

The data and information in this ESG report are sourced from
the relevant documents, reports, statistical data, management
and operation information collected by the Group. The Board has
reviewed the contents of this ESG report.
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ESG Strategies
Key ESG strategies adopted by the Group are set out below:

e |dentify material and relevant ESG issues through regular
communications with stakeholders

° Perform materiality assessment on the identified ESG issues
by considering their potential impact on the environment,
society as well as the business operations, financial
performance and stakeholders of the Group

e Prioritise the identified ESG issues and design effective
strategies to mitigate these issues

e Review the effectiveness of ESG strategies on an annual
basis

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group fully understands that balancing the expectations
and needs of different stakeholders is the focus of corporate
sustainable development. Through listening to the interests of our
stakeholders, we understand the sustainable development risks
and opportunities confronting the Group from different aspects,
and develop corresponding policies and implement various
environmental, social and governance measures. The Group
maintains an open and transparent dialogue with its stakeholders
through various channels including meetings, trade exhibitions,
surveys, seminars and workshops and reflect their opinions
in the report. The data and information in this ESG report are
sourced from the relevant documents, reports, statistical data,
management and operation information collected by the Group.
The Board has reviewed the contents of this ESG report.
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The following table summarises the main expectations and
concerns of the key stakeholders identified by the Group, and the
corresponding management responses.

TERBARKE BN EZNSEHBED
ERENAMEAINZEARERNEEE
[l f& -

Stakeholders Communication Channel Management responses/Key Concerns
Mz EEE BERE ERELOE TERE
Governments and e  Compliance with laws and e  Tax compliance
regulatory bodies regulations D= s)
BT R EEE W EFREER e Regulatory compliance
e Corresponding government policies EEEGH
B FE BT R 3R e Business ethics
[HESES)
Shareholders e  Financial results e  Financial performance
& MIsRE BRI
e  Corporate report and announcement e  Corporate governance
rERERNE REESR
e General meeting o Risk management and internal control
BREAE [ B 5 3B o 1N BB B 4
Employees e Career development platform ° Promotion mechanism
EE BEERTA BT
e  Salary and benefits e  Competitive salary and employee
e HEF benefits
e Safe working environment EHRFINGSRIEERT
L2 TERIR e To provide trainings for employees and
strengthen their safety awareness
REERBEIREALZEEH
Customers e Customer compliant mechanism e Product liability
®F B PR EmAE
e Customer rights and interests e Customer privacy protection
protection KPRBALIRE
BEFERRE
Suppliers e Integrity cooperation e To build a responsible supply chain
HEm HEHalE BEvBEFOHERE
o Business ethics and credibility e  To perform the contract according
FERTRESR to law
HKEBITEH

Community and the public e Environmental protection

ttEEAR IRIGIRE
° Public donation
fEETA

A8  mosERERAT 5 2023
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Materiality Assessment

With reference to the scopes as required under the ESG
Reporting Guide and taking into consideration of the Group’s
business operations, the Group identified the following
environmental, social and operating issues that are material
and relevant to the Group’s business operations during the year
ended 31 December 2023. If the Group does not implement
effective strategies to monitor and solve these issues, these
issues may affect the Group’s financial condition or operating

EEMFME

RE2ERE HERERABREHEIMREN
HE AMEERASEXRBLER #HEZ
E_=ZF+-_A=+—BLFE AEED
A BIA T B SR B 2 75 2 SE AR R MV E IR IR
HEREERBE - MAKRERE A BRBK
ERELBRAMEE AEEREREER
EXREENPBAORILERAE - 1IN AR
EESENGAEELETHRYBRRE

performance. Further, the Group made a materiality assessment

on these environmental, social and operating issues by

conducting interviews with its stakeholders.

Environmental issues

Social issues

HekELRBETER NG -

Operating issues

RIGRE HEME EEME
1. Greenhouse gas emissions 8. Local community engagement  15. Economic value generated
2. Energy consumption 9.  Community investment 16. Corporate governance
3. Water consumption 10. Occupational health and safety 17. Anti-corruption
4.  Waste 11. Labour standards in supply 18. Supply chain management
5.  Saving energy measures chain 19. Customer satisfaction
6. Use of raw materials and 12. Training and development 20. Customer privacy
packaging materials 13. Employee welfare
7. Compliance with laws 14. Inclusion and equal
and regulations relating to opportunities
environmental protection
1. RERBHK 8. EiiELH 15. FIEEKEEE
2. BERERE 9. HEKEE 16. REER
3. FK 10. BEREERZE 17. RES
4. FEEY 1. fEpEs TReE 18. HEEER
5. EigLIEIE 12. Fl R ER 19. BEFPmEE
6. FEARMHKBEDH 13. EEEA 20. BEFMLE
7. BTRBEREEEERER 14. HERFEHKS
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The Group prioritised the above-mentioned environmental, social AEBEZELREE FiliiRE L8 N EERN
and operating issues in terms of their importance to the Group’s EH AREEFZFABE M ESESNEEM -
stakeholders and business operations.

Importance to the Group’s stakeholders

and business operations ESG risks
HASBEFZEAEREBELNEEMS BE - HERERER

High = 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,14,15,16, 17, 18, 19, 20
Medium H 10, 11, 12,13

Low 1K 8,9

Based on the results of the Group’s materiality assessment, the RIEAREEBHNEEHT(EER  KAEFBE
Group would formulate and implement appropriate strategies to & & & i i & 5 B8 DA 85 8] & 8 R B 3 10 1y [
monitor and solve the identified issues and to achieve sustainable  FEIW EIR A[ B EFEE -

business development.

Contact Us Bk 4% 38 1

The Group welcomes stakeholders to provide their opinions and  AR&EBEEDNIFERMES R LiEs c B gt A
suggestions. You can provide valuable advice in respect of this #H{HEFANEFFERENRKIR AR A
Report or the Group’s performances in sustainable development T EL ¥ mBHIBHESER o

to our principal place of business.
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Environment

The Group acknowledges its responsibility to protect
the environment and it has implemented policies to
reduce emissions and improve the efficiency in the use of
resources. In addition, we regularly hold training activities to
raise employees’ awareness of environmental protection.
The contents of training include environmental pollution and
management conditions of the company, environmental
policies and guidelines, environmental laws and regulations
and other requirements, the company’s environmental
factors and management systems, and energy conservation
and emission reduction.

The Group’s operations are subject to certain environmental
requirements pursuant to the laws in the PRC, such as the
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC (FF 2 A R0
IRIBIREE), the Law of the PRC on Environmental Impact
Assessment (FF 2 A R A B IR I% & £ 51L& %), the Law
of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution
(P AR EMBE KIS HEPTAE), the Law of the PRC on
the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution (FF 2
AR FEFEKRFSEFGE%), the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Pollution From Environmental
Noise (H #E A R MBI IRIT R E )5 2 0778%) and the Law
of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste (H 2 A R 2 [ & 88 B 95 1R
BHRE).

These laws and regulations govern a broad range of
environmental matters, including air pollution, noise
emissions and water and waste discharge. The Group’s
business operations in the PRC should comply with laws
and regulations concerning the environment protection.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
Group did not record any non-compliance with applicable
environmental requirements that resulted in prosecution,
penalty, administrative fine or sanction being imposed
against the Group.
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A.1 Emissions
In order to comply with the applicable environmental
protection laws, the Group has implemented
environmental protection policies, reducing air and
water pollution, paper consumption, and electricity
consumption. During the year ended 31 December
2023, sources of the Group’s emissions mainly
included consumption of petrol and electricity
consumption.

U)

52

Air pollutant emissions

A1 HER

During the year ended 31 December 2023,
air pollutant emissions were mainly related to
petrol consumption for the use of the Group’s
self-owned vehicles, which contributed to the
emission of 286.5 kg (2022: 370.3 kg) of nitrogen
oxides (NOx), 0.38 kg (2022: 0.49 kg) of sulphur
oxides (SOx) and 27.5 kg (2022: 35.5 kg) of

respiratory suspended particles (PM).

Greenhouse gas emissions

SRBTERRRER AKBECE
FERRBE AR D =R BKFHR
MERHRARKEEE -BE_T
“=ETZA=T—RALFEE K
SEHRYO R EEBETUHHE

() Z=RTEDHER

B2 T _=F+-_A=+—
BIEFEE =853 WK
BREZHFEAAEEREAE
FTBFEM A mA R BEHN
AEAL P (NOx) 286.5 T 72 (=
T - —4#:3703F %) Hib
¥)(SOx) 0.38 F R (=T ==
F:049F 7)) RATRABEE
R (PM) 275 FRm(ZE==
355F ) °

(i) BERBEBHEN

Year ended 31 December

BE+t=-BA=1+—HILEE
2023 2022

——— e — —

—_—=<—— = ==

Emission (in tCO,e)

Scope of greenhouse gas emissions BEREHHEER HHE (M _S{thEE)
Scope 1 Direct emission EE1EEHER

Combustion of petrol for mobile vehicles 5 28 J7M 1¥ 12& 55.7 75.1
Scope 2 Indirect emission & [E 2 BN

Purchased electricity SNEE N 638.3 658.0
Total et 694.0 733.1
Note: B &

(1) Emission factors were made by reference to Appendix
27 of the Main Board Listing Rules and their referred

documentation as set out by the Stock Exchange, unless

stated otherwise.

EREERBRAT Fif 2023

() BRIEZFEERA TAERRES
LERZ TR _E AR B 827
RESEXFmES



During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group’s activities contributed to 694.0 tonnes
(2022: 733.1 tonnes) (0.01 tCO,/m?) of carbon
dioxide equivalent (carbon dioxide, methane,
nitrous oxide and hydrofluorocarbons) emission.
Details of the Group’s measures to reduce
the consumption of resources and the related
emissions are set out below. As a result of
these measures, the employees’ awareness of
reducing the consumption of resources and the
related emissions has been increased. Same as
the previous years, the Group did not receive
any complaints or warnings on greenhouse gas
emissions during the year ended 31 December
2023, and targets to achieve the same
performance in 2024.

Petrol consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group’s motor vehicles travelled approximately
206,565 km (2022: 222,498 km), which
consumed 25,204 litres (2022: 32,574 litres) of
petrol and contributed to 55.7 tonnes (2022:
75.1 tonnes) of carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions. To reduce the emissions arising from
petrol consumption, the Group encourages its
employees to use public transport when they
attend business activities. For business activities
that take place within walking distance, the Group
encourages its employees to walk or cycle to
the destination. The Group targets that its petrol
consumption in 2024 will not exceed the level
consumed during the year ended 31 December
2023.
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(i)

Electricity consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group consumed 781,383 kWh (2022: 805,549
kWh) of electricity (1,171 kWh (2022: 1,030
kWh) per employee) in connection with its daily
business operations, which contributed to 638.3
tonnes (2022: 658.0 tonnes) of carbon dioxide
equivalent emissions. To reduce the emissions
arising from electricity consumption, the Group
encourages its employees to switch off the lights
and other electricity appliances when they leave
the office and production premises. The Group
targets that its electricity consumption in 2024 will
not exceed the level consumed during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Hazardous waste

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group generated nil hazardous waste. The Group
has engaged a qualified waste collector to control
the generation of hazardous waste. The Group
will strive to maintain generation of hazardous
waste through upgrading technologies whenever
possible. Same as the previous years, the Group
did not receive any complaints or warnings on
disposal of its hazardous waste during the year
ended 31 December 2023, and targets to achieve
the same performance in 2024.
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(iv) Non-hazardous waste

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group generated a total of 10.1 tonnes (2022:
11.8 tonnes) of non-hazardous waste (0.01
tonnes (2022: 0.01 tonnes) per employee). The
major non-hazardous waste generated by the
Group were packaging materials, metal scraps,
paper waste, and sawdust, will be collected
and weighed before being recycled or sold to
recycling company. The Group regularly reminds
its employees to use resources efficiently and try
to avoid the generation of waste. As a result, the
employees’ awareness of waste management
has been increased. Same as the previous two
years, the Group did not receive any complaints
or warnings on disposal of its non-hazardous
waste during the year ended 31 December 2023,
and targets to achieve the same performance in
2024.

Water consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group consumed 75,166 m® (2022: 88,892 m?) of
water (112.7 m® (2022: 113.7 m® per employee)
in connection with its daily business operations.
To reduce the emissions arising from water
usage, the Group encourages its employees to
conserve water and remember to turn off the
water tap after use. As a result, the employees
has increased their awareness to consume water
usage. During the year ended 31 December
2023, the Group did not encounter any problems
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose. Further,
the Group did not consume a significant amount
of water that was and disproportional to the scale
of its business operations. The Group targets that
its water consumption in 2024 will not exceed
the level consumed during the year ended 31
December 2023.

(iv)
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A.2 Use of resources

In order to reduce use of resources in our daily
operations, the Factory maintains its operations in
accordance with the guidelines set forth under the
“Environment Management Policy and Objectives” and
“Administrative Measures for Energy Consumption”.
In addition, the “2017 Working Plan for Energy
Conservation and Emission Reduction” was formulated
and publicity and education activities were carried out
for the purposes of enhancing the awareness of energy
conservation and emission reduction among our
employees. At the same time, the Factory streamlined
energy-saving and emission reduction measures and
strived to reduce energy consumption and costs. To
improve work efficiency, the Factory established an
energy saving and emission reduction working group
to monitor the use of resources in the Factory and
implemented the policies of appropriate incentives and
penalties.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group’s business activities did not cause significant
adverse impact on the environment and natural
resources. The Group’s total consumption of electricity,
water and packaging materials during the year
ended 31 December 2023 together with the relevant
conservation measures adopted by the Group are
detailed in the section headed “A.1 Emissions” above.
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To further improve the use of resources, the Group RE—SPUSERER A&£EBE
takes the following actions on an ongoing basis: BERBUATITE

Item Measures

1BH it

Electricity saving (1) Minimize use of air conditioners by maintaining a minimum air

BT

Water saving
& A7k

Vehicle management

HIfER

Office supplies management
WARmER

conditioning temperature of 26° C in the office area
BEARAETRERFREEZARERR26ENRARE RS EH
% /8

(2) Reduce the lighting time by turning off all lighting equipment before
leaving office
BEGASE N ERIRABI PTG AR R - DUR D REAR

(8) Turn off the power of all devices before leaving office to reduce the
standby time of such devices

BEFMAZRAEAMARBNER WD ZEREOFHEEH

(1) Turn off the faucet immediately after washing hands
SEF 1RSI ENRER K BE SR

(2) Improve daily maintenance of water and heating pipelines to prevent
leakage of water
HEMOKMEEE BN B E#E - LAPI IERK

(8) Use recycled water for the spray-work painting booth located within
the Factory
TR A BB E 2 F A A 7K

(1)  Turn off air-conditioning and engine of vehicles when parked for a
long period to reduce oil consumption
= 5 ] 15 BB [ BT B2 0 0 22 SR AN 38 B DAL D i

(2) Formulate maintenance plans and regularly inspect vehicles
T A IS 5T 8N TE B iR S iR

(1)  Use recycled paper
{5 A 1B Y A o

(2) Use double-sided paper
RAEmETEH

(8) Promote paperless office by using electronic communications to
reduce paper
RBEFREMRVEREAE  REEHKLEHA

(4) Encourage personal use of drinking cups for less use of disposable
cups
SN A B A KR - R D — IR MK IR B i R

(6) Improve the purchase and distribution policies of office supplies by
prioritizing use of energy-saving and environmental products.
RABEEAOERRERNEN A ARNEE RS REEK

As a result, the Group’s employees are more aware of I AEEEEETHERMNAERNE
the importance of using resources efficiently. e
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A.3 The environment and natural resources

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s
business activities did not cause significant adverse
impact on the environment and natural resources. To
further improve the use of resources, the Group takes
the following actions on an ongoing basis:

e keep track of its consumption level of resources;

° review the effectiveness of its conservation
measures; and

e design improvement measures

As a result, the Group’s employees are more aware of
the importance of using resources efficiently.

A.4 Climate change

The Group manages the climate change risk with
reference to the recommendations of the Task Force
on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD), which
are structured around four core elements: Governance,
Strategy, Risk Management and Metrics and Targets.
The Board overseas the governance and reporting of
the Group’s climate change risk. Management of the
Group regularly monitors and identifies climate change
risk that is relevant to the Group’s business operations.
Strategies will be implemented on a timely manner to
mitigate such risk.

EREERBRAT Fif 2023
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
identified the following climate-related risks that
may have material impacts on the Group’s business
operations:

Physical risks

The increased frequency and severity of extreme
weather such as typhoons, storms and heavy rains can
disrupt the Group’s operations by damaging the power
grid, and communication infrastructures, and injuring
its employees during their work, leading to reduced
capacity and decreased in productivity, or expose
the Group to risks associated with non-performance
and delayed performance. To minimise the potential
risks and hazards, the Group has flexible working
arrangements and precautionary measures during bad
or extreme weather conditions.

Transition risks

The Group anticipates that there will be more stringent
climate legislations and regulations to support the
global vision of carbon neutrality. We acknowledge
the requirements to enhance the climate-related
information disclosures as a result of the recent update
of the ESG Reporting Guide in respect to significant
climate-related impact disclosures of an issuer. Stricter
environmental laws and regulations may expose
enterprises to higher risks of claims and lawsuits.
Corporate reputation may also be adversely affected
by the failure to meet the compliance requirements for
climate change. The Group’s related capital investment
and compliance costs may increase. In response to
the policy and legal risks as well as the reputation risks,
the Group regularly monitors existing and emerging
trends, policies and regulations relevant to climate and
be prepared to alert the Board where necessary to
avoid cost increments, penalties for non-compliance
and/or reputational risks due to delayed response.
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B. Social B.

B.1 Employment and labour practices
()  Employment

Total employees and turnover

The Group had a total number of 667 (2022:
782) full-time employees located in China as at
31 December 2023. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the Group closely monitored the
number of employees that were required to run
its business operations.

Set forth below are the distribution of the Group’s

employees as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 by
gender and age group:

As at 31 December 2023:

e
Bl1ERKREIER
i) &R

1ESABE R i K FE

RZE—=F+=—HA=+—8"
AEBEHFEE7T(ZZT - —4F:
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Distribution of employees by gender
RUEBBSNEE D HER

® Male B14#

Female %1

Distribution of employees by age group

BEERBRESNESSHIER

41-50
41-508%
16%

AU

31-40
31-40%%
27%

® 30 or below
30BREA T

® 31-40
31-40%%

EREIERBR A F3R 2023

Above 50
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3%

30 or below
305 T
54%

Above 50
50B%A
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As at 31 December 2022: N-TE-——FE+—-—A=+—§:

Distribution of employees by gender
RURB S HEE D MHIER

Female
2%
36%

.

Female Z1f @ Male E%

Distribution of employees by age group

BERRBSNEE S HIER

41-50

41-505% Above 80

14% . . 505% A
3%

| S

31-40 30 or below
31-407% 30BRELA T

31% 52%
@ 30 or below ® 31-40 41-50 Above 50
305R AT 31-405% 41-508% 505% A £
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According to the “Anti-Discrimination Policy”
of the Factory, the expertise of job applicants
will determine their employment status. The
remuneration, bonus, allowances and other
forms of subsidies payable by the Factory to our
employees are subject to their work performance,
expertise, and competence, regardless of their
sex, race, religious beliefs, age, disability, sexual
orientation, nationality, political views, social
status, social and racial backgrounds, and
other factors. The “Anti-Discrimination Policy”
also protects the rights and interests of female
employees, under which, marriage or pregnancy
discrimination is not permitted for employment
of women, and therefore no pregnancy test
shall be performed on any female job applicant.
The Factory shall make proper arrangements
to prevent the well-being of pregnant women
from being affected by work. In case that the
management or external service providers
are in violation of the “Anti-Discrimination
Policy”, they shall be subject to penalties. Our
employees may lodge complaints with our
administrative department via a complaint hotline
or the suggestion box, and the administrative
department will conduct a regular review each
week, launch investigation, and address any
violation if identified. During the Reporting Period,
the Group did not identify any complaint case
from our employees. During the Reporting Period,
the Group did not identify any complaint case
from our employees.

Set forth below is the Group’s employee turnover
rate by gender and age group:
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During the Reporting Period, the Group
understood that the turnover rate remained high.
In the future, we will step up the implementation
of measures to lower the employee turnover rate,
including reviewing the remuneration packages
within the industry, improving the respective
treatment and talent development mechanism,
and providing more training and assisting our
employees in preparing their career plan. In
addition, we will commit ourselves to improving
the management mechanism of the Group, while
cultivating the teamwork culture.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
identify any non-compliance case related to
employment.

Employee benefits and welfare

The Group enters into employment contracts
with its employees and the employment contract
terms were stipulated under the principles of
fairness, voluntarism, mutual consent, integrity
and credibility. The remuneration package offered
to employees includes salary, bonuses and other
subsidies. In general, the remuneration package
is based on each employee’s qualifications,
position, seniority and work performance. The
Group carries out an annual review system to
assess the performance of its employees, which
forms the basis of decisions with respect to salary
raises, bonuses and promotions.

During the year ended 31 December 20283,
the Group maintains social insurance for its
employees pursuant to the applicable PRC laws
and regulations by making contributions to the
mandatory social insurance and housing provident
funds which provide basic retirement, medical,
work-related injury, maternity and unemployment
benefits.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group complies with the Labour Law of the PRC
and did not experience any significant disputes
with its employees or any disruption to business
operations due to labour disputes. In addition,
the Group did not experience any difficulties in
the recruitment and retention of experienced core
staff or skilled personnel.

Labour standards

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there
was no child labour nor forced labour working
in the Group. The job application requirement
specifies that job applicants must be at least 18
years old. To ensure that job applicants can meet
the age requirement, identities of job applicants
are verified against their valid identity documents,
relevant permits and certificates.

The human resources department is required
to carry out background checks to authenticate
information provided by job applicants and
is required to fill in forms that confirm hired
employees have met the age requirement. If
child labour or forced labour is discovered, such
matter will be reported to the human resources
department and senior management. The
Group will enhance the relevant internal controls
to eliminate such matter. No material non-
compliance in relation to laws and regulations
regarding prevention of child and forced
labour was recorded during the year ended 31
December 2023.

Equal opportunity

The Group provides equal opportunities for
employees in respect of recruitment, job
advancement, training and development, etc.
Employees are not discriminated against or
deprived of such opportunities on the basis of
race, nationality, religion, physical condition,
disability, gender, pregnancy, sexual orientation,
political status, age and any other discrimination
prohibited by applicable law. Employees shall
not act in discriminatory manner or they can be
subject to disciplinary actions.
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(i)

)

Employee relations

The Directors consider that it is important to
maintain good relationship with employees.
The Group maintains regular communications
with its employees by arranging gatherings,
celebration activities and trainings. Through these
activities, the Group would collect feedback
from its employees on job satisfactions and
their expectations on the Group and would
implement appropriate strategies to improve the
work environment and its relationship with the
employees.

Employee health and safety

The Group places emphasis on occupational
health and work safety. It provides a safe
working environment and training sessions for its
employees to ensure that they can work safely. It
has also implemented a system of recording and
handling accidents. Further, the Group also has
dedicated personnel responsible for administering
the internal worker safety policies, providing
relevant training and education, and conducting
regular inspections. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the Group had not experienced
any material safety accidents or been penalised
for any non-compliance relating to work safety
laws and regulations.

(i)
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FY2023 & FY2022

“ERICZHHREER

Occupational health and safety data BREREREZZEE —E_BBEE
Work related fatality THERTE -
Work injury cases >3 days Z AU EMTESER -
Work injury cases <=3 days ZARUANIEER -
Lost days due to work injury THEEIRE -
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(iv) Development and Training

The Group’s various types of employee training
not only help employees improve their skills
sets and operational efficiency, but also provide
an opportunity for their personal development.
According to the “Human Resources
Management Procedure” for the Factory, the
administrative department shall formulate
training programs, under which, each employee
is required to receive position-related training,
including in-house and external training. Training
effectiveness will be assessed by written or oral
tests, hand-on operations, spot check and other
measures. Employees whose specific work has
significant impacts on the environmental and
occupational safety and health will be assessed
by the administrative department for their
qualifications, and the assessment scope will
cover their academic background, competence,
training, and/or qualifications. Such employees,
only if determined as eligible, will be permitted to
take up the position.

During the Reporting Period, the Factory focused
on training related to production safety, hygienic
practices and personal health, medical treatment
and first aid, and environmental protection.
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Set forth below is the number and percentage LT AREEREE (LR RE
of training hours completed by the Group’s BEEREID) KBRS RE
employees by gender and employee category: saNs AN

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-Z-=Ff+ZA=+t—-HLEFE

% of training

Male Female Total hours by

training training training employee

Employee category hours hours hours category

ZES

Rl &n

S prgid B

EEER I BN  AEIREY MBI

Senior management BRERE 68 24 92 3%

Middle Management HRETRE 196 32 228 9%

Other employees HmES 1,456 892 2,348 88%

Total st 2,586 1,575 2,668 100%
% of training hours by~ #&21E BII &1 5 1531

gender REMWE DL 64% 36%
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BT —F+_A=+—HAIEFE

% of training

Male Female Total hours by

training training training employee

Employee category hours hours hours category

BES

hE 5

S egd =EISE 8

EEER b= li53:01 B AIEIIRE BB

Senior management =mRER 77 29 106 3%

Middle Management HREE 262 50 312 8%

Other employees HEHmEg 2,247 1,495 3,742 89%

Total st 2,586 1,674 4,160 100%
% of training hours by~ &1 Bl &1 5 1531

gender KEME 62% 38%
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I B A 15 3| B

Period

Trainees Training Program Description

FIH R FIRE

Entry-level employees Various systems related to working hours, remuneration
FEET calculation, and remuneration package and fringe benefits

All-level employees

2EET

First-line managers
AEEEET

Employees who have access to
chemicals and warehousing staff
ERELERNEIRAEEER

Employees who have access
dangerous equipment
RLREREZE

Security personnel and emergency
staff
ERERKRENET

Manufacturing department
B3 5

EREERBRAT Fif 2023

TERSfE - TEFE IR - B8 &M e F &l =

Employee Manual, and factory-wide rules and regulations

BT FM - B4

Occupational health and safety, and environmental awareness

BEREZE RRER

Knowledge related to fire safety and counter-terrorism

HEE  RERZZAH

Hygienic practices and personal health, and medical
treatment and first aid

FEBEMEARERERSK

Pre-employment skills, on-the-job operations, product quality
control

R BT FRRE - RGIRIE EmEEES

Workplace hygienic practices and personal health and safety

BT

Fire safety knowledge and emergency escape drills

Y& 2 A E R SRR

Counter-terrorism knowledge

R % 2

Medical treatment and first aid

BESN

ISO9001 certification knowledge and product quality control
ISO9001 K1 38 M = om B & #22

Know-how on quality control

oo 1 A0

On-site management practices and 5S management system
RS ERBENRSSERER

Standards for Safe Access to Chemicals and Personal
Protective Equipment
tEm - HARERBELE2FERRERS

Safe Use of Dangerous Equipment

H SR 2 B RS AE

Emergency Know-how for Firefighters and Emergency Staff

el e 2 E M

On-site management practices and 5S management system
RS ERBENRGSERER
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B.2 Operating practices

U)

Supply chain management

The Group purchases raw materials and
equipment based on its own needs,
specifications, quality and safety performance of
equipment, reputation, after-sales service and
delivery time of the supplier. The Group compares
different suppliers to select qualified suppliers
(based on their product specifications, product
compliances, production management, quality
management, environmental friendliness and
also corporate social responsibility performances)
before the Group enters into contract with the
qualified suppliers.

When selecting equipment, the Group would
also consider whether the equipment is energy
efficient and environmental friendly. During the
year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has
384 suppliers located in the PRC and 2 suppliers
located in Europe.

The Group expects its suppliers to uphold the
ESG principles that the Group has adopted into
the management of its business operations.
In order to ensure that the components and
raw materials meet the requisite safety and
quality standards, the Group adopts stringent
criteria in supplier selection (including but not
limited to whether they provide high quality raw
materials, whether they maintain a high standard
on environmental protection and comply with
relevant laws on environmental issues, whether
price is comparable to market rate and location of
their factories) and continuously monitors existing
suppliers on an annual basis, based on criteria
such as product quality, product defect ratio,
delivery punctuality ratio and responsiveness.

Whether the supplier will continue to be included
in the Group’s list of approved suppliers depends
on the marks it achieved under annual evaluation.
The awareness of environmental protection is one
of the key criteria for the Group to evaluate the
suppliers.

B2 EEHER

()

e g e I

AEEREEHRHR  RE -
mERRBHOR R HE
BiEE ERRENIEEMHE
KERBRM RS - AEE
HEEREEERI LA WA
AEEeH TRERARER
EmRB EmAR L£EE
B -mEEH BRAREE
HEEERBFHLER EE
BREHLRER -

ERELER  AEETES
BZAERBEEENIRIR - &
EZE-_=F+=-A=+—H
LEFE AEEBE384% HIE
PR B - B WA ERNA
R BUM °

rEEFEHEBRTAKE
EEBEEEEAMKANER
B-HehERRA - SR
ZHHEMNRMHTEBANR
EMmERE KREEETUE
HEmERAREER (BHEE
TRAREERHEME LERNR
M REHREREERTS
R WETHERRREBED
AR EBRESREMESKEME
ELBEME) - WREEMm®
B EmBELR - REMNE
LERMEERENFRE  BF
ARAHREAKESRS -

HERSCTEBERMALEE
RANEEERE SIEF
EFHEFEGSHNOE - REER
BAREE AR EE RS

B —
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70

ERE

(i)

Product responsibility

Attaching great importance to product quality and
safety, the Group continues to monitor quality
and implement safety standards. The Group
strictly monitors the entire production process
from receipt of materials, production to product
shipment.

Materials required by the Factory for production
purposes include accessories, steel, etc., 95%
of which are raw materials that have received the
ISO9001 quality management system certification.
To manage materials, the Factory has formulated
the “Materials Inspection Instruction” to regulate
the quality inspection standards for materials so
as to ensure that no non-compliant materials
will enter the production processes. According
to purchase contracts, the inspectors will
verify whether the orders, subject matters,
specifications, quality compliance, and others as
set forth in purchase contracts are consistent.
If identified as compliant, such materials may
be warehoused. Any material identified as non-
compliant is required to be separated with a
label, which will not be warehoused or used for
production processes.

BEIEIRBRR AR Fik 2023

EmaE

rEESEREREERELE
BEEELEENEELRIRE -
AEFE RS EITEREEERIE
BEERN LEEZEMER -

TRAEEFR MBI e ER G -
& - H AP 05% K R AL E
15180 9001 B2 BB ZRE °
BEEME - TG &R
BIEEEEE | HEMBRER
B REETGBMEE

AEEIF -BREHESR -

RBEBEZEEE RKBESR
EMMZEEE BB MEEX

FRE—B HERARBEET

AAE-BRENTEEMAA
RBEIRE R TR/RAER

BREETRF-



Upon completion of products, the manufacturing
department is required to carry out inspection
work in accordance with the “PQC Operation
Instruction” and “Inspection and Test
Management Procedures”. The inspection scope
shall cover parts pending production, semi-
finished products, finished products not yet

stored and production samples.

Preparation Before Inspection

B A Y R TAE

In-progress Inspection

WA TV ELT

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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EmEKE HEBLEARE
[PQCIEXEEEE ] K [tai M
EREERRFIETRR - Em
MieREEeRARRALEN
TEAF - FRm o HARAES
B R A ER G o

Treatment upon Inspection

AR R B9 R 2

Ensure documents and inspection
instruments related to products
are all in place

HERZE ma AR S R imBr T B
il

Arrange inspection orders based
on the production processes,

delivery schedule, and production

progress
BRIF XNKERREEELER
ZBER SRR

Verify whether products are
consistent with those set
forth in orders

RHERESHEITBENE—

E4

Check items required for
inspection under the
standards

IR PT AR TE B L 1R IR B

Use proper equipment to
conduct various inspections
EAMEE RS ETR MR

The Factory emphasizes the disposal of non-
compliant products, in which case, products
identified as non-compliant will be disposed in
accordance with the “Non-compliant Product
Control Procedures”. The Factory has also
developed the “Product Recall Procedures”.
In case of any product sold to the market but
identified as having safety hazards, the Factory
will recall and deal with the same according to the
established procedures, ensuring product quality
and public safety. During the Reporting Period,
the Group did not identify any case related to
product recall.

Separate and isolate compliant
products and non-compliant
products

“eBmMtaRmo iR

B B

Box finished products and
complete the warehousing
procedures with labels and
QC marks attached

KK M TRABREF -
WRB IR E A QCIR AT

Prepare quality inspection
reports and arrange disposal
of non-compliant products

REEERBRBENTHR
EBAEm

THRERTARBHNESE &
BRTIARNERRRITERM
ZHIRRF I BRE - TRRINGIE [
mARRERF]  —BHBREAR
ERENEMAATS TR
SRR EREFALRREE - #
REREERARLE W&
HifE - AEBEYEEREIMAE
A B EE
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The Factory has prepared the “Procedures to
Use, Manage, and Control Product Certification
Labels”, under which, all certified products
must be attached with the certification labels
prior to their shipments. Use of compulsory
certification marks shall be in compliance with the
requirements under the Management Measures
on Compulsory Product Certification Mark. Use
of compulsory certification marks is not permitted
for uncertified products, non-compliant products,
and certified products that are modified without
certification by any certification body, none of
which therefore is permitted for shipment.

The Group places a high value on smooth
communications channels with our customers to
fulfil customer demands. Our complaint channel
enables our customers to submit complaints
and suggestions regarding service or commaodity
quality. According to our “Customer Complaint
Handling Procedures”, upon receiving customer
complaints, our sales department will e-mail
the relevant complaints to the quality control
department, while the quality control manager
will review such customer complaints before
appointing our quality engineers to launch
investigation into the said customer complaints.
The quality engineers will analyze the causes
and determine which department shall be held
accountable before the follow-up procedures
take place. The sales department will respond to
the customers in connection with the merits of
the complaint and corrective actions to be taken
or precautions to be implemented. In addition,
customer satisfaction in settlement results will
be surveyed until the relevant complaint is fully
resolved. During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not identify any customer complaint.

BEIEIRBRR AR Fik 2023

IHGEHEREERRSERE
BEHER]  FEEREEmM
E\Eﬁmﬁubuiwuuah‘uu o8
FIMERBEENFAAEE TR
HlEEGREFEFEEIEDN
RE - AREREFER T611K
mMEREEmETRARLE
AREHBERAITFEA
SR MR R - BRI ©

AREBSEETPEYIES K
BREE RMEBEPER-K
MHRERFREE REFPEXR
ERRE A mEENIRHFR
ER - BEIRFPEFEER
FFl o HEBWEEFIRFE
FRBERIRFATF AT
ANEZEREN HELES
BMEFPIKRFARE BEEME
I*%Eﬂi?fg)f'&aﬁmﬂﬁésﬂﬂ
STRESAREETH B
a‘BF‘ﬁaE TERBERE -HENE
HIRFRE KRR ERKTE
HRERERP  Z/NEREE
EFPFHEEHNRMEREE BEZE
KRIFTEMAR - HEHAB - K
EERFRAIMBELEF -



As part of good corporate governance maintained
by the Group, security of customer data is also
the key to cultivating a long standing trusted
relationship with our customers. To avert
information risk, effectively secure information,
and enhance the responsiveness of processing
information, the Factory has formulated the
“Corporate Information Management Measures”,
pursuant to which, in-house information regarding
our operations will be managed under various
security levels. In addition, publication guidelines
and directories for confidential information will be
established to ensure information is published
and communicated in a correct and controllable
manner.

In connection with advertising, the Group has
appointed legal advisors to provide legal opinions
and perform their duty of oversight. In case that
any advertisement is found false or exaggerating,
we will immediately cease to circulate such
false advertisement and eliminate the negative
effects by issuing a clarification announcement
accordingly. In the future, the Group will establish
advertisement management policies to enhance
our management of product responsibility.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
identify any non-compliance case related to
product responsibility.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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REZFERNLZZ2RAEE
BRREHLEER  URE
EFRFEVERROEHEENBRE -
BREBEERR BRRERE
BLE RARINREEREER
fﬁam IHESEIRAEEE
Bk - HREPEE (S BT
TEDREE VWEIEZE
BB i 5 S| B R 1L ﬁﬁwg,m
VAIE AT #5975 =X 3 BB IR

BEHE AEBEEEELERERB
MiRHEEEARBITESR
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Intellectual Property Rights and Information
Security

The Group registered various trademarks for the
Group itself and its products in the PRC, to foster
its corporate image. The Group relies on the
relevant laws and regulations to protect its brand
names, trademarks and other intellectual property
rights.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group was not aware of any material infringement
by the Group of any intellectual property rights
owned by any third parties. Further, there were
no pending or threatened material claims made
against the Group with respect to the infringement
of intellectual property rights owned by the Group.

Intellectual Property Rights and Information
Security

The Group registered various trademarks for the
Group itself and its products in the PRC, Germany
and Hong Kong to foster its corporate image. The
Group relies on the relevant laws and regulations
to protect its brand names, trademarks and other
intellectual property rights.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group was not aware of any material infringement
(i) by the Group of any intellectual property rights
owned by any third parties; or (ii) by any third
party of any intellectual property rights owned
by the Group. Further, there were no pending
or threatened material claims made against the
Group, nor had there been any material claims
made by the Group against third parties, with
respect to the infringement of intellectual property
rights owned by the Group.

EREERBRAT Fif 2023
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RIB - 18K

s 3

B /A

WwE oA

(iiy  Anti-corruption

(i) RES

Anti-corruption is already one of the basic
principles for the international community to
define corporate social responsibility. The Chinese
government has been playing an active role in
carrying out anti-corruption campaigns in recent
years. The Group adopts a zero-tolerance policy
on acts of corruption in any form, including bribery
and extortion, fraud and money laundering, by
undertaking that it conducts its business in an
honest, ethical and good faith manner. The “Anti-
corruption and Anti-bribery Control Procedures”
of the Group clearly stipulates that our employees
are prohibited from providing special treatments
and seeking any form of benefits from our
customers, suppliers or any business associates.
The Factory encourages our employees and
external stakeholders to report corruption
incidents, in which case, whistle-blowers will
be properly rewarded with their identities kept
confidential, and they will be provided with
personal protection and job security.

The Factory has specified the code of conduct
for our employees in its “Business Ethics and
Integrity Control Procedures” to demonstrate
the Group’s determination against employees
seeking personal gains by abusing their powers
or by taking advantage of their positions. All
employees at the Factory shall be required to
enter into the “Employee Undertaking”, and our
employee training also emphasizes the business
integrity policy and anti-corruption contents.
Any employee in violation of the business ethics
and integrity control procedures will be subject
to corporate penalties. To enhance cooperation
with suppliers on integrity, the Factory and our
suppliers have entered into the “Business Integrity
Cooperation Agreement” to clarify the rules to
prevent either side from committing bribery, as
well as establishing whistle-blowing procedures
for corruptive actions. Directors and employees
received training from time to time to ensure that
they comply and familiar with the anti-corruption
guides, policies and procedures of the Group.

RESELRBEERELERED
EHeHEENEARYZ—
PRI F R IR RIETTR
BS T AKEHIMER
MESTRERTERRARK
BREREKE R MEFRER
BoORHENBE -AaTERRK
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SEN [ RBRRAERESIRT
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B HEMEBERA LIRS
B RRBEMME - THK
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BESEN HERELTE
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During the year ended 31 December 20283,
the Group complied with all applicable laws on
prohibiting corruption and bribery of the PRC
and there was no concluded legal case regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees.

(iv) Data protection and privacy policy

The Group is committed to protecting the
privacy of its customers, employees, business
partners and suppliers by maintaining a safe
and secure data environment. The Group has
implemented appropriate policies to ensure that
all personal and business data collected during
the Group’s business activities are organised and
secured properly. Computers and servers are
protected from access passwords, Employees
are instructed of their responsibility to follow the
confidentiality code on the access to information
and to ensure the safekeeping of all personal,
customer and business data, trade secrets and
proprietary information. Employees are prohibited
from disclosing the information to unauthorised
parties.

B.3 Community investment

The Group acknowledges corporate social
responsibility and allocates resources to satisfy the
needs of the community. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the Group focused on environmental
protection as well as cultural and sport promotion.
The Group encouraged its employees to participate
charitable events. Going forward, the Group will
continue to focus on community needs and increase
its investment in community.

EREERBRAT Fif 2023
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The ESG Reporting Guide Content Index of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs

BERBEXZMBERABRE -
HERERREEIRERS

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration

TEHE - EH- Description RiEE - HEREARREEER
—REBERBRERES it 3-8 1)

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

BEIRERE

Governance Structure A statement from the board containing ESG GOVERNANCE
ERRE the following elements: ESG STRATEGIES

HEFSHLMNER  ShEF T

R :

() adisclosure of the board’s
oversight of ESG issues;
REEESHRE HehkEn
EHMEE

(i)  the board’s ESG management
approach and strategy, including
the process used to evaluate,
prioritise and manage material

ESG-related issues (including risks

to the issuer’s businesses); and
EEENRR HERECER
7 RS - BRI B
JIREBBENRRE HERE
BB EE (BEEEITAER
BER) BBRE &

(i)  how the board reviews progress
made against ESG-related goals
and targets with an explanation
of how they relate to the issuer’s
businesses.

EESNAERERE HERER
RS B R maEE - WREBT M
W] B EE 1T A TG B BE -

Reporting Principles
BEE % R Al

A description of, or an explanation on,

in the preparation of the ESG Report.
Ml MEEREBRE HLERER
¥ & B a0 e fE AR EE SRR A -

the application of the reporting principles

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
B HEREA
B B REA N

BEROE

REPORTING PRINCIPLES
B % = Al

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2023

7’



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RIE - tERERHE @)

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration

TEZE EM@ - Description RE - HEREARREEE
—REBRBREXRES it = 4-a e 3l

Reporting Boundary A narrative explaining the reporting SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD
b =t &0 boundaries of the ESG report and EEPN e

Aspect A1: Emissions
A1ETHE : BER
General Disclosure

— R

KPI A1.1
BSR4 B TZ A1

describing the process used to identify
which entities or operations are included
in the ESG report. If there is a change in
the scope, the issuer should explain the
difference and reason for the change.
REIRE - e NEIR M ENE R

C R PR L B BB E A
BRE e RERARSHIBRE - BE
HREEFANE  BHITAREETR
ZEREHRRA -

Information on:

BRABERIOAERBHR MKk L

WEEES AEREEEMNELSN

(@ the policies; and
126 33

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and
nonhazardous waste.
BFHETAREAZENHEHA
FERPIERNER -

The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.

BEm A MAARE DR -

EREERBRAT Fif 2023

A. ENVIRONMENT
IRIB

A.1 Emissions

HEM
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration

TEZE - EM@ - Description RE - HERERREEE
—REERBERENESE it 3-8 1]

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in A.1 Emissions — (i) Greenhouse gas
FAREBIEEAL2 tonnes) and intensity. emissions

KPIA1.3
RAREMIERALS

KPI A1.4
AR EBIEIZA1.4

KPIA1.5
RS A MIEIRALS

KPIA1.6
RRENIERALG

BERBHE () REE -

Total hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and intensity.
FEEEEEMES (LETE) RE
& o

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and intensity.
FMEXEEZEYRE CAMAE) RE
J_g o

Description of reduction initiatives and
results achieved.

R PR e R TS AR -

Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results
achieved.
HEEEEREZEMN L B
PEVFEIE R PTG AR ©

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2023

FER— (i) )& = = B HE AR
A.1 Emissions — (i) Hazardous waste
(Not applicable — Explained)

P — (i) B EREEY (T EB -
)

A.1 Emissions — (i) Non-hazardous
waste

PEL— (i) BMEEEY

A.1 Emissions

HER

A.1 Emissions — (i) Hazardous waste

PRI — (i) B EEEY)

A.1 Emissions — (i) Non-hazardous
waste

PEa— (i) B EREE YD
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs

FEHE - EBH-

—BREERBRENER

WwE oA

Description

g

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
BIE #HERERBEEE
—3:0 -1

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

A2EH : EREH
General Disclosure
— M=

KPI A2.1
FAR A B IR A2.1

KPI A2.2
RS A M IEIRA2.2

KPIA2.3
RAREMIERA2.3

KPI A2.4
RS A M IEIRA2.4

KPI A2.5
RS A M IEIRA2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw
materials.

BRFEAER(BEER KEREMER
MK BIBUER

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type in total and
intensity.

RENESNEER IHEEEIRA
HERTE -

Water consumption in total and intensity

BIEKEREE -

Description of energy use efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.
it ge R AT 8 RIS R ©

Description of whether there is any issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

USKREGE A KR EB B ERIEE -
AR ARS8 RPAERR -

Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and with
reference to per unit produced.
XA BEME R EE (ABTE
MEBEERBEGAE -

80 fmEgrEBRERAT #2023

A.2 Use of resources

BIREH

A.1 Emissions

HER

A.1 Emissions — (v) Water consumption

HERR—(v) K H#E

A.1 Emissions

PRI

A.1 Emissions — (v) Water consumption

HERR—(v) KH#E

Our activities do not create packaging
material in significant quantities
BANEBEHTEELERENEE
gL
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RIE - tERERHE @)

Subject areas, aspects,

general disclosures and KPIs

FTEHE E@H- Description
—REBRBRENES it

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
B #HERERBEEE
3-8 1]

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

ASEMH:  RERBRER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s
— M H R significant impact on the environment

and natural resources.

BEBETABRERBAREREKE

R EBHBUR o
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of
B IR B 1R AB.1 activities on the environment and natural

resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

R EBEHHRRERBAERNE
ARENREBRBERTEMENRNITE -

Aspect A4: Climate Change

AdfEE : RIREL

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation

— AR R of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer.
BRI R EHE RN HEITAE

TENEARGEBEENBR -

KPI A4 Description of significant climate-related
AR E IR A4 issues which have impacted and/or may
impact the issuer and the actions taken
to manage them.
HIER RIS HBETAELTE
MERRGEBEERELHTTE -

A.3 The environment and natural
resources

RELAAEIR

A.3 The environment and natural
resources
RERBARER

A.4 Climate change
RIRRL

A.4 Climate change
FIRBIL
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration

TEZE EM@ - Description RE - HEREARREEE
—REBRBREXRES it = 4-a e 3l
Aspect B1: Employment
B1EHE : EfE
General Disclosure Information on: B.1 Employment and labour practices
—RRBEE EAHINE R BERET I EBRERREBTITER
BRE - TE#E  Zal RERIA
NEMEFE KB
(@ the policies; and
126 -3 3
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits
and welfare.
BFHBETARERZENEHA
FEREDERONER -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by and gender, B.1 Employment and labour practices

A B 45 WUIE 1R B1.1

KPIB1.2
RS R M IE1RB1.2

employment type age group and
geographical region.

MR ERER - FEAER K&
EINHES A -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age
group and geographical region.
RMER - Fiedn kiR E| 5 ES
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— (i) Employment — Total employees
and turnover
BEMSEIER () ER—EE

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employment — Total employees
and turnover
BEMSIESR () ERFE—EE
BELREX
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE EE -
—REBRBRENES

Description

g

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
B #HERERBEEE
3-8 1]

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
B2EH : REEZ2
General Disclosure

—REE

KPI B2.1
MR AR R B2.1

KPI B2.2
AR E IEIEB2.2

KPIB2.3
FAREMIE1RB2.3

Information on:

FRRHZETIERERRERS

RBEBEN

(@ the policies; and
B R

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting
employees from occupational
hazards.
BFHETAREAZENHEHA
FERPIERONER -

Number and rate of work-related
fatalities.
TEXRT ABKRLEE-

Lost days due to work injury.
IEEIRE -

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

A PTER AR R 2 R 2 24
ARAEEHITRERTTE -
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B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employee health and safety
BB &5 THE AR — (i) B B 2 RE

ZE

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employee health and safety
B1E I 45 T % — (i) /2 B i fR iR
ZE

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (iiiy Employee health and safety
ERARETER—(i)EESRRER
agca

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employee health and safety
BEMSTIER—()EERRESR

.
ZFE
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RIE - tERERHE @)

Subject areas, aspects,

general disclosures and KPIs

FTEHE E@H- Description
—REBRBREXRES it

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
BIE #HERERBEEE
—3:0 -1

Aspect B3: Development and Training

B3EM : ¥R RKEI

General Disclosure

— R E

KPI B3.1
A2 AE 515 B3

KPI B3.2
FAR A 515 B3.2

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

BAEH : $THRE
General Disclosure

—RIWE

KPI B4.1
RSB AR B4

KPIB4.2
RARENIERB4.2

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training
activities.
FARAEERITIIEBRENMBK
KEEHIBUR © fltiBzJE g -

Percentage of employees trained by
gender and employee category.
BRUFIRESEANESNXIEER
L e

Average training hours completed by
gender and employee category.
BRURINRESERE D - BRKET
15 AR B

Information on:

BREAMIEE T kg $4ThH :

(@ the policies; and
BK K

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to

preventing child and forced labour.

BTHETABEATZENHEH
ERFOERER

Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid child
and forced labour.

it EREBONEEAREET
KIS T -

Description of steps taken to eliminate
such practices when discovered.
HMEERRERBEAGEREEER
PRERER A 25 5 o
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B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (iv) Development and training

ERESTER—(v)EBERE

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (iv) Development and training
EBRERBIER—(v)EE RS

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (iv) Development and training

EBIERS TEH— )RS

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employment
BELZIER-)ER

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employment
BERBIER—()ERE

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employment
BEIBIER—()ERE
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RIE - tERERHE @)

Subject areas, aspects,

general disclosures and KPIs

FTEHE E@H- Description
—REBRBRENES it

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
B #HERERBEEE
3-8 1]

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
B5fEME : ftEHEER

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and
— M H R social risks of the supply chain.

ERHEENRE R ERABREEK -

KPI B5.1 Geographical locations of major
A NIE1EB51 suppliers.
TEHE/[MIBLE -

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to
AR ENIBIEBS.2 engaging suppliers.
A AR At a1Efl -

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify
RS2 MHE1E B5.3 environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
R BRE B R R (R 2 RIRIRE
mRREEIER - LARABERITRE

RAE
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote
AR IEWIEIEB5.4 environmentally preferable products

and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and
monitored.

375 A skl FE 3 T (E IR B0 HO 3R 3R
RitgREbaaE R A RBEERITR
BERTE -

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Supply
chain management
REBHR-—(HEREERE

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Supply
chain management
REBER—(HEEEE

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Supply
chain management
KEER () ftEEERE

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Supply
chain management
REBER-—(HERERE

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Supply
chain management
REBHR-—(HERERE
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Subject areas, aspects,

general disclosures and KPIs

FTEHE E@H- Description
—REBRBREXRES it

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
BIE #HERERBEEE
—3:0 -1

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

B6EH: EmEME
General Disclosure

—MRIXEE

KPI B6.1
R E R B6.1

KPI B6.2
AR 4E 515 B6.2

KPI B6.3
FASEAE M 515 B6.3

KPI B6.4
BB IEIEIRB6.4

KPI B6.5
RS A 515 B6.5

86 fmE

Information on:

BAFMREERNRENRREL S -

BE BRENLEEEARMRTER

(@) the policies; and
BX K

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.
BTHBETABEAZENEH
FERPIERONER -

Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.
EEXCEXERBRTRR 2 ERE
RIEEBMAERKNEDLL

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are
dealt with.
BREBREmRMRBHRFEHE AR
eI 5% o

Description of practices relating to
observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

Rt EEFAREABERBENER -

Description of quality assurance process
and recall procedures.

ot E R B & 2 an B AR Fr o

Description of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
MAUHEEERRERILERE - A
NIRRT RER X -

BEIEIRBRR AR Fik 2023

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Product
responsibility

TEER—(\EREE

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Product
responsibility
KEBR—(EmBE

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Product
responsibility

RERHR—(EREE

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Product
responsibility
KEBR—(ERBE

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Product
responsibility

KEER—(EmEE

B.2 Operating practices - (iii) protection
and privacy policy

£ R — (iil) (R [E R AL B R
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE EE -
—REBRBRENES

Description

g

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
B #HERERBEEE
3-8 1]

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
B7EE: RES

General Disclosure
—REE

KPI B7.1
RS A M5 1R BT 1

KPI B7.2

BB A8 IR B7 .2

KPI B7.3
AR B UIEIZEBT.3

Information on:

BEM LB PR HEFROEREN

(@ the policies; and
BE K

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
BFHBETARERZENEHA
ERRERNER -

Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.

R EHEHBETAIEERDLE
BRENESFARRITHBE LRFAER -

Description of preventive measures

and how they are implemented and
monitored.

By S8 b AR BRI T RES R 0% ©

Description of anti-corruption training
provided to directors and staff.
fHimEE k8 TRENRETED -

B.2 Operating practices — (jii) Anti-
corruption
KEER—(VRES

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Anti-
corruption

&R — (i) BT

B.2 Operating practices — (jii) Anti-
corruption

REFHR—(IRES

B.2 Operating practices — (jii) Anti-
corruption

BB — (i) R &S
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RE - HERER

Subject areas, aspects,

general disclosures and KPIs

FEHE - EBH-
—REERBRERIER

WwE oA

Description

g

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
BIE #HERERBEEE
—3:0 -1

Aspect B8: Community Investment

B8EMH ::  HtERE
General Disclosure
— M=

KPI B8.1

7 #4515 B8. 1

KPI B8.2
FAREMIERB8.2

Policies on community engagement

to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’
interests.

Bt RS T BT AR
SR B R 35750 Eh R M At (& R &R Y
K -

Focus areas of contribution (e.g.
education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).
X EREE (HE - BIREE 5
BOEK  BE XXt 85) -

Resources contributed (e.g. money or
time) to the focus area.
TEITHBMBAER (N ELE
fE) o
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B.3 Community investment
rREKRE

B.3 Community investment

HERE

B.3 Community investment

HERE



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHE

The Directors are pleased to present to the shareholders of
the Company the annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Principal Activities

The Group is principally engaged in the business of (i) offering
comprehensive assembling and production services of PCBA
in the PRC integrating research and design, selection and
procurement of raw materials, assembling of PCBAs, quality
control, testing, logistics and aftersales services; and (i) Financial
Application Platform and Platform Maintenance Services. Details
of the principal activities of the Company and it’s subsidiaries
are set out in note 1 and note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year is set out in the
sections of Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and
Analysis, Environmental, Social and Governance Report and the
paragraphs below. The Group complies with the requirements
under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules
and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) for the
disclosure of information and corporate governance. The Group
also complies with the requirements of Employment Ordinance
and ordinances relating to occupational safety for the interest of
employees of the Group. No important event affecting the Group
has occurred since the end of the year.

Key Risk Factors

The following lists out the key risks and uncertainties facing the
Group.

Concentration of customers

The Group has a concentration of customers and any decrease
or loss of business from these major customers could adversely
and substantially affect our operations and financial conditions.

Fluctuations in the price of raw materials
Fluctuations in the price of raw materials may affect our cost
of sales and adversely affect our business operations and
profitability.

EEZEMARAARARRREZHE_T_=F
T_A=1T - BULFENFRERELRA
K -

REEXZ(RPBEILERESSHE &

R RHRIE R - PCBASERD - B 2147 %‘J
BIER - Wm R & 1% RS H) 2 H PCBA R B & A4
ER%: RiyemERATeRTa#ERY -
ARG REMBARNEEXEBFBHNE
BRI M3

O
AEBAFENEHBLOBEINEIFERS
EEMmLON RE  HERENR $|§:‘:1«M§2
TX#E - AEEETEER AR - LR
ARBSEMEGEN(EFEBMEEMN]) A
ARBEERRERERANRE -AEENE
STREIGRE MBET 2 REARMIOEE - A
REXAEEESENESZ - BANFERLEHRE
BAEHAGEAYENERSEF -

TERBRREZE

XA HEAEBE RN T 2RER N T EERE

EF &S
REBNEP&EF REZZFFETFPONE
o] 25 75 R 2> 50 2k AT 1 3k P B0 A8 & I B 75 iR
PUER AN R ERZE -

R BHE S K B
R EHER KBS ERFIHEEMA - £
MEEMNEBELRBNENELETNEE -

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2023 89



REPORT OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
BEEERE @)

Fail to anticipate and respond to technology
changes

If our Group does not quickly respond to the rapidly changing
and rigorous needs of our customers or enhance the scope
of our existing EMS that can respond to advanced technology
changes or our customers’ needs, our competitive position,
profitability and business prospects may be adversely affected.

Trade protection measures and trade disputes
between the United States and the PRC

The uncertainties on the trade restriction policies resulting from
the trade disputes between the United States and the PRC may
cause difficulties for our customers to project their purchasing
plans and may cause them to reduce their orders from our
Group.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers
through various means and channels, including usage of
business intelligence to understand customer trends and needs
and regular analyse on customer feedback. The Group also
keep ourselves abreast of the development of latest technology
advancement in the industries.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
and the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 118 to 123.

The Board does not recommend payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BEIEIRBRR AR Fik 2023

ORTERT I B BRI E

WASEELZAREREEFHEEE RER
MER  AHHEENRTERAETELFR
BARPIRBEMSHEE - BIFFIAVR %7]
BNENREBHRXNEZ B THEE

BEZRERERPEXEZ MG
TXESHUDEHE SR HIBRNTHEE M

REEHHMNET S HATRARENRE S -
WA BHBEF R RALE AT E -

AEEEBTRAEERREFEAAETLH

Eﬁﬁ&“ﬁ @%ﬂ%?ﬁ% BTMEPB
ERFE  AEMOMELRE - AEE IR

T ﬁ@ﬁ%a’m%ﬁ&ﬁﬁéﬁ EPA

EERRE
AEBHE T _=ZF+_-_A=+—HIHF
EHEEUNARNGEAEBRZBNER
RRNENE 18T 123 E B B HRK o

ExgefERRNEBEC
=+ —BLEFENRBRE

ME - BERRE

T-_=F+=A
(2T —F: )

FEERFRNYE BERRBEDFEE
HRRA BISMRM 14 -

fig 2
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Closure of the Register of Members

For the purposes of determining the shareholders’ eligibility to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be
held on 27 May 2024 (Monday), the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 22 May 2024 (Wednesday) to 27
May 2024 (Monday), both days inclusive. The latest time to lodge
transfer documents for registration will be at 4:30 p.m. on 21 May
2024 (Tuesday). During the above closure period, no transfer of
shares will be registered. To be eligible to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong before
4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 21 May 2024.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s article of association or the laws of Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the Reporting Period.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in the note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Management Contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company or its subsidiaries were
entered into or existed during the year.

T EREROBFERTFE
ABREETREFAEREBEARABEN -Z
“HWHFRA-+ER(EH ) BITHNERERK
HBEFRGIRE LRI ARAFER=F
ZHMFEFRAZ+ZH(EHZ)E-Z_MF
AFAZ+tBH(EH—) (2EaRmA) H
MEEHEROBEFELFE - BERXBFPX
HUREERCHSRENENA S _MEHA
—t+—BEHD) TTFEHR=+5 R i
LRt EETRNERZE - BFAE
BEREEREBFAGETREG ERR AT
EBRFXHEREERERBERBMBEAER
—E-PNFERA-T—HEH D) TFUE
ST HRREARARNEERNDBLERLD
BREERAFELARAR MUt AR EER
E16HERESRMP L17E -

BrBEERE
ARABHEREN NSRS ERHES
MELHEEO R BEAARARER
e OIMBRERFIR 2 SR -

BE BOxUHEAQF LHRES

BEXHBEESN  RERBARARLE
AR AR E M E AR E
7 ETES -

(A
ARAREAKRERFEANHEEBFE D 5
HNRA P BMRM T2 RERARAZBK -

EEEW
AR TR SN - AR FRE R AT

VEFEEHEERKEARAREMBE R
A2 MHERMERILDEHNEL -
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Major Suppliers and Customers

During the Reporting Period, sales to single largest customer
of the Group and the five largest customers of the Group in
aggregate accounted for approximately 22.6% and 83.8% (2022:
approximately 27.4% and 81.8%) of the total revenue of the year,
respectively. During the Reporting Period, purchases from the
single largest supplier of the Group and the five largest suppliers
of the Group in aggregate accounted for approximately 20.5%
and 49.4% (2022: approximately 16.6% and 45.6%) of the total
purchases of the year, respectively. None of the Directors of the
Company or any of their close associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Hao (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhang Bizhong

Mr. Xu Shizhen

Ms. Li Bigiong

Mr. Hao Xiangjun

Non-executive Director
Mr. Yuan Shuntang (resigned on 1 September 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund

Ms. Mu Lingxia

Mr. Huang Jianfei

92 mmeERERAT 5 2023
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RmEE MASEE —SATPREAS
BERAAEFPHEEREA LD IMEFANEKE
#4922.6% 5 83.8% (— T = —4F : #)27.4% &
81.8%) - RBEHM KEAEEE —HK
HEBIAEELAHEGNEREES LS
BT FARFEEREA20.5% Kk 49.4% (=&
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In accordance with article 108(a) of the Articles of the Company,
every Director shall retire from office once every three years and
for this purpose, at each AGM one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest one-third but not less than one-third
shall retire from office by rotation. The Directors to retire in every
year will be those who have been longest in office since their
last election but as between persons who became Directors
on the same day those to retire shall (unless they otherwise
agree between themselves) be determined by lot. Subject to the
Articles, a retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election at the
meeting at which he or she retires. For avoidance of doubt, each
Director shall retire at least once every three years.

In accordance with article 112 of the Articles of the Company, at
any time or from time to time, the Board shall have the power to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
on the Board or as an additional Director to the existing Board
subject to any maximum number of Directors, if any, as may be
determined by the members in general meeting. Any Director
so appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until
the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any Director so
appointed as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the first annual general meeting of the Company after
his appointment and be eligible for re-election at such meeting.
Any Director so appointed by the Board shall not be taken into
account in determining the Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation at an annual general meeting.

Accordingly, Mr. Li Hao, Mr. Zhang Bizhong and Ms. Mu Lingxia
will retire from office as Directors by rotation at the 2024 AGM
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2024
AGM.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 17 to 24
of this annual report.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial term of one year to
three years. All the service agreements may be terminated by
either party by giving to the other party not less than one month’s
or three months’ prior notice in writing.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term one
year. All the appointment may be terminated by either party by
giving to the order party not less than one month or three months
prior notice in writing.

Apart from the foregoing, no Directors proposed for re-election at
the AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
or compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Indemnity of Directors

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for
the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year.

Directors’ Interests In Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, no transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance to which the company, or any of its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a director of the company or his or her connected
entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

There was no contract of significance to which the Company, its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company (“Director” or “Directors”)
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the Reporting Period or at any time during the
Reporting Period.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions In Shares, Underlying
Shares And Debentures

As at 31 December 2023, interests or short positions in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) held by the Directors and chief executive of the
Company which have been notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or have been
entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for are as follows:

() Interests in our Company

EERRSTRAESRKRY - HEA
RoRBEEENEERKXS

RZTE-_=FE+_"A=+—H ARFESF
MESITERABRARR RETAHEEERE (F
ZREBHFRBEEGEXVER) RS - HHEK
HDREEETFHRBECREZFRBEKRIE
XVEBE 7 R 8D EMEG AN DR R R Ayt a
AR (BIERIEZAE LSS EBIEH
RASBRIERENERERAR) KELARR
AIIRIE B 5 & HR B 160156 352 k17 & My = s it
RERBEIZETAZSITANE AR R LB AT
mRERSAR T ¢

() RAQXTWES

Number of Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest Shares" shareholding (%)
EEsE ERMtE BROEEO R E D (%)
Mr. Li Interest in a controlled corporation® 99,881,250 (L) 39.95
2S5k M EE R
Mr. Zhang Interest in a controlled corporation® 27,543,750 (L) 11.02
SRSTHE R EE RO
Notes: BT

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2)  These Shares are held by Skyflying Company Limited (the “Skyflying”).
Skyflying is wholly owned by Mr. Li. Mr. Li is also the sole director of
Skyflying. Therefore, Mr. Li is deemed or taken to be interested in the
Shares held by Skyflying under the SFO.

(8)  These Shares are held by Realtime Limited (the “Realtime”). Realtime
is wholly owned by Mr. Zhang. Mr. Zhang is also the sole director of
Realtime. Therefore, Mr. Zhang is deemed or taken to be interested in
the Shares held by Realtime under the SFO.

(1) FEILKRZALREOOER -

(2 #Z % K /B Skyflying Company Limited
([ Skyflying |) ¥ & o Skyflying g &= % &= 2 &
A o % 5 1 7B Skyflying B0 ME — B 3 o [ U,
BIEFEH RGO - ZEEWRARE (EH
A Skyflying FT#5 B& {7 K #E 2 ©

(3) #Z =M 1D M Realtime Limited ([ Realtime ]) #
A cRedtime R EEZERA - REENA
Realime MM —E £ - At - RIBEFHFRBAE
{5l - 5% 5T £ AR A3 E YEHE A Realtime AT HF
A&7 B fE 2
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(ii) Interests in the ordinary shares of associated
corporation

(i) REBZENEBROER

Name of

associated Number of Percentage of
Name of Director corporation Nature of interests shares™  shareholding (%)
EEss HEEE AR EEMtE RGOEEO KRB 2 (%)
Mr. Li Skyflying Beneficial owner 1L 100
FhAE ERnBBA
Mr. Zhang Realtime Beneficial owner 1L 100
R HE E=EEA
Note: Bt 5E -

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the
relevant associated corporation.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company and/or any of their respective associates had
registered any interests or short positions in any shares and
underlying shares in, and debentures of, the Company or any
associated corporations as at the date of this report, as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the
Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debenture

Saved as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures”, at no time during the Reporting
Period and to the date of this report was the Group a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire by means
of acquisition of shares in, or debt securities, and including
debentures, of the Group or any other body corporate.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Others’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares

So far as the Directors are aware, as at the date of this report,
the following corporations/persons (other than our Directors
and chief executives of the Company) had interests of 5% or
more in the issued Shares which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336
of the SFO:

FTERREHEMATRARS RE
FARONESR KRR

BEEMM RARSEH  UTEE AL
(RRREFRESTHRABRIN RE#IT
B R EAREES RAERMIFXVEF2
Ko 373 BREVRSCZR A AN A A) e B SR P FE Bk RS
AR RBIRERE 77 R E GROIE 3B IRAFE
BV ERL M A H9 5% S IA EHESS ¢

Number of
Shares held/
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest interested Percentage (%)
BE HEEER
IR A EHEME HR S B B2 (%)
Skyflying Beneficial owner 99,881,250 39.95
EmEAA ordinary Shares
99,881,250 & & i@ A%
Realtime Beneficial owner 27,543,750 11.02
E=EA A ordinary Shares
27,543,750 % I B A%
Ms. Chen Juan Interest of spouse 27,543,750 11.02

RIBLZ L (L

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued
share capital of the Company, other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company, as at the date of this report which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

ordinary Shares
27,543,750 % & X

B EXFTIREES  RARS B - SIEAR
AEENZESITHRABMIMIALTHMEARRF] -
HEe#TBRAREEMNEMARER LY
BIRBIFEXVERS 2 & 377 8P A R A AR 2 AR
BEHEBEEEIAR RRARRARERE S
KB 5P 5 336 (R A7 BB RO M AV R RE 1

SE =B U AN
BIKR °
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Arrangement for Directors to Purchase
Shares or Debentures

Saved as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” above and in the section “Share Option
Scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director of the Company or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were such rights
exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of Shares in, or debt securities (including debentures)
of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interest in a Competing Business

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates has
engaged in or has any interest in any business that competes or
may compete with the business of the Group, or has any other
conflict of interest with the Group during the Reporting Period
and up to the date of this report.

Mr. Li and Skyflying (together the “Controlling Shareholders”),
had entered into a non-competition deed dated 20 September
2019 (the “Non-competition Deed”) in favour of the Company
(for itself and on behalf of all members of the Group), pursuant
to which, each of the Controlling Shareholders would not, and
would procure his/its associates not to (other than through the
Group or in respect of each covenanter (together with his/its
associates), as a holder of not more than 5% of the issued shares
or stock of any class or debentures of any company listed on any
recognized stock exchange) directly or indirectly carry on, engage
or otherwise be interested (in each case whether as shareholder,
partner, agent or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or
otherwise) in any business which may be in competition with
the business carried on by the Group from time to time, except
where the Company’s approval is obtained.
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In order to ensure the Controlling Shareholders have complied
with the Deed of Non-competition, each of the Controlling
Shareholders has provided to the Company a written confirmation
(i) in respect of his/its compliance with the Non-competition Deed
for the Reporting Period : (ii) no personal interests were ever
declared by any Controlling Shareholders who are also Directors
at the Directors’ meetings : and (iii) stating that they have not
entered into any business which may be in competition with the
business carried on by the Group from time to time. As there
was no change in terms of the undertaking since the Company’s
listing on the Stock Exchange, the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company are of the view that the Controlling
Shareholders have complied with the Non-competition Deed and
no matters are required to bring to the attention of the public.

Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme was conditionally adopted on 20
September 2019 (the “Share Option Scheme”), which became
effective on the Listing Date. The Share Option Scheme is a
share incentive scheme and is established to recognise and
motivate the contributions that the eligible participants had or
may have made to the Group.

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, grant options to any
employee (full-time or part-time), consultant or adviser of our
Group, Directors, shareholder of our Group, or any supplier,
customer, business partner or service provider of our Group
(together, the “Eligible Participants” or each “Eligible Participant”).

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Share Option
Scheme, the maximum numbers of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the
Shares in issue as at the Listing Date (i.e. 25,000,000 shares)
unless approved by the shareholders of the Company. The 10%
limited may be renewed by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting from time to time provided always that the 10%
limited so renewed must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
at the date of approval of such renewal by the shareholders of
the Company.

RERERRRETIRFRE  SERK
REMARRSEER : (AR S HEEF
PEFRE  (\ARETESNZERBRT G
RESEZ EERTMEEANDS  R&i)EKF
I B4 EAE (] A] BE R AR A B B R A0 3 75
BFRNER - AR B AR A RBERAT £ IA
RAHGRLBELE ARRELFATE
ERRERBRCETTIRFREAYES
TRBRNRIEE

BT E
BRESER_Z-NFAA-_THERK
R ([t El]) - REmBAMAEN -
FEAERT & 8 —TH ) BB 8 B AR
LBBERAIEGHAREIELERMNAE
REEE -

EXeR2RBBRAERTARE (TR
HFB)  AEERBAXFBAA BEF AL
BRRRAEBEEREER TP FBHBH
IRBEER (RHIAER2EE]) RERE
P HE

RIEE R S MG R RIGH - BRIEEAR
AR B HLE - BRI AR IR B AR R AT &) R AE (A
HEAET SR H B IRERT S RN &ERROEE -
AHETBBBN T HEEZTARADE10% (B
25,000,000 & B 17) ° 2N A &) AR 3R A 1S B 74 AR
RAE LEF10%REE - EFHEA10%R
BT ESBBARAREMEZEENE
HEZITIRMDEI10% °

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2023 99



REPORT OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEERE @)

No option shall be granted to any Eligible Participants which, if
exercised in full would result in the total number of the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options already
granted or to be granted to such Eligible Participant under the
Share Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled, and
outstanding share options) in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant exceeding 10% in aggregate of
the shares in issue as at the date of such grant.

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Directors, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years from the date of adoption and
the remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is approximately 5
years and 6 months.

No share option has been granted under the Share Option
Scheme up to the date of this report.

Related Party Transactions

Details of material related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Connected Transactions

On 21 August 2023, the Disposal Vendor, the Disposal
Purchaser , and the Target Company entered into the
Agreement, pursuant to which the Disposal Vendor has agreed
to sell, and the Disposal Purchaser has agreed to acquire the
entire equity interest of the Target Company, at the consideration
of RMB1.0. The Disposal Purchaser indirectly owns 40% of the
registered capital of Regan Financial Information. Therefore, the
Disposal Purchaser is a connected person of the Company at the
subsidiary level according to Rule 14A.06(9) of the Listing Rules.
Detailed information please refer to the announcement of the
company dated 21 August 2023.
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Future Prospect and Development

With reference to the Prospects section of the Chairman’s
Statement, the Group will continue to diversify or expand our
customer base and keep pace with the latest technologies to
deliver PCBAs that can be applied to our customers’ innovative
electronic products and provide engineering solutions to our
customers. We will continue to strive a balance among the
interests of shareholders, employees and customers, and pursue
long-term and sustainable development for the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 20
September 2019 with terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules for the
purpose of to making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and removal of the external auditor, to review the
financial statements and related materials and provide advice
in respect of the financial reporting process, and to oversee the
internal control procedures and risk management of our Group.
The Audit Committee now comprises three members, all being
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wong Chun
Sek Edmund (Chairman), Mr. Huang Jianfei and Ms. Mu Lingxia.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the audited annual results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Auditor

Mazars CPA Limited, the auditor of the Company, will retire at
the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM of the Company and be
eligible to offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will
be submitted to the AGM to be held on 27 May 2024 (Monday)
to seek shareholders’ approval on the appointment of Mazars
CPA Limited as the Company’s auditor until the conclusion of the
next AGM and to authorize the Board to fix their remuneration.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 20
September 2019 with terms of reference in compliance with the
Code for the purpose of making recommendations to the Board
on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to the
Directors and senior management of our Group, to review and
evaluate their performance in order to make recommendations
on the remuneration package of each of the Directors and
senior management personnel as well as other employee benefit
arrangements. The Remuneration Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Mu Lingxia
(Chairman), Mr. Huang Jianfei and Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 20
September 2019 with terms of reference in compliance with the
Code for the purpose of making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors and the management of the
Board succession. The Nomination Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Huang Jianfei
(Chairman), Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund and Ms. Mu Lingxia.

Corporate Governance Practices

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the publicly available information and to the best of
the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, the Company
had maintained sufficient public float of not less than 25% of its
total issued shares as required under the Listing Rules during the
Reporting Period and to the date of this report.
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Model Code for Securities Transactionsby Lt §§ TAEZETESFRZIW
5

Directors of Listed Issuers Z X< A

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 7N A &) & ¥R 49 - T 3R BI M 4% C3 AT s 12 e <7
C3 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Bl - tEBEEZHEITEARRL %E’Jﬁ%#ﬂu &
directors’ securities transactions. All Directors of the Company ZAAFIEH EEEHE  AAF L E %%ﬁﬁ
have confirmed that, following specific enquiry by the Company, REZERHREHBMEEZARE EI Hﬂ BHHE
they have compiled with the required standard set out in the — 1ZXE<F Bl & 4R E1Z % o

Model Code during the Reporting Period and to the date of the

FFFF

report.

By order of the Board AEEGm

Li Hao FEFHTESE
Chairman & Executive Director Z ok

Hong Kong 5

27 March 2024 —EMNE=A=++tH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

m azars MaAzARs CPA LIMITED
FERR (F8) atisB/MaRL =

42nd Floor, Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BB BEE18RPIRESA2E

Tel &5 : (852) 2909 5555

Fax f8H : (852) 2810 0032

Email £ : info@mazars.hk

Website #4831t : www.mazars.hk

To the members of Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 118 to 251, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group at
31 December 2023, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue recognition for the provision of
electronic manufacturing services (the
“EMS”)

Refer to Notes 2 and 4 to the consolidated Our key audit procedures to assess the revenue recognition for the
provision of EMS included the following:

financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December
2023, revenue from the provision of EMS
of approximately RMB264,457,000 was
recognised in the Group’s consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Revenue from the provision of EMS is
recognised over time over the contract
period using the input method which is
based on the proportion of the actual
inputs deployed to date as compared to
the estimated total inputs to measure the
progress towards complete satisfaction of
the performance obligation.

We identified the revenue recognition for
the provision of EMS as a key audit matter
because the amount involved is significant
to the consolidated financial statements and
the Group’s management used significant
judgements and estimations to determine
the total inputs deployed.

106 EmemsmRERAT £ 2023
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understood and evaluated the key controls in respect of revenue
recognition for the provision of EMS and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatements by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty, in particular, the estimated total inputs deployed, and
other inherent risk factors;

performed retrospective review, on a sample basis, by comparing
previous estimates to actual outcome and evaluated the outcome
of prior period assessment of revenue recognition to assess the
effectiveness of management estimation process;

examined, on a sample basis, the sales contracts with customers
and identified the terms and conditions relating to the timing of
transfer of controls of services, to assess the Group’s revenue
recognition policies with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

checked, on a sample basis, the transaction price of the revenue
recognised during the year for the provision of EMS to the
underlying sales invoices and sales contracts;

tested, on a sample basis, the actual inputs deployed for the
provision of EMS during the year by checking to underlying
supporting documents in relation to direct material costs, direct
labour costs and overhead costs incurred;

compared, on a sample basis, the estimated inputs deployed of
selected sales contracts to the actual inputs deployed of similar
sales contracts completed and enquired the Group’s management
about any significant variances identified; and

recalculated, on a sample basis, revenue recognised from the
provision of EMS during the year based on transaction prices,
the total actual inputs deployed and the total estimated inputs
deployed on completion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Provision for write-down of inventories,
net

Refer to Notes 2 and 19 to the consolidated Our key audit procedures to assess the provision for write-down of
inventories included the following:

financial statements.

At 31 December 2023, the Group had
inventories, net of provision for write-
down of inventories, of approximately
RMB17,987,000. The net provision for
write-down of inventories was approximately
RMB662,000 at 31 December 2023 and
the Group recognised the reversal of write-
down of inventories, net, of approximately
RMB3,069,000 during the year ended 31
December 2023.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value in the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group is operating in a market
where customers’ demands is driven by
technology advancement. The Group
keeps its inventories levels based on
customers’ orders and expected future
market demand. There is a risk that the net
realisable value of inventories may fall below
their respective cost as a result of changing
in customers’ demand because of changing
in technologies.
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(@

understood and evaluated relevant controls over management’s
periodic reviews of provision for write-down of inventories and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and other inherent risk factors;

assessed whether the inventory write-down policy is appropriate
with reference to the Group’s current circumstances and the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

tested, on sample basis, whether the inventory write-downs at
the reporting date are calculated on a basis consistent with the
Group’s inventory write-down policy by recalculating the inventory
write-downs based on the percentages and other parameters in
the Group’s inventory provision policy;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

The Group operates in a market where new
products releases are regular. There is a risk
that inventories held will become obsolete/
slow-moving considering technological
advancement and changing market
conditions. The Group’s management
identifies obsolete/slow-moving inventories
as a result of technology change, and then
applied allowances on those inventories
by considering the respective recoverable
amounts.

The Group’s management regularly reviews
the inventory aging and other relevant
factors, including the current market
conditions and technologies and inventories
held, to identify slow-moving and obsolete
inventories and assesses the level of write-
downs of inventories required at the end of
each reporting period with reference to the
latest transaction prices.

We identified the provision for write-down of
inventories as a key audit matter because
the inventories balance is significant to
the consolidated financial statements, and
there is a significant degree of management
judgement involved in determining the
provision for write-down of inventories.
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©

performed retrospective review, on a sample basis, by comparing
previous estimates to actual outcome and evaluated, on a sample
basis, the outcome of prior period assessment of provision
for write-down of inventories to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process;

tested, on sample basis, the accuracy of the net realisable values
by reference to the latest transaction prices; and

discussed with the Group’s management and assessed the
reasonableness of the provision for write-down of inventories
by challenging management’s projections on future trends and
customers’ demands for the inventories held at the end of the
reporting period, with reference to historical information.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the 2023 annual report of the Company but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,

or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by the directors of the
Company and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 March 2024

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is:

She Shing Pang
Practising Certificate number: P05510
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

|A_-|/_\ = N Z
Ay = /E\ﬁ

Year ended 31 December 2023 &

=
—

—Fo=g A= —ALFE

2023 2022
—E-=F g
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AREFT R AR T T
(Restated)
($&E5)
Continuing Operation BERSEER
Revenue Y 4 264,457 260,514
Cost of sales 55 P AR (247,713) (232,389)
Gross profit EF 16,744 28,125
Other income H AW A 5 8,506 6,983
Other losses, net HhE1EF 8 6 (1,872) (2,028)
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HEAX (2,363) (2,974)
Administrative and other operating 77 I HL 4 &8 5 2
expenses (31,714) (87,292)
Impairment losses on financial assets & @& E & & Y& EREEE
and contract assets 7 (7,535) (290)
Finance costs B 75 B AR 7 (772) (1,203)
Loss before tax from continuing HRHIIFEEEEEN
operation BB ATEE 7 (19,006) (8,679)
Income tax expenses FrIB A 9 (243) (575)
Loss for the year from continuing REZFEKLSEEEHN
operation FAEE (19,249) (9,254)
Discontinued Operation CRIEEEETE
(Loss) Profit for the year from RE BRI E KT
discontinued operation FN(EE) &R 11 (12,250) 2,177
Loss for the year FRER (31,499) (7,077)
(Loss) Profit for the year UTREFE
attributable to: (E18) & F -
From continuing and discontinued K B8 kK2 & 1k
operations TS
— Owners of the Company —ARRNAHEBA (23,840) (9,079)
— Non-controlling interests —FEIE AR R 2 (7,659) 2,002
(31,499) (7,077)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
mEBmk (@)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

2023 2022
—E-=F g
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5E ARBT R ARBTT
(Restated)
($&&E5)
From continuing operation REFELKEED
— Owners of the Company —ARalER A (21,683) (11,239)
- Non-controlling interests — IR RE RS 2,434 1,985
(19,249) (9,254)
RMB cents RMB cents
ARE D ARE S
Losses per share attributable to 4~ A T #H AFE1G
owners of the Company BREE
From continuing and discontinued R E#4E & B R IHEE %K
operations
— Basic and diluted —EANEE 10 (9.54) (3.63)
From continuing operation REABEREER
— Basic and diluted —HARREE 10 (8.67) (4.49)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBankEMEERE

Year ended 31 December 2023 {2 —F — =4+ -H=+—HIFE

2023 2022
—E-= B
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B °E AR®T T ARBTT

Continuing and Discontinued BERDRLEREER

Operation
Loss for the year FAEE (31,499) (7,077)
Other comprehensive (loss) Hin2mE (F8) s :

income:
Itemns that will not be reclassified to  #F TS B P HZ B AV EE -

profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation ##E KN R IEHREE 27

of the Company’s financial HEFTEAMER =5

statements to presentation

currency 728 4,752
Financial assets at fair value through %A (B 5T A E 2 4 s

other comprehensive income MemEE([BAFESA

(“FVOCI") Hih2mEWK =)

— Changes in fair value taken to —NTEZETARE

reserves 18 (1,317) 673

Itemns that may be reclassified HE g EM 72

subsequently to profit or loss: HEami)EE -
Exchange differences on translation & /8N EFSHE X =58

of foreign operations (1,053) 3,952

Total other comprehensive (loss) FREMZME (EE) WFEEHE
income for the year (1,642) 9,377

Total comprehensive (loss) income £ A2 (&) S A %E
for the year (33,141) 2,300

Total comprehensive (loss) income T3 & FEEEREE

for the year attributable to: (B8 WSB5
— Owners of the Company —ARRNAEEA (25,482) 298
— Non-controlling interests — IR AR (7,659) 2,002

(33,141) 2,300
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)
mEelEREREMEEWER @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

2023 2022
—=E=-= =T e
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARMT AREET T

Continuing Operation BEREER
Loss for the year FREE (19,249) (9,254)
Other comprehensive (loss) Hith2mE (B8 W :

income:
Items that will not be reclassified to ST B EFH P HZ /81 HE -

profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation 2 E A QR IEHREE L7

of the Company’s financial HEFEAMER =8

statements to presentation

currency 728 4,752
Financial assets at FVOCI RATFEGFAHEMEEmKE

e RENEE
— Changes in fair value taken to —NTFEZET ARE
reserves 18 (1,317) 673

Itemns that may be reclassified HE gt EA 72

subsequently to profit or loss: B EE -
Exchange differences on translation  # & /& ¥ 75 #) & 5 = %8

of foreign operations (1,053) 3,952

Total other comprehensive (loss) FREMZME (EE) WREHE
income for the year (1,642) 9,377

Total comprehensive (loss) income £ A2 (&) RSB
for the year (20,891) 123

Total comprehensive (loss) income T 5I& A EEERZE (FE)

for the year attributable to: W45 -
— Owners of the Company —ARRNAHEEA (23,325) (1,862)
— Non-controlling interests — IR 2,434 1,985

(20,891) 123
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR AR

At 31 December 20203 R—E - =#+—-H=+—H

2023 2022
—EBE-=F —_EF_-—
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®T T ARBFT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BER&E 14 129,102 145,741
Intangible assets mEAE 15 951 17,097
Investment in an associate R—EBERR2RE 16 - —
Prepayments, deposits and FEMNRIE - EZER
other receivables H {th fE Y FR B 17 5,872 2,785
Deferred tax assets R IBE E 27 2,923 7,972
Financial assets at FVOCI BAFEFAEMEERE
e REEE 18 8,658 9,840
147,506 183,435
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 19 17,987 17,843
Contract assets EREE 21 44,763 39,318
Trade and bills receivables B 5 WA K B R T 21 48,020 36,694
Prepayments, deposits and other ~ FEfHFIE ~ 24 &
receivables H th & WK IE 17 4,627 3,658
Financial assets at amortised cost  IRE SR ANFIBEH S R & &= 20 17,215 17,274
Pledged bank deposits BEMRITHER 22 - 1,696
Cash and cash equivalents HeRReEEY 22 60,696 111,502
193,308 227,985
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables 5 RN FIE 23 14,876 23,821
Contract liabilities afak 24 1,175 4,180
Other payables and accruals HEfh A IEREREA 24 21,662 35,475
Bank borrowings RITER 25 3,750 8,022
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 6,122 4,391
Income tax payable FERPTEH 763 3,754
Deferred government grants % JE BK T 4 B 28 5,016 4,088
53,364 83,731
Net current assets REBEEFE 139,944 144,254
Total assets less current liabilites EEZABERRBEE 287,450 327,689
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
EBBEARRE @

At 31 December 2023 R—E - =#+—-H=+—H

2023 2022
—E-=FE =ERET =
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
e ARET T ARET T
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 2,131 5,286
Deferred government grants B E TR 4 B 28 11,479 14,917
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEEE 27 345 1,215
13,955 21,418
NET ASSETS EERE 273,495 306,271
Capital and reserves EARRFEE
Share capital A& AR 29 2,250 2,250
Share premium Rt B 29 98,676 98,676
Retained earnings IRE AT 31,240 55,891
Other reserves H b 130,375 131,206
Equity attributable to owners of RATHEB ANEEER
the Company 262,541 288,023
Non-controlling interests eV HE = 33 10,954 18,248
TOTAL EQUITY EREAE 273,495 306,271

The consolidated financial statements on pages 118 to 251 were £ 118 ZE 251 WG A M B REMES @R =
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on  Z =& = 8 = ++ B it RIS M - I

27 March 2024 and signed on its behalf by HBIUTATREREZ
Li Hao Xu Shizhen

£ FttE

Director Director

- EBF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GARREDE

Year ended 31 December 2023 #{ %2 —F — =4+ - H=+—HIFF/&

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ANRREREARL
Reserves
e
Share-based Financial assets
Share Share Other payment Statutory Exchange atFvoCl Retained Non-controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests  Total equity
ROTEFA
HRBF Efp2EhEN
k& RHEE BB IRGEE HERE NERE SHEERRE REEF &t FERER EalE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR AREBTr ARETR
(Note 29) (Note29)  (Note 30(a)) (Note 30()) ~ (Note 30(c))  (Note 30(d) (Note 33)
(K29) (W) (W) (Wsop)  (W&30)  (KE30() (33)
At1 January 2023 R-B-zE-R-R 2,250 98,676 111,285 752 21,749 1,970 (4,500) 55,891 288,023 18,248 306,271
Loss forthe year FREE - - - - - - (23.840) (23.840) (7,659) (31,499)
Other comprehensiveincome ~ £2 A (E#8) :
(loss}:
ltems that wilnot be reclissited — BTFEEHFEZ
toproftorloss: BaiEs -
Exchange difierences on RERDAMEREE
tanslafonofthe Companys ~ 2JISBHERER
financial statements to
presentation curency - - - - - 728 - 728 - 728
Financial assets at FVOC! RATEHAENZE
hahesEE
-Changes infairvaluetakento  ~ATEZHIA
resenves (Note 18) G (H3e) - - - - - - (1317) - (1317) - (1317)
ltoms that mey he reckssifed EETHEFAEE
subsequentytoproftorbss:  EEAER
Exchange diferences on BEBNERN
ransition offoregn operations ~ EEZE - - - - - (1,08) - (1,089 - (1,053)
Total other comprehensiveloss K2 EFRLE
forthe year - - - - - (39 (1317 - (1,64) - (1,642)
Total comprehensive loss ER2EREAE
forthe year - - - - - (329 (1317 (23840) (25480) (7659) (33141)
Transactions with owners: HEEANRS
Contrbutons and dstibutions— £51RAE
Appropriation to Statutory resenve  EEAVER B - - - - 811 - 811) - - -
Dividends paid (Note 33) BRRE (H:t3) - - - - - - - - (3,600) (3,600)
Disposal of subsicries Note 34) ~  ERBAT (i) - - - - - - - - 3,965 3,965
Total transactions with owners ~ HEEANRFLE - - - - 811 - 811) - 365 365
At31 December 2023 it 3
tZB=+-R 2,250 98,676 111,23 752 22,560 1,645 (5,817) 31,240 262,541 10,954 2134%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)
MEEREBHR @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

Atributable to equity holders of the Company
FRTEEREARR

Reserves
G
Share-based Financial assets
Share Share Other payment Statutory Exchange atFvocl Retained Non-controling
capital premium Tesene Tesene fesene resene Tesene earnings Total interests ~ Total equity
BRAFEA
WRfF Efb 2 Bl
R KREE  EHRE O NFEE  tTBE MERE SBEEEE  REEW &t HERER  EREE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTE  ARMTR ARETR  ARETR ARETZ  ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR

(Note 29) (Note29)  (Note 30(a) (Note30() ~ (Note30(c)  (Note 30(d) (Note 33)
(Wito9) (M)  (Kiitsom) (Wksop)  (Mrsoe)  (WEag) (Wit 3)
A1 January 2022 R-E--%-f-A 2260 98,676 11,28 752 21,087 (6,734 b173) 66,632 281,125 10,136 297,861
(Loss) Proft for the year R (EE) & - - - - - - - 9,079 9,079) 2002 [0m)
Other comprenensive come; 2 ENRE -
tems that willnot be reckissited — EFEEF7EE
toproftorlbss: ERHEE -
Exchange diferences on BREADAMBREE
tanslafonofthe Companys ~ 2JISBHERER
financial statements o
presentation curency - - - - - 4752 - - 4752 - 4752
Financial assets at FVOCI BATEFARG2E
WahemEE
-Changesinfainvaletakento  ~ATEZHHA
resenves (Note 16) B (M 8) = = - = = = 673 = 673 - 673
lems trat mey berechssited — ERTEETAEE
subsequenty toprofiorioss: — E#EE -
Exchange diferences on BEENERE
ranslation of foreign operations ~ EX 2% - - - - - 392 - - 3952 - 3952
Total other comprehensiveincome £AE 2 EREAE
for the year - - - - - 8,704 673 - 9311 - 9317
Tota comprehensive (oss) income A2 (B8 Wi
for the year a% o = = - - 8,704 673 (9079 298 2,002 2300
Transactions with ownes; HEEADRS
Contrbutons and dlstibutions A3 RAE
Appropriaton to statutoryresenve.  EVER Bl - - = = 662 = = (662 - b a
Acaistion of subsiciries WENBAR
(Note 32) (iza2) - - - - - - - - - 6,110 6,110
Totd ransactons wih owners — 2EEAHR 548 - - - - 662 S S (662) S 6,10 6,10
At 31 December 2022 WIBIZE
+2A=1+-A 2250 98,676 11123 752 21,749 1970 (4,500 55,891 288,023 18,248 306,21
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n\l—_r\ EE%/}ILE%

Year ended 31 December 2023 &

=~ — F — T4
— ==

A=+ —AIEE

2023 2022
—EBE-=F ===
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®T T ARBFT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REZTH
Cash (used in) generated from & (frA) i8R e
operations 31(a) (20,253) 76,654
Income tax paid B FTEH (3,237) (711)
Interest received B W F B 1,096 1,159
Net cash (used in) generated KEEE (FTA) iERE
from operating activities FE (22,394) 77,102
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZE
Interest income from unlisted LT EEESHHF WA
corporate bonds 1,808 1,461
Dividend income M2 A 186 205
Payment for purchase of property, X HEEEWZE - BE L& E
plant and equipment (15,172) (4,041)
Payment for purchase of intangible (i B & & &
assets (272) (4,286)
Receipt of government grants for LR B AR WER 2 BUAT f B
purchase of equipment 2,993 3,110
Advanced to an independent M= 8XK
third party (4,531) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, &Y - ME RRE R
plant and equipment and FREEEZFSHIA
right-of-use assets 556 -
Purchase of financial asset at I8 B IR SR AT BR Y
amortised cost PREE - (18,089)
Proceeds from redemption of HE [B] F2 4 S5 A N 51 BR Y
financial asset at amortised cost S REEMMSHRIAE - 17,537
Net cash flow from acquisition of W S B B A R Y
subsidiaries W mFEE 32 - (6,369)
Net cash flow from disposal of HERBARZ
subsidiaries W MmFRE 34 (227) .
Net cash used in investing RETEAMARSFE
activities (14,659) (10,472)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

mERERER &)

Year ended 31 December 2023 #{ 2 —F — =4+ - H=+—HIFF&

2023 2022
—E-=F —=E-—
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5E AR¥T T ARBTT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
Repayments of bank borrowings BEIRITER 31(b) (4,324) (5,175)
Decrease (Increase) in pledged bank & & #5817 77 7 2 (38 40)
deposits 1,696 (1)
Payment of interests on bank S AFIRITIE A B
borrowings 31(b) (263) (516)
Payment of principal element of lease X E & EAR S 5
liabilities 31(b) (6,095) (5,238)
Payment of interest element of lease XA E&EFIE Lo
liabilities 31(b) (509) (687)
Dividends paid to non-controlling M FE 1 P b e s T RO AR B
interests (3,600) -
Net cash used in financing RETETARSFEE
activities (13,095) (11,617)
Net (decrease) increase in RERESZEEY RD)
cash and cash equivalents EINFERE (50,148) 55,013
Cash and cash equivalents atthe HEHIRERRESEEY
beginning of the reporting period 111,502 48,926
Effect of foreign exchange rate [RGB FE
changes, net (658) 74568
Cash and cash equivalents atthe REBARESRRESEEY
end of the reporting period, BRITESREES
represented by bank balances
and cash 22 60,696 FRISS 02

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2023 127



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

Year ended 31 December 2023 &t 2 —FE — =4+ _-HA=+—HIF&E

1.

General Information

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as
the “Group”) was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 7 December
2018. The shares of the Company are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 18 October 2019. The registered
office of the Company is situated at Windward 3, Regatta
Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands. The Company’s principal place of business
is situated at Unit 702, 7th Floor, Greenfield Tower,
Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road, Tsim Sha Tsui
East, Kowloon, Hong Kong and the Group’s headquarter is
situated at No. 7 Building, New Development Zone, Baisixia,
Fuyong Street, Bao’an District, Shenzhen, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of (i)
electronic manufacturing service (“EMS”) and (i) financial-
related application platform (“Financial Application Platform”)
and related maintenance services (“Platform Maintenance
Services”) (discontinued from the Disposal Date as
defined in Note 11). The principal activities of the Group’s
subsidiaries are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The immediate and ultimate holding company of the
Company is Skyflying Company Limited (“Skyflying”), which
is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”). In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate
controlling party of the Group is Mr. Li Hao (the “Ultimate
Controlling Party”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR RMET @
Year ended 31 December 2023 {2 —FE - =+ -H=+—HIFFF

2. Principal Accounting Policies 2. FESFTHX
Statement of compliance EREBH

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all amounts have been rounded
to the nearest thousand (“RMB’000”), unless otherwise
indicated.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted
in the 2022 consolidated financial statements except for
the adoption of the following new/revised HKFRSs that are
relevant to the Group and effective from the current period.

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following new/

revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 12

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

2.

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1: Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

The amendments require companies to disclose their
material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies.

The amendments have no effect on the measurement,
recognition or presentation of any items in the consolidated
financial statements. The Group’s management has
reviewed the disclosure of accounting policy information
and considered it is consistent with the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8: Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments clarify how companies should distinguish
changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting
estimates.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12: Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 so that it
no longer applies to transactions that, on recognition, give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEERRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

2.

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12: International Tax
Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules

The amendments provide entities with temporary relief from
accounting for deferred taxes arising from the Organisation
for Economic Co-operation and Development’s Pillar Two
model rules. The Amendments also introduce targeted
disclosure requirements to help investors understand an
entity’s exposure to income taxes arising from the rules.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except
for financial assets at FVOCI which are measured at fair
value, as explained in the accounting policy set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as that of the Company using
consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 B2 —FE — =+ -H=+—HIFFF

2.

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income and within
equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The non-controlling interests in the acquiree, that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in event
of liquidation, are measured initially either at fair value or at
the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share
in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. This choice of measurement basis is made on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are initially measured at fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of the other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to the owners of the
Company and the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in ownership interests

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2023 & 2 — & —

2.

SEABTEREMT @)

LN

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in ownership interests (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (j)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest determined at the
date when control is lost and (i) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests at the date when control
is lost. The amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the disposed subsidiary
are accounted for on the same basis as would be required
if the holding company had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Any investment retained in the former
subsidiary and any amounts owed by or to the former
subsidiary are accounted for as a financial asset or liability,
an associate, a joint venture or others, as appropriate, from
the date when control is lost.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair value of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are principally recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets and
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 and HKAS 19 respectively;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4= ANH

g =

Year ended 31 December 2023 &/ 2 — & — =4

2.

134 =

ISRz MEE (@)

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
at the acquisition date; and

e  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any noncontrolling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed at acquisition date. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on bargain purchase.

Non-controlling interests that are initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is
made on a transaction by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value.
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e IEERRMEE @)
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2.

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a
liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position which is
presented within these notes, investments in subsidiaries is
stated at cost less impairment loss. The carrying amount of
the interest is reduced to its respective recoverable amount
on an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The result of a subsidiary is accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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2.

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control of those
policies.

The Group’s investment in an associate is accounted for
under the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment or a portion thereof is classified as held for sale.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets
and any impairment loss relating to the investment.
Except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the investee, the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses when the Group’s share of losses
of the investee equals or exceeds the carrying amount of
its interest in the investee, which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the investee.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of an associate is
measured as the excess of the cost of investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the acquired associate. Such goodwill is
included in interests in an associate. On the other hand,
any excess of the Group’s share of its net fair value of
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of investment
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as an income.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investees, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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2.

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is measured
at the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree (if applicable)
and the fair value of any previously held equity interest
in the acquiree over the acquisition date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of the
acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units. An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed.

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition date
amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of the acquired business over the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree (if applicable) and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if any,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as an income from bargain purchase.

Any resulting gain or loss arising from remeasuring the
previously held equity interests in the acquiree at the
acquisition-date fair value is recognised in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income, as appropriate.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group that
comprises operations and cash flows that can be clearly
distinguished, operationally and for financial reporting
purposes, from the rest of the Group. It represents a
separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale. Classification as a discontinued
operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation
meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier. It
also occurs when the operation is abandoned.
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2.

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (included right-of-use
assets) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, over their estimated useful lives as set out below
from the date on which they are available for use and after
taking into account their estimated residual values, using
the straight-line method. Where parts of an item of property,
plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
the item is allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciated
separately:

Building
Leasehold improvements

20 years
Shorter of estimated useful
lives or remaining lease

terms
Plant and machinery 3to 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Office equipment 3to 5 years
Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss
in the period in which the item is derecognised.
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2.

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Intangible assets
e-Financial Club App

e-Financial Club App is a financial application platform
acquired in a business combination and recognised
separately from goodwill are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, the e-Financial Club App
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method over the
expected lives of the e-Financial Club App, which are
determined to be 10 years.

The e-Financial Club App is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of the
e-Financial Club App, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the e-Financial
Club App is derecognised.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development activities, which involve the application of
research findings to a plan to design for the production of
new or substantially improved products and processes,
are capitalised if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient
resources to complete the development. The expenditure
capitalised will be the outsourcing costs. Other development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as an expense as
incurred. When the asset is available for use, the capitalised
development costs are amortised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives.
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2.

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Software

The initial costs of acquiring the computer software licenses
for own use are capitalised. Computer software licenses
with finite useful lives is carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is provided on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 3 years.

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments and on a trade date basis, except for
financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”) and financial assets measured at FVOCI which
are accounted for on the settlement date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (i) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain control
of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group recognises the financial
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
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Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Recognition and derecognition (Continued)

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried
at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial assets. Such trade
receivables are initially measured at their transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (i) debt investment measured
at FVOCI; (iii) equity investment measured at FVOCI; or (iv)
measured at FVTPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first reporting period following the change in the
business model.

(1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if
it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

(i) itis held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Recognition and derecognition (Continued)

(1)

142 ¢m

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
(Continued)

Financial asset at amortised cost is subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from
impairment, derecognition or through the amortisation
process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost
include trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables, an unlisted corporate bond recognised
as financial assets at amortised cost, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash.

Financial assets at FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Group may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an investment in an
equity instrument that is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies
in other comprehensive income. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

These equity investments are subsequently measured
at fair value and are not subject to impairment.
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other gains or losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and shall
not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss is transferred
directly to retained earnings.

The Group’s financial assets at FVOCI include equity
securities which are not held for trading.
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Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities
Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are direct attributable to the issue of
the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, other
payables and accruals, bank borrowings and lease liabilities.
All financial liabilities, except for financial liabilities at FVTPL,
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be insignificant,
in which case they are stated at cost.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL”) on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost. Except for the specific treatments as
detailed below, at each reporting date, the Group measures
a loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to
the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on that financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit
risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance
for that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL.
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Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.

the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life
of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due
to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or
more shared credit risk characteristics:

()  past due information

(i)  nature of instrument

(i) industry of debtors

(iv) geographical location of debtors

(v) external credit risk ratings, if available

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or

loss in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2.

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that the Group may not
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the
financial instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

()  information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);
or

(i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following information
is taken into account in the assessment:

e the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);
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2. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. FEETEEX @
Financial instruments (Continued) £RIAE
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) D ELE EMRE &)
Assessment of significant increase in credit risk 15 B2 5 75 2738 ey a1 (48)

(Continued)

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, except for the receivables for which the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that
previous non-payments were an administrative oversight,
instead of resulting from financial difficulty of the borrower,
or that there is no correlation between significant increases
in the risk of a default occurring and financial assets on
which payments are more than 30 days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.

Low credit risk
A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk

(i) it has alow risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.
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Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Low credit risk (Continued)

Bill receivables guaranteed by banks, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances are determined to have low
credit risk.

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables and contract assets without significant
financing components, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date
and has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties; or

() the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
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2.

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount based on historical experience of recoveries
of similar assets. The Group expects no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial assets that
are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due, taking into account legal advice if appropriate. Any
subsequent recovery is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers within
HKFRS 15

Nature of services

The nature of the services provided by the Group is as
follows:

(@ provision of EMS;
(o) provision of Financial Application Platform; and

(c) provision of Platform Maintenance Services.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. FESTHEX @
Revenue recognition (Continued) W 2 TSR ()

Revenue from contracts with customers within
HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the services
promised in a contract with a customer and identifies as
a performance obligation each promise to transfer to the
customer either:

(@) aservice (or a bundle of services) that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct services that are substantially the
same and that have the same pattern of transfer to the
customer.

A service that is promised to a customer is distinct if both of
the following criteria are met:

(@ the customer can benefit from the service either on its
own or together with other resources that are readily
available to the customer (i.e. the service is capable of
being distinct); and

(o) the Group’s promise to transfer the service to the
customer is separately identifiable from other promises
in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer the service
is distinct within the context of the contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised service
(i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when (or
as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a service over time and,
therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and recognises
revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

(@ the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;
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Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within
HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the promised asset. In
determining when the transfer of control occurs, the Group
considers the concept of control and such indicators as
legal title, physical possession, right to payment, significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, and customer
acceptance.

Revenue from provision of EMS is recognised over
time because (i) the Group manufactures the products
according to the customer’s specification and the Group
is limited practically or contractually from directing the final
products and any assets created or enhanced during the
production process for another use; and (i) the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for the performance
completed to date if the customer were to cancel the
contract for reasons other than the Group’s failure to
perform as promised.

Revenue from provision of Financial Application Platform
is recognised at a point in time when the subscribers
successfully registered the application platform.

Revenue from provision of Platform Maintenance Services,
represents the provision of maintenance services for the
Financial Application Platform, is recognised over time on
the straight-line basis over the agreed services period.
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Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within
HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation can
be reasonably measured, the Group applies (i) the input
method (i.e. based on the proportion of the actual inputs
deployed to date as compared to the estimated total inputs)
to measure the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the performance obligation because there is a direct
relationship between the Group’s inputs and the transfer
of control of goods or services to the customers or (i) the
output method (i.e. based on the direct measurements
of the value to the customer of the goods or services
transferred to date relative to the remaining goods or
services promised under the contract) to measure the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation because the method provides a faithful depiction
of the Group’s performance and reliable information is
available to the Group to apply the method. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of the costs
incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure the
outcome of the performance obligation.

The principal input applied in the input method is:

—  Provision of EMS: based on the cost incurred,
including the raw material costs, direct labour costs
and other overheads

The following output methods are applied:

—  Provision of Platform Maintenance Services: based on

the performance obligations completed towards the
services promised under the contracts
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Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within
HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Transaction price. significant financing cormponents

When the contract contains a significant financing
component (i.e. the customer or the Group is provided with
a significant benefit of financing the transfer of services to
the customer), in determining the transaction price, the
Group adjusts the promised consideration for the effects
of the time value of money. The effect of the significant
financing component is recognised as an interest income
or interest expense separately from revenue from contracts
with customers in profit or loss.

The Group determines the interest rate that is
commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
its customer at contract inception by reference to, where
appropriate, the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e.
the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price of
the services to the amount paid in advance or arrears),
the prevailing market interest rates, the Group’s borrowing
rates and other relevant creditworthiness information of the
customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for
the effect of the significant financing component if the period
of financing is one year or less.

Revenue from other sources
Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
assets while it is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) in case of credit-
impaired financial assets.
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Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from other sources (Continued)
Dividend incorne

Dividend income from financial assets is recognised when
the Group’s rights to receive dividend is established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, the contract is presented as a contract
asset, excluding any amounts presented as a receivable.
Conversely, if a customer pays consideration, or the
Group has a right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional, before the Group transfers a service to the
customer, the contract is presented as a contract liability
when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever
is earlier). A receivable is the Group’s right to consideration
that is unconditional or only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts,
either a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. Contract assets and contract liabilities of
unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

For provision of EMS, payments are normally not due
or received from the customer until the right for billing is
unconditional. For such transactions, a contract asset is
recognised until it becomes a receivable or payments are
received.

On the other hand, for provision of Platform Maintenance
Services, it is common for the Group to receive from
customers the whole or some of the contractual payments
before the whole services are completed (i.e. the timing
of revenue recognition for such transactions). The Group
recognises a contract liability until it is recognised as
revenue.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. FEETEHEXR@®
Foreign currency translation HNEBRE

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The Company’s functional
currency is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”). Since the Group’s
main operation is carried out in the PRC, the amounts
shown in the consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at period-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented and, where applicable, goodwill
and fair value adjustments on the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities arising on an acquisition of a
foreign operation which are to be treated as assets
and liabilities of that foreign operation, are translated at
the closing rate at the end of the reporting period;

° income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at
the average exchange rates;

e all resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised as
a separate component of equity;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

on the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, a disposal involving the loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial
disposal of an interest in an associate that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest is no
longer equity-accounted for, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to the foreign
operation that is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the separate component
of equity is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
when the gain or loss on disposal is recognised;

on the partial disposal of the Group’s interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in the
separate component of equity is re-attributed to the
non-controlling interests in that foreign operation and
are not reclassified to profit or loss; and

on all other partial disposals, which includes partial
disposal of an associate that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence, the proportionate share
of the cumulative amount of exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Year ended 31 December 2023 B2 —FE — =+ -H=+—HIFFF

2. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. FEETEHEXR@®

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition, is calculated using
the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period of the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant and
equipment (including right-of-use assets), intangible assets,
investment in an associate and the Company’s investments
in subsidiaries may be impaired or impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may be reduced.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest
group of assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. FEETHXR@®
Impairment of other assets (Continued) Hi&EERE @

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior periods. Reversal of impairment losses is recognised
as an income in profit or loss immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income over the periods necessary to match the grant
on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to
compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair
value credited to a deferred income account under the
consolidated statement of financial position’s line item
“Deferred government grants” and is released to profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued) 2.

158 =z

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-
term leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments
associated with these leases are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components
from lease components, and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and, where applicable, the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified
components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset (included in

property, plant and equipment) and a lease liability at the
commencement date of the lease.
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2. 2. FESTHEm@m

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises

(@ the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

(o) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received,;

(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group
by the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-
use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase
option — in which case depreciation is provided over the
estimated useful life of the underlying asset) as follows:

2 to 5 years
3to 10 years

Leased properties
Plant and machinery

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date of the contract.
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2.

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

The lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following payments for the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date:

(@) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under residual value
guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,
the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount
rate when there are changes to the lease payments arising
from a change in the lease term or the reassessment of
whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option.
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2.

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original
discount rate when there is a change in the residual value
guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments or the
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of a change
in future lease payments resulting from a change in floating
interest rates, the Group remeasures the lease liability using
a revised discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced
to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement
of the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining
amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if

(@ the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

(b) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.
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2. 2. FESTHE @

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

When a lease modification is not accounted for as
a separate lease, at the effective date of the lease
modification,

(@ the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above;

(b) the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract;

(c) the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate over the revised lease term;

(d) for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of
the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease and recognising any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease
in profit or loss; or

(e) for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making a
corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

The Group has applied the practical expedient provided
in Amendments to HKFRS 16: Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 and does not assess
whether eligible rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic are lease
modification. The Group accounts for any change in lease
payments resulting from the rent concession the same way
it would account for the change applying HKFRS 16 if the
change were not a lease modification.
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2.

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the Covid-19
pandemic and only if all of the following conditions are met:

(@ the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

(b) any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

(c) there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient consistently
to all eligible rent concessions with similar characteristics
and in similar circumstances.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the period in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
employees of the Group’s entities established in the PRC
are required to participate in defined contribution retirement
plans organised by local governments. Contributions to
these plans are expensed in profit or loss as incurred and
other than these monthly contributions, the Group has no
further obligation for the payment of retirement benefits to
its employees.
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Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the period as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition of
goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
is not recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and an associate, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(@)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

)

(i)

(i

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of the holding company of the
Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each holding
company, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

2. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. FEETEHEXR@®

Related parties (Continued) B
(b) (Continued) o) (&)
(v The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (Vi) EEX(FT#E B A TIESIgk
person identified in (a). EEH -
(viil A person identified in (a)(i) has significant Vi) @O)FTERITEERE 7(2/
influence over the entity or is a member of the %ﬁﬁi%%?ﬁ% (hxERBIER
key management personnel of the entity (or of a UNEIDIES: éiﬂiéﬁ’\]/\i °
holding company of the entity).
(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which (vii) ZEEB B EEE TEMKE

X A [ AN 5% [ 2k 7R o [ A 2 Y
NEREEZEEASRE -

it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the holding company
of the Group.

ERALHEZERERBEELAKRER
SRR FEZE A LR ZE S

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group ATHENREXNEL BRI

and include:

(@ that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; @ ZBATHFZREGKEEHE:

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; (b)) ZBAATHERBHEEHBEHTFI:
and IS4

(€) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or © ZmBAATHZBALIHERGBKARE

HEHZEA -

domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s most senior executive management, which is
the Group’s chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for
the purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEERRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

2. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. FEETHER@®

Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of services, the type or class of customers
and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management of the Group in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
They affect the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses, and disclosures made. They are assessed
on an on-going basis and are based on experience and
relevant factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Where appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period of revision and future periods, in
case the revision also affects future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty:

() Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
(including right-of-use assets) and intangible
assets

The management of the Group determines the
estimated useful lives of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and
intangible assets based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of the relevant assets of similar
nature and functions. The estimated useful lives could
be different as a result of technical innovations which
could affect the related depreciation charges included
in profit or loss.
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@M - & A ERT ISR IE L EET
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RIKEAR) #ER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

2. FESTHHE @

2. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty: (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
(including right-of-use assets) and intangible
assets

The management of the Group determines whether
the Group’s property, plant and equipment (including
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets are impaired
when an indication of impairment exists. This requires
an estimation of the recoverable amounts of the
property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) and intangible assets, which is equal to the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. Estimating the value in use requires the Group’s
management to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the property, plant and
equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible
assets and also to choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. Any impairment will be charged to profit or loss.

(i) Allowance for inventories

The Group’s inventories comprise solely raw materials
of which the Group’s management primarily intends
to utilise for EMS contracts. These raw materials are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The Group utilises these raw materials for the
assembling and production of printed circuit board
assembly (“PCBA”), and their net realisable value is
the estimated service contract price less estimated
costs to completion and direct selling expenses. The
estimates are based on the current market condition
and the historical experience of provision of services
using raw materials of similar nature. Write-down of
inventories are recognised where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
realised. The identification of write-downs requires the
use of judgment and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate such difference
will impact the carrying value of inventories and write-
down of inventories in the period in which such
estimate has been changed. The Group’s management
reassesses these estimates at end of each reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEERRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

2. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. FESTHEX @

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty: (Continued)
(iv) Loss allowance for ECL

The management of the Group estimates the loss
allowance for contract assets, trade and other
receivables by using various inputs and assumptions
including risk of a default and expected loss rate. The
estimation involves high degree of uncertainty which
is based on the Group’s historical information, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of contract
assets, trade and other receivables.

(v) Income taxes

Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes and deferred taxation.
There are transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain where the final
tax outcome of these matters may be different from
the amounts that were initially recorded and such
differences will affect the income tax and deferred tax
provision in the period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences are recognised as the Group’s management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and tax expense in
the periods in which such estimate is changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

2.

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current
period, which the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current”

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants!"

Amendments to HKAS 7 and Supplier Finance Arrangements'!

HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

(1)  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
2) Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

(8)  The effective date to be determined

The directors of the Company does not anticipate that
the adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs in future periods
will have any material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEERRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 {2 —FE - =+ -H=+—HIFFF

3.

Segment Information

The executive directors of the Company who make
strategic decisions have been identified as the CODM to
evaluate the performance of operating segments and to
allocate resources to those segments. Based on risks and
returns and the Group’s internal financial reporting, the
CODM considers that the operating segments of the Group
comprise:

(1) Provision of EMS

(2) Provision of Financial Application Platform and Platform
Maintenance Services which is discontinued from the
Disposal Date (as defined in Note 11)

Segment results represent results before tax reported
by each segment without allocation of certain other
income and other gains/losses, net, certain selling and
distribution expenses, certain administrative and other
operating expenses incurred by the corporate office, certain
impairment losses on financial assets and contract assets,
gain on disposal of subsidiaries and, gain on bargain
purchase arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries which
are considered as unallocable income and expenses. This
is the measure reported to the CODM of the Company
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
financial assets at FVOCI, certain prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, financial assets at amortised cost,
certain pledged bank deposits and certain cash and
cash equivalents. All liabilities are allocated to reportable
segments other than certain other payables and accruals.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenue
is attributable to the segments based on the location of
customers; assets and capital expenditure are attributable
to the segments based on the locations of the assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e BTSRRI @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 #{%2 —F — =4+ - H=+—HIFF/&

3. Segment Information (Continued) 3. PEER @)
(A) By Business Segments (A) BEKDEHE D
Discontinued
Operation
Provision of
Financial
Application
Continuing Platform and
Operation Platform
Provision Maintenance
of EMS Services Consolidated
BRIEEEEK
BESEER Bitem
BHET ERTAR
HERYE TREERY RE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR¥T R AR¥T R
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-Z-=F
TZAZt-HLEFE
Segment revenue k10N 264,457 1,116 265,573
Segment results DBEE (8,034) (21,084) (29,118)
From continuing and discontinued KEFRER
operations: BRUBLERE -
Unallocated other income AOBEMBA 18
Unallocated other gains, net APEEME R EE 2,074
Unallocated seling and distribution APEHEERDBRX
exXpenses (279)
Unallocated administrative and other AP ETHR R E M2 ER S
operating expenses (5,250)
Impairment losses on financial assets B EE XA L& EH
and contract assets REBE (7,535)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B DR M ME
(Note 34) (Kt5r34) 13,016
Loss before tax RBAEE (27,074)
Income tax expenses (Note 9) FERAS (:E9) (4,425)
Loss for the year ERER (31,499)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

3. Segment Information (Continued) 3. 7HER @
(A) By Business Segments (Continued) (A) BEKDIHE D (@)
Discontinued
Operation
Provision of
Financial
Application
Continuing Platform and
Operation Platform
Provision Maintenance
of EMS Services Consolidated
BRIEEEER
FECEER RESH
REET ERTER
BERE  TABERE o)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT ARBTT
Year ended 31 December 2022 Bzr-T——
TZA=tT—ALEE
Segment revenue AEHEA 260,514 2,734 263,248
Segment results DEMEE (2,622) (1,020) (3,642)
From continuing and discontinued FERER
operations: BRIHAFEET -
Unallocated other income AOBEMBA 16
Unallocated other gains, net AOEE MY FE 1,793
Unallocated seling and distribution RABHERD BRZ
expenses (345)
Unallocated administrative and other KA B TR R EMLEFRT
operating expenses (7,233)
Impairment losses on financial assets & B EE XA HEEH
and contract assets WEESA (288)
Gain on bargain purchase arising from W& B A &2
the acquisition of subsidiaries HEBENR
(Note 32) (H3E32) 2,133
Loss before tax BREAIER (7,566)
Income tax credits (Note 9) FrigRige (HE9) 489
Loss for the year FREE (7,077)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 #{%2 —F — =4+ - H=+—HIFF/&

3. Segment Information (Continued)

(A) By Business Segments (Continued)

174 e

A major customer is a customer (including a group of
entities under common control) with whom revenue
from transactions amounted to 10% or more of the
Group’s total revenue in the respective reporting
period.

Revenue from customers (including a group of entities
under common control) individually contributed over
10% of the total revenue of the Group is as follows:

3.

TEE R (&

(A) Bz%??‘"*‘lﬂgl
EEE)E%EXQX%ZH& (=N
%l&*ﬁ%ﬁiﬁiﬁﬁﬁq 145( 10%&

) -

#5725 55 B 4 s a5 1B ) B B8 10% A
EWEF (BREXRES T —E

B W T -

2023 2022

—E=-= —E=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETF T

Continuing Operation — Provision @& #8124
of EMS EFRERYK

Customer A BEFA 55,586 72,179
Customer B =FB 30,312 63,240
Customer C ZFEC N/A T 3E F 30,067
Customer D %F~D 51,755 30,775
Customer E ZEPFE 60,040 N/A i A

Revenue from Customer C and E were less than 10%
of the total revenue for the year ended 31 December
2023 and 2022, respectively.

The five largest customers accounted for approximately

84% of the Group’s total revenue for the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: approximately 82%).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e KRR @

Year ended 31 December 2023 #{ 2 —F — =4+ - H=+—HIFF&

2 EER @

(A) BEZDFE D ()
REBREEDEHE D

3. Segment Information (Continued) 3.

(A) By Business Segments (Continued)
An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

MEERA

operating segments is set out below: BEoTHINET -
Continuing Operation Discontinued Operation
RELEER BRLEEER
Provision of
Financial
Application
Platform and
Platform
Provision Maintenance
of EMS  Unallocated Total Services  Unallocated Total - Consolidated
RiteR
RUET ER¥AR
HERK B Bt TREERE OB it G
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AE®Tn ARETn ARETR ARETn ARETR  ARETR ARETR
At 31 December 2023 it St
tZA=t-A
Segment assets AHEE 298,806 42008 340814 - - - %0814
Segment liabilities 8% (64,608) @2m) (67,319 - - - (67,319)
Year ended HE-B-=F
31 December 2023 tZAZt-BLEE
Olter segment intomation: AtAHEY
Amortsation £s 860 - 860 87 - 87 1,747
Depreciation Vi ] 34,529 - 34,529 1} - Kl 34,566
(Gain on disposal of property, plant £ ENE - BER
and equipment, net RENEFE 6 - 6 - - - §
Witlen off of property, plantand 1% BERR(E
equipment i 2578 - 2578 - - - 2578
Exchange loss net EREETE 131 3 1374 - - - 1374
Bank interest income RTHERA 1,078 18 1,096 - - - 1,096
Finance costs HEBRE Lt - m - - - m
Reversal of write-down of FENARE
inventories 3,069 - 3,069 - - - 3,069
Impaiment loss on fivancial assets £ BAERANEEL
and contract assets REEE - 75% 7,535 - - - 75%
Impaiment loss on intanglble assets  EF/AEHESIE - - - 14,871 - 14671 14671
Addlons to property, RENE BERAE
plant and equipment (BEFREEE)
(including right-0f-use assets) 21,118 - 21,118 2 - 20 21,138
Additons to intangible assets RERVEE 2 - 2 - - - 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e BTSRRI @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 #{%2 —F — =4+ - H=+—HIFF/&

3. Segment Information (Continued) 3. PEER @)
(A) By Business Segments (Continued) (A) BEKDIHE D (@)
Continuing Operation Discontinued Operation
HERERH BRIHIEEH
Provision of
Financial
Application
Platform and
Platform
Provision Maintenance
of EMS  Unallocated Total Senvices  Unallocated Total  Consolidated
Rtew
REEET ERTRR
ik AR g% TriEhy AR a5t e
RMB'OO0  RMBIOOO  RWMB'O0  RMBOO0  RWMBOO0  RWMBOO0  RMBIOOO
ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARBTT  ARETR
(Restated) (Restated)
(E3)) (E31)
At 31 December 2022 S
+=A=t-A
Segment asses AHEE 354,400 3664 388,073 AR - BT 4140
Seqment fabiltes 8k (04,521) P58 (7,119 (3029 0 [B030) (105,149
Year ended HE-3--F
31 Deoember 2022 TZR=t-RLLEE
Otter segment homation: At HEH
Amortisation £ 818 - 818 2% - 2% 114
Depreciaton il ] 30,609 - 39,609 9 - 9 %618
(Loss) Gain on disposal of property,  (HENF « BERRfEL
plant and equipment, net (BB hakE {74 - (474 7 - 7 (467)
Exchange (0ss) gain, net Ei(BR)ha5E (3.350) 2 (3330) - = = (3330)
Bark nterest income EGEELN 1,143 16 1,159 - - - 1,159
Finance costs HHRR 1,208 - 1,208 - - - 1208
Provision for write-down of FENBERERE
inventories, net 1,007 - 1,007 - - - 1,007
Impaiment loss on fnancial assets £ BEERANEEZ
and contract asses WEEE 2 28 2 = = - 290
Additons to propery, ECENTE L
plant and equipment (REFAELE)
(including right-of-use assets) 7,962 - 7,962 20 - 20 7982
Addlons to intangiole assets REBVEE 1079 - 1079 3207 - 3207 4,286
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MR RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 #{ 2 —F — =4+ - H=+—HIFF&

3. Segment Information (Continued)

(B) By Geographic Information
()  Revenue form external customers

The Group’s operation is principally domiciled in
the PRC. The Group’s revenue by geographical
location, which is determined by the location of
customers, is as follows:

3. PEER @

(B) it EE R &5

i) KRESFFEF MY
AEENEEEEAFELRL

HIT o
Eoptrgy
R

Discontinued

AEBAMWELE S D
(MEFRELEET)

Operation
Provision of
Financial
Application
Continuing Platform and
Operation Platform
Provision Maintenance
of EMS Services  Consolidated
BARIEREEL
FREREER RiftemE
RESFHRE EREAR
R FEEBRE mRe
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®T R AR®T R
Year ended 31 BE-_ZT_-=%
December 2023 +=A=t+—8
LEE
The PRC A 264,299 1,116 265,415
The United States of EFRE REH
America (the “USA”) ([Z=E1) 158 - 158
264,457 1,116 265,573
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e BTSRRI @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

3. DEER @

3. Segment Information (Continued)

(B) By Geographic Information (Continued)
Revenue form external customers

U)

(B) it B & B &5 ()
RBINEPE P H MR as ()

U)

(Continued)
Discontinued
Operation
Provision of
Financial
Application
Continuing Platform and
Operation Platform
Provision Maintenance
of EMS Services Consolidated
BRI EER
B G bk sl
R E TS ERTAEK
k% FEsERG RE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT ARET T
Year ended HE-_T-—F
31 December 2022 +=ZA=+—H
IEFEE
The PRC Y 260,443 2,734 263,177
The USA x 71 - 71
260,514 2,734 263,248

Non-current assets by geographical

location

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, majority of the
Group’s non-current assets were located in the

PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEERRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

4. Revenue 4. W=
2023 2022
—=E=-= o o
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARBFIT
(Restated)
(geE=5)
Revenue from contracts with EAMBHREERE15HFEAN
customers within HKFRS 15 EEA#H WS
Continuing Operation FREE AT
Overtime BEZ R ]
— Provision of EMS —REETFRERY 264,457 260,514
Discontinued Operation BRI EET
Overtime FEZ 5]
— Provision of Platform Maintenance ~ — 12 {ft ¥ & 4 E R
Services 154 942
Point in time R AERF B &
— Provision of Financial Application —REEcHERATE
Platform 962 1,792
265,573 263,248

The amounts of revenue recognised for the year ended 31
December 2023 that were included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the reporting period was approximately
RMB3,989,000 (2022: RMB1,503,000) (Note 24).

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, all
brought-forward contract liabilities at the beginning of the
financial year were fully recognised as revenue (Note 24).

REE =T = =% 1 = H ===k
EERN KRB ARE RS HH
MEHNEE Z2BEHARKS989,000
TT(ZE=——F : AR¥1,503,0007T) (F
24) o

HE_T_=Frk-_ZT-__4+=-A
=+—HLEFE FAERFREEDR
HEENANABEDBEER SN (M
24)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e BTSRRI @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

5. Other Income 5. Hfbr A
2023 2022
(Restated)
—ECc=E “E-F
(& =31)
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
Operation Operation Consolidated Operation Operation ~ Consolidated
B8 BAL BE  BAL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARET:
Bank Interest income FATMBHA 1,096 - 1,096 1,159 - 1,159
Government B A
subsidies (Note) GRS 7,367 47 7,414 5,726 39 5,765
Others i 43 25 68 %8 - %8
8,506 72 8,578 6,983 39 7,022

Note: Government grants primarily represent subsidies from relevant
local government authorities granted to the Group for purchase of
certain qualified property, plant and equipment for its operation.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the assets related grants
recognised to profit or loss were approximately RMB5,503,000
(2022: RMB4,381,000) (Note 28). There are no unfulfiled conditions
or contingencies attached to the remaining government grants for the

years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

6. Other Gain (Losses), net

MisE - BN AR E Z R AME BN RER TAEE
WA WBEETRAREENAEBYE K
ERZHE REBEE=_T=-_=F+=-A=+—H
IHEE  REZERNEEEBHBOAAR
#5,503,0007T (=T == : AR¥ 4,381,000
7T) (f3E28) REE-T-_=FF_-_FT_-_—
F+ZA=+—ALFE  HABFRHIETE
RER G B AEIE -

6. Hitblz (&]) B8

2023 2022
(Restated)
“ECZE k- S
2
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
Operation Operation Consolidated Operation Operation ~ Consolidated
BE B&L BE BAIE
mEgy  SEER GE BEEE  GEEH e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETn AR®TR ARETT ARETR ARBTI
Interest income from unlisted 3k A £ EEF B
corporate bonds WA 1,808 - 1,808 1571 = 1571
Interest income from amount B —ZBUE =5
due from an independent FIERMEHA
third party 80 - 80 = = =
Dividend income BEMA 186 - 186 205 - 205
Gain (Loss) on disposal HEWE  BERR
of property, plant and i (B8) -
equipment, net 8 6 - 6 (474) 7 (467)
Written off of property, nE BER
plant and equipment Bt iz (2,578) - (2,578) = = =
Exchange loss, net ERERTE (1,374) - (1,374) (3,330) = (3,330)
Others Efh - (22) (22) - - -
(1872 (22 (1,894) 2028) 7 2,021)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

7. Loss before Tax 7. BREAIESE
This is stated after charging: LB BRI &IE -
2023 2022

(Restated)

ZECZF —E-C

(& =31)
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued

Operation Operation Consolidated Operation Operation  Consolidated

7| BAL B8 BEIE

RMB'000 ~ RMB000  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB000
ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARETR

Finance costs g JRS
Interest on bank borrowings ~ $B{TEFFIE 263 - 263 516 = 516
Interest on lease liabilities REBEHNE 509 - 509 687 - 687
172 - 172 1,203 - 1,203
Staff costs (including BIRA(BEES
directors’ emoluments) M)
Salaries, discretionary bonus, &  BIETEAL Rk
allowances and other REMERREN
benefits in kind 76,498 3,359 79,857 69,971 1,292 71,263
Contributions to defined TER (AT BIM 450 (W
contribution plans (Note i) i) 3,828 2,057 5,885 2,726 883 3,609
80,326 5,416 85,742 72,697 2,175 74872
Manpower service expenses AN RFSEI (HaEil)
(Note i) 4,616 - 4,616 5,667 - 5,667
84,942 5,416 90,358 78,364 218 80,539
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e KRR @
Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

7. Loss before Tax (Continued) 7. RBAIEE @
2023 2022

(Restated)

—EoZE —E_-F

(s =31)

Continuing  Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
Operation Operation Consolidated Operation Operation  Consolidated

& BAIE & BRI

RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB000  RMB000
ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR AREBTR ARETR

Other expenses by nature M EEFMEMEE
Cost of raw materials and FE ARV E R

consumables used BFEmKR 103,461 - 103,461 91,901 - 91,901
Subcontracting charges PEER 14,683 - 14,683 15,643 - 15,643
Expenses recognised under B E3T & THERR A

short-term leases %

- Machineries —Hm 17,684 - 17,684 17,397 - 17,397

- Offices, warehouses, -PAE BB

production plant and YERE R

staff quarters BIfES 3,723 28 3,751 4,279 204 4,483
Utilities NEETi 8,657 - 8,657 6,660 - 6,660
Depreciation (charged to “cost  #1& (R ERRA &M

of sales” and “administrative K| R [FTH R E

and other operating 2ERZ MR

expenses”, as appropriate (&)

(Note iii) 34,529 37 34,566 39,609 9 39,618
Amortisation (charged to “cost B8 (R A [SHERK

of sales’ and “administrative A& R [1TBUR Eft

and other operating 2ERZ MR

expenses”, as appropriate)  (FitiEiv)

(Note iv) 860 887 1,747 818 296 1,114
Auditor's remuneration 4G 1,757 - 1,757 1,695 - 1,695
Professional fees EXEA 3,478 321 3,799 5,708 136 5,844
(Reversal of) Provision for write- 7 & Fif& (& R) &1

down of inventories, net ek (3,069) - (3,069) 1,007 = 1,007
Impairment losses on financial £ BEERANEEZ

assets and contract assets  JH{EEE 7,535 - 7,535 290 = 290
Impairment losses on intangible &/ & &

assets AEER - 14,671 14,671 - - -
Other tax and surcharges EBE RN ER 1,664 - 1,664 2,692 6 2,698
Transportation i@ 229 - 229 149 - 149
Traveling expenses ERAY 924 15 939 1,004 8 1,012
Others Htfr 8,268 875 9,143 5,729 966 6,695

204,383 16,834 221,217 194,581 1,625 196,206
Total cost of sales, seling HERK  HERDH

and distrioution expenses, B TRREME

administrative and other ERY  ¢REER

operating expenses, ANEEZHERR

impairment losses on REWEERERS

financial assets and contract 4% (FifEv)

assets and impairment

losses on intangible assets

(Note v) 289,325 22,250 311,575 272,945 3,800 276,745
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

AN
:%/Tcl

B

BT @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

7. BRFAIEIE (@)

7. Loss before Tax (Continued)

Notes:

(i

(i)

As stipulated under the relevant rules and regulations in the PRC,
subsidiaries operating in the PRC contribute to state-sponsored
retirement plans for its employees. For the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022, depending on the provinces of the employees’
registered residences and their current region of work, the subsidiaries
contributed certain percentages of the basic salaries of its employees
and had no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or
postretirement benefits beyond the contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to the retired employees.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group
entered into certain manpower service arrangements with several
external manpower service organisations in the PRC. Under these
arrangements, certain of the Group’s manpower requirements were
fulfilled by these organisations at agreed service fees whereas the
human resources provided were directly employed by the relevant
service organisations. The individuals providing services to the Group
did not have any employment relationship with the Group.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, depreciation
expenses have been charged in costs of sales and administrative and
other operating expenses, as appropriate, as below:

FaE

(i

(i)

REBP BB A RERETE RPEZER
MEBARZAREEEBRBEREARKTEIE
HHR - BE_T-_=FK=_ZT=_—F+=A
=t+—BLEFE BTEENELFELENR
HBRII{EE MIBARAEHEREREER
FeETAE LNER  BEXEE—SEEHR
ZEMFIMIBRSRRKEBEFIELER X
- ZEEREPHRKT BB ERMERIKE
BREBPEREEME -

HE-ZT-_=FK-_FT-_—_F+-A=+—H
IEFE - AEBEEHRPEINIA S ERRH
WETLETANBEEREZH - RIBEEER
e ZEREBRGBEREERRE T AEEE
FAFRK - MmATREER A S ER B ERE RS
WEEEED ZERAAEEREREHAL
WEEREBEG TAREBRER -

BE-_T-_=FKk-_T-_—_F+=-RA=+—H
IEFE - MERIXEBHEXN RN RITEREEM
HERMING (WEA) T :

2023 2022
(Restated)
—E-=HF —ZT-—fF
(=75))
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
Operation operation  Consolidated Operation operation Consolidated
i B&ILE & BEIE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBT T ARBT T ARETT ARETT ARBTT
Costs of sales HEKK 31,698 - 31,698 33,529 - 33,529
Administrative and other ~ {TEX R E & B X
operating expenses 2,831 37 2,868 6,080 9 6,089
34,529 37 34,566 39,609 9 39,618
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MR RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

A el = ——
7. Loss before Tax (Continued) 7. RBAIEE @

Notes: (Continued) BisE - (8)

(v)  During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, amortisation vy BE_ZT-_=FK-_ZT__F+=-A=+—H
expenses have been charged in costs of sales and administrative and IEFE - BERATEREERARITBREM
other operating expenses, as appropriate, as below: EIEFRINBR (WEA) AT -

2023 2022
(Restated)
—E-=F —T-_fF
(m&=5)
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
Operation operation  Consolidated Operation operation Consolidated
B BAL & BEIE
P E 371 P E 374 &8 e meEn Fa
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T ARBT T AREFT AREFT AREFT
Costs of sales HEMRA 327 887 1,214 271 296 567
Administrative and other TR R E M & BRI X
operating expenses 533 - 533 547 - 547
860 887 1,747 818 296 1,114

Included in these expenses, there were staff costs, material costs and
other miscellaneous expenses incurred for research and development
purposes, which in aggregate, amounted to approximately
RMB16,006,000 (2022: RMB1,5054,000) for the year ended 31
December 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 #{ 2 —F — =4+ - H=+—HIFF&

8. Directors’ Emoluments and Emoluments 8. EERAEZESFMA LT 2%

of Five Highest Paid Individuals [y
8(a).Director’s emoluments 8(a). = =5 %
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the BENSESNEFMNH LT

directors were set forth below:

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-_S-_=%F+=-A
=t+—HIFE
Salaries,

allowances Contributions

and other to defined

Directors’ benefitsin  Discretionary  contribution
fees kind bonus plans Total

e 2ER TSR E
ExHe HEREA MERAL fEE @t

Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
M  AR®TR AR®TT AR%TT AR®TRT AR®TR

Executive directors ~ #1TEE i, Iv

Li Hao 3 i 108 1,016 - 33 1,157
Zhang Bizhong RnE 108 749 - 16 873
Xu Shizhen FHE 108 528 - 16 652
Li Bigiong FER 108 143 - 13 264
Hao Xiangjun wiEE i 216 - - - 216

Non-executive director  FEB7TEE v
Yuan Shuntang RIEE i 72 - - 13 85

Inclependent non- BUHNTEE

executive directors v
Wong Chun Sek EHRHE

Edmund 108 - - - 108
Mu Lingxia k2 108 - - - 108
Huang Jianfel HRlFE vi 108 - - - 108

1,044 2,436 - 91 3,571
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e BTSRRI @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

8. Directors’ Emoluments and Emoluments 8. EERAEZESFMA LT 2%

of Five Highest Paid Individuals (Continued) B ()
8(a).Director’s emoluments (Continued) 8. EEHM @)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 | = e R
=+—HBILFE
Salaries,
allowances Contributions
and other to defined
Directors’ benefitsin -~ Discretionary contribution
fees kind bonus plans Total
e 2HR ERMHNE 2
EX0E HMEREN BB R )

Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
it ARBTR  AREBTL  AREBTL ARETR ARETR

Executive directors ~ BiTEE i, Iv

Li Hao &30 i 104 1,146 600 32 1,882
Zhang Bizhong RiE 104 817 450 16 1,387
Xu Shizhen FHE 104 584 300 17 1,005
Li Bigiong ZER 104 153 10 12 279
Hao Xiangjun wiEE i 138 - - = 138
Non-executive director  F#17TE % v

Yuan Shuntang rIEE v 104 - - 13 17

Inclependent non- BUHHTEE

executive directors v
Wong Chun Sek HEHE
Edmund 104 = = - 104
Chen Zhong [ v 86 - - - 86
Mu Lingxia RRE 104 - - - 104
Huang Jianfei Hal3E vi 17 - - - 17
969 2,700 1,360 90 5119
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEERRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

8. Directors’ Emoluments and Emoluments

of Five

Highest Paid Individuals (Continued)

8(a).Director’s emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vi)

The emoluments were for their services in connection with
management of affairs of the Group.

Mr. Li Hao is an executive director, chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company.

Mr. Hao Xiangjun was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 1 April 2022.

The emoluments were for their services as directors of the
Company.

Mr. Chen Zhong resigned as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 19 October 2022.

Mr. Huang Jianfei was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 19 October 2022.

Mr. Yuan Shuntang resigned as a non-executive director of the
Company on 1 September 2023.

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no

emol

uments were paid by the Group to the directors

as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office. No directors waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments in respect of the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

8.

%%&E%%%%ﬁ@ﬂkiz%ﬁ
()

8(a) EE M (40

BT -

() FHARSEASEEREEEBOR
T -

(i) FEEERADBNITES EERT
BAEE, -

iy MBEELEER-_ZT_—_FNWA—REZ
EABRARRITES -

V)  FHABRZEAARRERENRBGHH -

v BRBREER-ZT-_-_F+A+IBEE
ARBBILIFNTES -

V) BRIFEER-_F__FTATHLAE
RERARBVBEILIFATES -

Vi) RIEELEAR-_ZT-_=FHhA—RBET
RARFEHITES ©

HE=T ==k =F csarbile s
=+—HALtFE AEEBEREES
NEN&EABEMALAEE KK INA
BB SREARBREE - MEEZESH
BHE-_T-_=fk-_ZTE-_=_%+=A
=+ — A FERERRE RE (T A B
SR

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2023 1 87



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

8. Directors’ Emoluments and Emoluments 8. EERAEZESFMA LT 2%
of Five Highest Paid Individuals (Continued) [, 1€ ))

8(b).Emoluments of five highest paid 8b). T BHm = F AL ZH A

individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2023 included three (2022:
three) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above and two (2022: two) non-
director individuals whose emoluments are disclosed
as follows:

T+ BHIFERERSFMAL
BEEMESER EXMENSHTH
RO =% (ZFE__F:=F) &
ERME(CE-_—F WRB)FEE
EALT - HBSEENT -

2023 2022
—E=-= — &=
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT T ARBTT

Salaries, allowances and other e EEK

benefits in kind H it B #8812 A 803 868
Discretionary bonus IFIEAT - 450
Contributions to defined TR RGT 8B

contribution plans 27 28

830 1,346
The emoluments fell within the following bands: FHAFUATERN :
2023 2022
—E-=F —F-—
Emolument bands F2 1
Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent = Z 1,000,000 7t (#8& A 47

to approximately = AR¥901,0007T)

Nil to RMB901,000) (2022: (ZEZZF - BERY

equivalent to approximately TE AR¥855,0007T)

Nil to RMB855,000) 2 2
For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, BHE_ZT_=FRkZZT_ZF+=
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the highest A=+—BLFE FAEEHER
paid individuals as a payment for loss of office or as an hEZmEEHFHA TS EABH

BAaESESBRRENAREEIR
IR B 228 -

inducement to join or upon joining the Group.

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
no highest paid individuals as set out above waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments.

HE_S-_=FR-_T-_"F+=
B=+—BLEE LlfENK
SEFMALRERZEXRENET
A% -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEERRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 & 7 — & — =

Ft_A=+—HItFE

9. Taxation 9. BiIE
2023 2022
(Restated)
—EC=E B
(s =31)
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
Operation Operation Consolidated Operation Operation ~ Consolidated
& B&LE BE BRI
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETRT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARET:
Current tax REHE
PRC enterpriseincome tax ~~ AREIEFTEH
(‘PRCEIT) (HERE
FERl) 246 - 246 2,854 - 2,854
Deferred taxation (Note 27)  SEFEH{18 (ff& 27)
Changes in temporary TRE2B28
differences @) 4,182 4,179 (2,279 (1,084) (3,343
Total income tax expenses ~ Fi&HM% (H%)
(credits) fag 243 4,182 4,425 575 (1,064) (489)

The group entities established in the Cayman Islands and
the BVI are exempted from corporate income tax during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group had no assessable profits arising in or derived
from Hong Kong during the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

The Group’s entities established in the PRC are subject
to the PRC EIT at a statutory rate of 25% except for
Shenzhen Confidence Intelligence Electronic Co. Limited*
(“Shenzhen Confidence Intelligence”) (& Il 15 R & 8 &

BB A F]), Regan Financial Information and Chongging
Xinken Technology Company Limited* (“Chongging Xinken
Technology”) (EEERBBEERAR) (EEEFEF
") which were recognised as High and New Technology
Enterprise and is entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15%
during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Shenzhen
Confidence Intelligence and Regan Financial Information
Service Co., Ltd.* (“Regan Financial Information”) (& & 18
% B 1E B RIS B IR 2 &) were recognised as High and New
Technology Enterprise). The entitiement of this tax benefit
is subject to renewal by respective tax bureau in the PRC
every three years.

* For identification purpose only

BE-_T-_=—Ffk=-_FT=Z=ZF+=ZH
=+—HLFE AEBRHAEHER
RBREZHESKINEBERRHMD
EFTEH -

BT -_=fk=-_ZTE-_=_%+=A
=+—HIEFE ARAEEEER
MaFMEERTRERES  BILERR
BEFISTETHREAME -

AREBERPEKLNEBAREEN X
2% BWMTBIBEMBH  MERIER
BRETARAA(RINEREEET
BERRAR] EREVESREEER
MEERAR (TEEERRR]) ERRA
REFRMER BE_FT_=F1+=
A=+—BLFE ARREER=X
15% @B (ZT_F : FIEBREER
LtEEREREERFBERAA (TER
SRESDERA/SHRMEE) - &%
MEBEZERAG=FERABEPER
BRESR-

* BT

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2023 1 89



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
e IIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 & 7 —&F — =

9. Taxation (Continued)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

EF=fEF—HIEE
9. BiIE @)

Reconciliation of income tax expenses BRI HER
2023 2022
—E-=FE —ZE-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
(Restated)
($&&E35)
Continuing Operation BERSEXER
Loss before tax BB RIEE (19,006) (8,679)
Income tax at statutory tax rate REBBAEAERBREE
applicable in respective tax HREMFTEHFHZ
jurisdictions (3,581) (515)
Tax exempt revenue W E R EE (619) (454)
Non-deductible expenses A HMA X 3,458 1,777
Utilisation of previously unrecognised  f# FA ¢ Bl R FE R B 75 B 18
tax losses - 6)
Unrecognised tax losses REERR TS E 1R 2,557 996
Super deductions on research and T B s A0 (B &)
development expenses (Note i) (1,572) (1,223)
Total income tax expenses FrSBim AR 243 575

Note:

(0] According to the relevant laws and regulati
State Administration of Taxation of the PR

in research and development activities are entitled to claim 150% to
175% of their research and development expenses incurred as tax

BYaE -

ons promulgated by the (i)
C, enterprises engaging

BT INBA S o

deductible expenses when determining their assessable profits for that

year.

190 emesERERAT £ 2023

BIEF B ERE B R BBARIERER AR
REMBEFHNOXARCETHLFERERE
A RTEANFEFASZMN150% E175%



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2023 &/ 2 — & — =4

0.

e RRME @

g =

Taxation (Continued)

Reconciliation of income tax expenses
(Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxation profits is probable.
At 31 December 2023, no deferred tax assets arising
from tax losses has been recognised (2022: the Group
recognised deferred tax assets arising from tax losses
of approximately RMB3,118,000 through acquisition of
subsidiaries (Note 27).

At 31 December 2023, the Group has unrecognised
tax losses of approximately RMB482,000 (2022:
RMB403,000)and RMB16,780,000 (2022:
RMB3,855,000), respectively, arising in Hong Kong
and the PRC which are available for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the entities in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these tax losses due to the uncertainty of
future taxable profits against which the tax losses can
be utilised. The tax losses arising in Hong Kong and
the PRC can be carried forward against future taxable
profits. Under the current tax legislation, the tax losses
arising in Hong Kong can be carried forward indefinitely
and the tax losses arising in the PRC can be carried
forward for a maximum of 10 years from the year in
which the tax loss was incurred as the entity which arose
the tax loss is recognised as High and New Technology
Enterprise in the PRC.

The Group has no unrecognised tax losses arising from
the discontinued operation.

F+_HA=F+—HIFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BTSRRI @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 & &=

10. Losses per Share

The calculation of basic and diluted losses per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the

following information:

—E o=+ A=F—HIFE
10. BRE1E

=S
— =

AEARBRE ARIGERERNNEE
EEDERTIIER

2023 2022
== —_=T—-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT
From continuing and discontinued REZFERCKRILEEEK
operations )
Loss B8
Loss for the year attributable to owners AR &t H S AR B A K& #5518
of the Company, used in basic and RARRIEE AEIEFER
diluted losses per share calculation &5 18 (23,840) (9,079)
’000 ‘000
TR Fh&
Number of shares BHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary R EtEFRER R #EE S
shares for basic and diluted losses B i AR DA T X
share calculation 250,000 250,000
RMB cents RMB cents
ARES AR®BS
Losses per share TR E B
Basic and diluted losses per share FRERREEEER (9.54) (3.63)
2023 2022
—EBC-=fF -
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T AREF T
From continuing operation REFBECEXRE
Loss B8
Loss for the year attributable to owners AR &t H S AR R A & #5555 18
of the Company, used in basic and RANDBIEE AEIEFER
diluted losses per share calculation &5 18 (21,683) (11,239)
’000 ‘000
TR Fh&
Number of shares Vg 4=l
Weighted average number of ordinary  F A5t & & % 2 A K #58 E5 18
shares for basic and diluted losses Y i AR DA T X
per share calculation 250,000 250,000
RMB cents RMB cents
AR®S AR
Losses per share TR ETE
Basic and diluted losses per share SREAREEEE (8.67) (4.49)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4= ANH

g =

Year ended 31 December 2023 &/ 2 — & — =4

BRI (@)

10. Losses per Share (Continued)

11.

The basic losses per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Diluted losses per share are same as the basic losses
earnings per share as there are no potential dilutive ordinary
shares in existence for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022.

Discontinued Operation

On 21 August 2023, Wanhai Big Data (as defined in Note
13) (the “Disposal Vendor”), being the Group’s wholly owned
subsidiary, has entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with (i) Regan Shiye Group Co., Ltd.* (B R EX£EEHRE A
A]) (the “Disposal Purchaser”), being the holding company
of the non-controlling shareholder of Regan Financial
Information, and (i) Wanhai Jinyuan (as defined in Note 13),
being the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group immediately
before the Disposal (defined below) and holding 60% equity
interests of Regan Financial Information (the “Disposal
Group”), pursuant to which the Disposal Vendor has agreed
to sell, and the Disposal Purchaser has agreed to acquire
the entire equity interest of Wanhai Jinyuan, at a
consideration of RMB1.0 (the “Disposal”). That transaction
was completed on 21 August 2023 (the “Disposal Date”).

The Financial Application Platform and Platform
Maintenance Services segment was ceased to carry
on upon the completion of the Disposal. Accordingly,
the Group’s Financial Application Platform and Platform
Maintenance Services segment was classified as a
discontinued operation (the “Discontinued Operation”).

The results of the Discontinued Operation have been
presented separately in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Comparative information of the consolidated profit or loss

and consolidated statement of cash flows has been restated
to achieve a consistent presentation.

* For identification purpose only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

11. Discontinued Operation (Continued)
The results of the Discontinued Operation for the reporting

11. R UL K& EFK @)
B4R I 4T 4 2 76 A 3R 25 HARE MO B 48 D T

period was analysed as follows: (N
2023 2022
—=E-= =H=a
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Revenue g 1,116 2,734
Cost of sales SHE KA (3,639) (1,476)
Gross (loss) profit E(B) 7 (2,523) 1,258
Other income H A A 72 39
Other (losses) gains, net Htb (F18) e F58 (22) 7
Selling and distribution expenses  $#H%& &5 $HH X (65) (22)
Administrative and other THREASERT

operating expenses (3,875) (2,302)
Impairment losses on intangible £ 24 R (B &5 18

assets (14,671) =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & M B A Al Ay Uk Z5

(Note 34) (B 5E34) 13,016 -
Gain on bargain purchase WEEN B AR EEREE

arising from the acquisition of Wb i as (B 5 32)

subsidiaries (Note 32) - 2,133
(Loss) Profit before tax Fr AT (B548) i A (8,068) 1,118
Income tax (expense) credits Frisft (A=) #E R (4,182) 1,064
(Loss) Profit for the year FN(BE) &R (12,250) 2,177
(Loss) Profit for the year AT EIEF R (E18) aFl

attributable to:

— Owners of the Company —ARNDRIEAA (2,157) 2,160

— Non-controlling interests —IEPE R A (10,093) 17

(12,250) 2177

Net cash (used in) from operating A& & EE) (FTA) TSI & 558

activities (1,807) 5,978
Net cash used in investing WEEBFAREFHE

activities ©) (9,497)
Net cash from financing activities Bt & /EE TS IR FEE - 7,082
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEERRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 #{ 2 —F — =4+ - H=+—HIFF&

11.

12.

Discontinued Operation (Continued)

The calculation of basic and diluted (losses) earnings
per share attributable to owners of the Company of
the Discontinued Operation is based on the following
information:

11.

CHRIEEERT @
ARFRBEABEEREEEEBNSE
REAR R (B8) BRI RS
BATERHEL, -

2023 2022
—E-=F —F-—
RMB cents RMB cents
AR®S AR
(Loss) Profit for the period ARARHEEAEGLEBR
attributable to owners of the (B18) & F
Company
Basic and diluted ERR#E (0.87) 0.86

The basic and diluted (losses) earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company for the Discontinued Operation
are calculated by dividing the (loss) profit for the year
attributable to the owners of the Company from the
Discontinued Operation for the year by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022. The denominators used are
the same as those detailed in Note 10.

Dividends

The directors did not recommend a payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

12.

AABBEEABEERIELELNE
RREAN & #5E (F518) BFMNETE R A
FRAERIECEEBNER (F518) 55
BB E—_T =Gk -__F+=
AZ+—HLEFEBRITEERMME
T -Fr o M 10 Rt E AR o

Hﬁ/%\
%%T@‘%Eﬁﬁzi_;__$+ A
=t -HLEFERNEARE(ZZE=Z
FE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR RMEE @
Year ended 31 December 2023 #{%2 —F — =4+ - H=+—HIFF/&

13. Subsidiaries

13. it B 2 A
RIBEBRNETSHBATEENT

Details of principal subsidiaries at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

Percentage of effective
interests held/controlled
by the Group
FEEEE/BHH
BEREZRDH
Place of Principal activities
incorporation and and place of Particulars of
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity ~ operation paid up capital 2023 2022
TEAR AR S 3t B IR FEEPR
MEAREE EEEEER EG$ick BRRRAFE —T-=F _—T__F
Directly held
HERE
New Trive Limited BV, limited liability Investment holding 1 United States 100% 100%
company in BVI Dollars (“USD")
New Trive Limited EBEAHES REBRLES IETA(ESH))
BRAT WHEREER
Hero Tag Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding USD1 100% 100%
company in BVI
Hero Tag Limited RERTHS REBRXEHS 17T
BRAT REREER
Indiirectly held
FIERE
New Trive (HK) Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HK$10,000 100% 100%
liability company in Hong Kong
HMBE(BE)ERAF & ARAF NERRERE 10,000# 7T
s
Xinzhi (Shenzhen) Electronic Co.,  The PRC, limited Investment holding RMB100,000 100% 100%
Limited* liability company in the PRC
FERINEFERAR mE BRAR RPBREERE AR 100,0007C
R
Shenzhen Confidence The PRC, limited EMS in the PRC RMB115,238,710 100% 100%
Intelligence liability company
RYERE R HE BRAA RPBEREET AR
BB R 115,238,7107C
Confidence Intelligence Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HK$3,000,000 100% 100%
(Hongkong) Limited liability company in Hong Kong
ERER(FE)BRAR BE  BRAA NEBRERE 3,000,000
s
Chongaing Xinken Technology The PRC, limited EMS in the PRC RMB20,000,000 70% 70%
liability company
EEERME hE BRAR RPBEREET AR
BUER 20,000,000 7%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEERRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

13. Subsidiaries (Continued) 13. [t B A 7] (@)

Percentage of effective
interests held/controlled
by the Group
AEEEBE/BHH
ERERA L
Place of Principal activities
incorporation and and place of Particulars of
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity ~ operation paid up capital 2023 2022
EER AR L 3t B R FEEHR
WEAREE EERRER ik BRRRAFE —T-=F C—T--F
Indlirectly held (continued)
IERE (&)
Hero Tag (HK) Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HK$1 100% 100%
liability company in Hong Kong
Hero Tag (HK) Limited B BRAF REBRERE 18T
PR
Wanhai Big Data Technology The PRC, limited Investment holding RMB6,799,905 100% 100%
(Shanghai) Limited* (“Wanhai liability company in the PRC
Big Data’)
BRREBNE(LE) AR HE BRAA RPBERERE ARE
AR([BEAREE]) PR 6,799,905 7
Anhui Xinken Information The PRC, limited EMS in the PRC Nil (Note i) 100% 100%
Technology Co., Ltd.* (“Anhui liability company
XinKen”)
ZHEREENEBRAF mE: ERRA RPBEREET T (M)
(TZHER]) s R
Shanghai Wanhai Jinyuan The PRG, limited Investment holding Nil (Note i) - 100%
Business Management liability company in the PRC (Note 34)
Company Limited* (‘Wanhai (P £ 34)
Jinyuan”)
FEEBSROEER mE: BERRA RPBRRERE T (Ftati)
BRAA(T&EE2R]) sl
Regan Financial Information The PRC, limited Provision of Financial RMB24,000,000 - 60%
liability company Application (Note 34) (Note 32)
Platform GEXD) (ME32)
and Platform
Maintenance
Services in the
PRC
EREMER hE BRRA A B R & R E AR
RYakta# 24,000,0007C
E MR
Notes: Bt 5T -

(i) The registered share capital of Anhui Xinken is RMB20,000,000.

(i) The registered share capital of Wanhai Jinyuan is RMB100,000,000.

* For identification purpose only

[0} TR BA MR A B A K% 20,000,000 7T ©

(i) BELFENFEMARAAARE100,000,0007T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MR RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

14. % - BERRZRE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

Right-of-use
assets Office Plantand  Furniture and Motor  Leasehold
(Notei) ~ equipment  machinery fixtures vehicles  improvements Buildings Total
FREEE
(Wii)  BORE  HERME  HARRE hE BENERE BT @it
RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTT  ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Reconciliation of FEEHE-
camying amount HE-3--f
- year ended t-h=1+-H
31 December 2022 IF5E
Atthebegiming of e A E3
reporting period 12520 1788 150,201 29 21 2869 9,754 177,744
Addtions HE 3014 43 3324 10 160 942 - 7982
Disposals & - - (467) - - - - (467)
Acouired through FANBHELAES
acquistion of (Wis)
subsidiaries (Note 32) - 100 - - - - - 100
Depreciation i (6,276) (1,148 (28,608 (170) 67) (2,876) (73 (39,618
At the end of the REEHR
reporting period 9,258 1172 124540 2% 320 935 9,281 145,74
Reconcliation of REEYE-
canying amount BEo3ocE
- year ended t-A=1-A
31 December 2023 LEE
Atthebegiming of the A5 E34)
reporting period 9,258 1,172 124,540 235 320 935 9,281 145,741
Addtions RE 467 9 13210 146 161 2941 - 21,138
Disposals i3 (137) - (409) - @ - - (550)
Whiten off s - - (2578) - - - - (2578)
Depreciation g (6,086) (661) (26,226) (134 (12) (859) (473 (34,566)
Disposal of subsiclaries ~ (HEHBAT
(Note 34) (Krsta4) - 89 - - - - - 63
At the end of the REEHR
reporting period 7,106 437 108,537 A7 350 3017 8,808 129,102
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MR RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

14. % - BERRE @

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Right-of-use
assets Office Plantand  Fumniture and Motor Leasehold
(Notei) ~ equipment  machinery fixtures vehicles  improvements Buildings Total
fEREEE
(KisEi) WORE EEREE  FHR%E RE  RENERK L @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  AR%TT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  AREfR  ARETR
At31 December2022  R-F-%
t-A=1-H
Cost A 14,383 562 261,045 1408 2074 11,057 9,951 285,543
Accumulated depreciation Z:H7E (5,125) (4,459 (116,505) (1,173 (1,754 (10,122 670) (139,802
Netcaryngamount ~ BEFE 9,258 1172 124540 23 320 93% 9,281 145,741
At31December 2023 W-F-=E
t=A=1-H
Cost s 18,816 5,453 243,046 1,554 2,147 13,008 9,951 294,065
Accumulated depreciation 23T7E (11,110 (5,016) (134,509) (1,307) (1,797) (10,981) (1,143 (165,863)
Netcaryngamout ~ HEFE 7,706 437 108,537 Pl 350 3017 8,808 129,102
Notes: Bt 5T -

(i) At 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment of approximately RMB10,129,000 (2022:

RMB22,960,000) was pledged to secure banking facilities (Note 25).

RIE-_=%F+_-A=+—H AEEY%E -
BE KR EOIREELNH AR 10,129,000 7T (=
T —4F: AR¥22960,0005T) EEHEKMAE -
LABUSIRTTRYE (PMisE25) °
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Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

14. Y1 % - WE R&2E @)

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

Right-of-use assets

Extension and termination options

The lease contracts of leased properties contain extension or
termination options. These options aim to provide flexibility to the
Group in managing the leased assets. The extension option of the
leased properties is normally exercised because the Group does
not want to incur additional costs, such as leasehold improvements,
while exercising the termination option is normally unusual unless
the Group could replace the leased properties without significant
cost or acquisition of a new property. The Group seldom exercises
options that were not included in the lease liabilities. During the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, all of lease contracts for leased
properties contains an extension or termination option, in which the
total lease payment made amounted to approximately RMB6,095,000
and RMB5,238,000, respectively, representing the total cash outflows
for lease during respective reporting periods.

Restriction or covenants

Most of the leases impose a restriction that, unless approval is
obtained from the lessor, the right-of-use assets can only be used by
the Group and the Group is prohibited from selling or pledging the
underlying assets. The Group is also required to keep those leased
assets in a good state of repair and return the leased assets in their
original condition at the end of the lease.

Commitments under leases

At 31 December 2023, the Group was committed to short-term leases
or low-value asset leases of approximately RMB1,300,000 (2022:
RMB1,832,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEERRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

15. Intangible Assets 15. BLEE
e-Financial
Club App Software Total
EHex B4 wet
(Note i)
(P&
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T
Recondiliation of carrying IREEYER—
amount — year ended S —
31 December 2022 TZA=+—RALFE
At the beginning of the R & B )
reporting period - 1,278 1,278
Additions NE 3,207 1,079 4,286
Acquired through acquisition 3% B Ux B [ BB A 71 S
of subsidiaries (Note 32) (BtzE32) 12,647 - 12,647
Amortisation 5 (296) (818) (1,114)
At the end of the reporting MR E B R
period 15,558 1,539 17,097
Reconciliation of carrying  BREI{E ¥ BR —
amount - year ended BE-Z-=F%
31 December 2023 +-A=+—HLEEE
At the beginning of the R & B )
reporting period 15,558 1,539 17,097
Additions NE - 272 272
Impairment loss (Note i) WEEE (FEED) (14,671) - (14,671)
Amortisation 5 (887) (860) (1,747)
At the end of the reporting REREEAR
period - 951 951
At 31 December 2022 RNZE——
+=-—A=+—H
Cost D% 15,854 3,397 19,251
Accumulated amortisation R EH (296) (1,858) (2,154)
Net carrying amount BREFE 15,558 1,539 17,097
At 31 December 2023 R-ZZE=Z=
+=-A=+—H
Cost [N - 3,669 3,669
Accumulated amortisation BT - (2,718) (2,718)
Net carrying amount REFE - 951 951
Note: BfoEE -
[0) It represents development costs of the financial application platform i) HEHE - -_—F+-A=+—BLEFEE
which were acquired as part of a business combination during the year REBEH—BoMEEN S RLER T M5
ended 31 December 2022. TR o
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Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

15. B E&E (@)

15. Intangible Assets (Continued)
Note: (Continued)

0

(Continued)

The Group’s management reviews internal and external sources
of information at the end of the reporting period to assess any
impairment indication on the Group’s intangible assets, in particular,
for the acquired e-Financial Club App through the acquisition of
Regan Financial Information. Being a new entrant to the fintech
and insurance-related market, Regan Financial Information is facing
keen competition from large insurance groups with their own online
platforms in the PRC and finds it is difficult to expand the customer
scale, and accordingly the market acceptance and subscription
progress of the financial application platform has been slower than
expected. Due to the abovesaid reasons, the segment of provision
of Financial Application Platform and Platform Maintenance Services
recorded an operating loss during the first half of financial year ended
31 December 2023. In addition, it has come to the Group’s attention
that recently there are certain negative news and legal proceedings
against the parties connected with the non-controlling interests of
Regan Financial Information which made the Group having concern
in the market responses to the e-financial club App and its future
profitability. As a result, the Group’s management considered that the
e-Financial Club App might be impaired.

In view of this, the Group estimated the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (the “CGU”) in respect of the business of
Financial Application Platform and Platform Maintenance Services as
the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and the value in use
of the CGU based on the valuation report prepared by an independent
professional valuer and authorised and issued on 29 August 2023
(the “Valuation Date”). The CGU consisted of the e-Financial Club App
and certain equipment under the business of Financial Application
Platform and Platform Maintenance Services with net carrying values
of approximately RMB14,671,000 and RMB83,000, respectively, on
the Valuation Date.

The independent professional valuer estimated the recoverable amount
of the CGU with reference to a value-in-use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the Group’s
management covering a 5.5-year period derived from the CGU at the
Valuation Date. The significant inputs into this valuation approach are
(i) the budgeted gross margin, which is determined based on the past
performance and the expectations of the management of the Group
for the market development business of Financial Application Platform
and Platform Maintenance Services; (i) pre-tax discount rate to derive
the present value of future cash flows of approximately 24.95%; and (i)
long-term growth rate of approximately 2.0% per annum.

Based on the assessment, the recoverable amount of the CGU based
on the value-in-use calculation is lower than its carrying amount on
the Valuation Date. Therefore, impairment losses of approximately
RMB14,671,000 was provided against the intangible assets and
recognised in profit or loss for year ended 31 December 2023. There
was no significant change in the recoverable amount of the equipment
as compared to its carrying amount.

Subsequent to the recognition of the aforementioned impairment
losses, the Group has disposed the CGU through disposal of
subsidiaries (Note 34).
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ARERENRESELEM((REELEM)
WA EEARFERBERRNERSES
BUNERABERETNRTE - ZASEL
BUBHESHeRNEREATAERTAKE
RBEETRE  NMEEDBOEEFED
#) AR ¥ 14,671,000 7T & A R #5 83,000 7T °

AEEEREGNREEEBMNMATKEISE -
BEASETEBIENVREE  BENY
BEREMESEABMNNGSF  WREFHAE
BEErE A EE AR RERGIR S EMD
A EI S - X EEHENEEGAZIES ()
HEEMNE ZEMNEREEEEEEBHESR
ERATFERTFERERBMISAEEBNBT
REMBHEE  ()BATAREE - UBHARR
/e MM IRE K 524.95% ¢ K (i) & H g & &
HNEEFF2.0% °

BETE ENEREBEETENBRGELS
HAKRESERERERNGEERSNERS
Fo-RA BE-T=-=F+=-A=+—A01
FE EDREREEFRREBEHARE
14,671,0007C R R B2 R - REH AT K E &
HEHREEMAL WEEAEL -

WRLREBRE  AEERBLENBELR
A ERSELEMN (H5E84) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEERRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

15.

16.

Intangible Assets (Continued)

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the following periods:

15.

| EE #)
tiEREEEARAGEREY - R E
FAEN TR R B e Sy -

Development costs — e-Financial Club App 10 years AEX R —EfeX T4
Software 3 years B =%
Investment in An Associate 16. R —REB=E AR 2RE
2023 2022
—E-= =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBEF T
Unlisted shares, at cost IEETRRG  RAAR - 1,000
Impairment losses S {E B 1 - (1,000)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
acquired 8% equity interests in Renxiao Technology
(Shenzhen) Company Limited* (“‘Renxiao”) A BRI CRII)
BFR/A7], an entity incorporated in the PRC and principally
engaged in production, research and development and
sales of intelligent hardware and cloud platform products,
at a consideration of RMB1,000,000. Renxiao is a private
company and there is no quoted market price available for
its shares.

The Group management had assessed the level of influence
that the Group exercises on Renxiao during the year ended
31 December 2022, and determined that it has significant
influence thereon through a board representation and other
arrangements made. Consequently, this investment was
classified as an investment in an associate.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, Renxiao was
deregistered. The Group’s management assessed that the
investment costs of Renxiao would not be recoverable and
has fully written off the previously fully impaired investment
costs.

* For identification purpose only

BE—ZE—RNF+-A=+—HILEE -
AEEZEREARE1,000,000 7T 4K E A
BRI OFYD) BR AR ([AE]) 8%
- ANEAE— R REEMAZAERS -
FEREEE MBERHEHESHEESFR
EmTeEm ABABRLART  HK
DA BTG RIE o

BE-_E-_—F+-A=+—HILEE -
AEBEEECTHEASEEY ABETE
REREHEMZHEME L EBERNE
Z2.RAW ZREESEARN —MHEZ
REIZIE -

HE-_E-_=F+-_A=+—HItEE "
ABEEEHEER A EEEREET (G
PABERNRE A G E LR E - R
Tl 88 S0 AT B BUR BRI B R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e BTSRRI @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

17. Prepayments, Deposits and Other 17. AR RE - BEREMEWKRR
Receivables b |
2023 2022
—EB-=fF —_F--
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5% AR¥T R ARET T
Current portion B EA &8 o
Prepayments to suppliers TE AT P SRR 806 535
Prepayment for a leased HERENTER RIE
warehouse - 897
Prepayment for consultancy TR BARG &
services fee 1,994 -
Rental and other deposits HERHMES 17() 910 1,107
Interest receivables from unlisted 3 ET R GIEHHY
corporate bonds JE W ) 2, 462 110

Interest receivables from amount  JEUL— & &7 5 =77 ;B
due from an independent third A FE U B

party 80 =
Value added tax (“VAT”) receivable & U8 A ([HE{EF ) - 416
Other receivables H fth fE UL SR IE 17(i) 375 593
Amount due from Wanhai Jinyuan &4 &8 £ R 518 17/ 7,032 -
11,659 3,658
Less: Loss allowance B R (7,032) —
4,627 3,658
Non-current portion FEENER I 5
Prepayments of acquisition of EEWE  BER
property, plant and equipment R ENTIA 194 1,489
Amount due from an independent B —HBIZE=TFKIE  17(i)
third party 4,551 -
Rental deposits HEZS 17() 1,321 1,296
6,066 2,785
Less: Loss allowance L EE R (194) -
5,872 2,785
10,499 6,443
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

17. Prepayments, Deposits and Other 17. AR RE - ZERHEMEKRR

Receivables (Continued) 18 ()

Notes: B 5T -

[0) At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the carrying amounts of deposits [0) RZE—=FR_F__F+=A=+—8"
and other receivables approximated their fair values. These balances Re REMERFENREEREL QT ERE
were unsecured and interest free. ZERBREERR RS -

(i) Amount due from an independent third party iy FEW—BBIE=FFIE

2023

—EC-=F

RMB’000

ARBT T

Amount due from an independent third party R — BB E = F KB 4,551

Loss allowances EREE (194)

4,357
This principal amount of the amount due from an independent third Bl —2BIYUE=FTRENLTSSEA
party was HK$5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB4,531,000 5,000,000 T (R-ZE-_=F+=-A=1+—8H
at 31 December 2023). The amount due was unsecured, bearing HERH AR 4,531,000/87T) ° % EWHKE
interest of 10% per annum, and repayable in 2 years. ERER  R10% FHERFL ARMFANEE -

@iy Amount due from Wanhai Jinyuan (i) ERESSRRE

2023

—EBE-=F

RMB’000

ARBTT

Amount due from Wanhai Jinyuan el B8 IRFE 7,032

Less: loss allowances o R RS (7,032)
The amount due was unsecured, interest free and repayable on FEMRERIE R AR - B RIRBREE -

demand.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments, deposits AEBERMNFE  Ze REMWEKKEA

and other receivables were denominated in the following MEREENR N EEEE -

currencies:

2023 2022

—_Eg-= =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBFT
RMB AR¥E 3,472 6,194
HK$ BETT 7,027 249
10,499 6,443
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e KRR @
Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

18. Financial Assets at FVOCI

The Group’s financial assets at FVOCI comprise equity
securities which are not held for trading and which the
Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to

18. M A FEFT AHtL 2 H W= /Y

TRMEE

AEEMNRAFESALBE2E KRN
CREEBRAUFFEEZTALREEN
AT 4 B 3 228 122 10 ) 9 B R B TR A% B I A

recognise in this category.

2023 2022
—EB-=fF —FE-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Listed trading securities RS ES
— Baidu, Inc. —Baidu, Inc. 652 619
— Bilibili Inc. —Bilibili Inc. 309 607
— 3SBio Inc. —3SBio Inc. 6,338 6,895
— Yuexiu Services Group Limited —HERGEERR AR 1,359 1,719
8,658 9,840
The movements of the financial assets at FVOCI are BAFEFAHEMBEZARENEMEE
analysed as follows: FEHomMT
2023 2022
—EBE-=F —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
At the beginning of the reporting Rk HA )
period 9,840 8,369
Changes in fair values recognised in R E 2 E W= ERH A FE
other comprehensive income HE) (1,317) 673
Exchange realignments EH B 135 798
At the end of the reporting period RS ER 8,658 9,840

All of the financial assets at FVOCI are denominated in HK$.

* For identification purpose only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEERRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

19. Inventories 19. 7 &
2023 2022
—EC-=F =3==63
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Raw materials R 18,649 21,574
Less: Write-down provision B OB (662) (3,731)
17,987 17,843
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and HEZZ-="F+-HA=1+—HIEFE "
included in “cost of sales” during the year ended 31 # AR #103,461,000 (ZE = =
December 2023 was approximately RMB103,461,000 AR #91,901,0007T) WFEKAE R
(2022: RMB91,901,000) (Note 7). BREZWET ATHERAR] (FET) -
A reverse of write-down of inventories, net, amounting BHE_Z-_=-F+-_H=1+—HIEFE "
to approximately RMB3,069,000 was recognised in the # A R 3,069,000 JT & 17 & #fi sk 8 51 )5
consolidated profit or loss and included in “cost of sales” HERNGREBRRERIL T ATHERA]
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: provision for TEIZF FEMRBEIFEOAR
write-down of inventories, net, amounting to approximately #1,007,0007T) (f5E7) - BE=ZT ==
RMB1,007,000) (Note 7). The reversal of write-down of F+_A=1+—HLEFE HRGFEM
inventories, net, for the year ended 31 December 2023 was BEBEFBE AR AEEREABFED
primarily due to certain of the Group’s inventories which was WoRmE TEFEE ERAEEEME -

wrote-down in previous years were sold in current period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 #{%2 —F — =4+ - H=+—HIFF/&

20. BEMERATTENERMEE

20. Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
acquired an unlisted bond from an independent third
party (the “Bond Issuer”) with a principal amount
of HK$20,000,000, equivalent to approximately
RMB17,865,000, for 1 year maturity starting from 29
September 2022 at a fixed interest rate of 8% per annum.

On 14 July 2023, the Group entered into a supplementary
agreement with the Bond Issuer, pursuant to which, both
parties agreed to extend the maturity date of the unlisted
corporate bond for 1 year, from the original maturity date
on 28 September 2023 to 28 September 2024. The
principal amount remained at HK$20,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB18,125,000) with a fixed interest rate of
8% per annum.

REBE-_T-_—_F+_A=+—HLILHF
B AEER—E2BIFE=H ([EH%
1T A ) Y2 B8 A& £ %8 20,000,000 7% 7T (48
ERHAREA17,865,0007T) H3E FTE
HF B-E-_—_FNANA=-T+THhBEFAE
BH—F RETFMNES%TE -

RZE_=F+A+MAB AEHHEEF
FBROTANBEE—MDERBE Bt &
FREGIELTRARESFNEEHERR
BT _=F A=+t N NHER—
FEZZE-_WNMFRAZ+NB -A&HE
13 /20,000,000 ¢ (HHE RO AR
18,125,0007T) ' [EEFF|E 58% °

2023 2022

—==-= e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®EFT T ARBFIT
Unlisted corporate bond JE LT ARMES 18,125 17,865
Provision for impairment losses BB E B (910) (591)
Unlisted corporate bonds, net LT ARMESRFRE 17,215 17,274

The movements of the financial asset at amortised cost are
analysed as follows:

REHFERATENSREEZS HIMT -

2023 2022
—EBC-=F —EF_—
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBFT

At the beginning of the reporting R 3R H )
period 17,274 16,080

Additions nE - 18,089
Redemption & o] - (17,537)
Provision for impairment losses R (B B R (309) (288)
Exchange realignments i H SRR 250 930
At the end of the reporting period R ¥R HAR 17,215 17,274

The unlisted corporate bond at amortised cost is
denominated in HK$.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEERRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

21. Contract Assets, Trade and Bills 21. 6N EE EZRWFERE

Receivables WEE
2023 2022
—_Eg-= —_F_—
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mo aE ARET T ARETF T
Contract assets EREE 21(a) 44,763 39,318
Trade receivables, from third parties B % =75 & 5 EUWFRIAE 35,419 30,430
Less: Loss allowances for trade B ESERRIEZ
receivables B a1 (131) (131)
Trade receivables, net B 5 W IEF 21(b) 35,288 30,299
Bills receivables e E & 21(0) 12,732 6,395
Contract assets, trade and bills BHEE BHREKK
receivables, net T8 K EUR =R 558 92,783 76,012

ANE.eNEE
GHEERASEGESE FRER
0 EBHY B ek 18 R B 2= AR 75 W ER
REMER o &R KA ERER
—BEHF—ZEZOEA(ZTE==
—ZNER) ANEEERZEZES

21(a).Contract assets
Contract assets represent the Group’s rights to
consideration for work completed but unbilled for its
services provided for EMS segment. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the
rights become unconditional, which generally takes

one to four months (2022: one to four months). FE W FRIE o
Movements of contract assets are as follows: BHEEMNEEHNOT
2023 2022
—EC-=F D= ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
At the beginning of the reporting R ¥R & E1 %))
period 39,318 55,052
Additions NE 44,763 39,318
Transferred to trade receivables T8 S REINEIE (39,318) (55,158)
Written off i - 106
At the end of the reporting period 7R & Hik 44,763 39,318

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the contract assets
are expected to be recovered within 12 months.

RZE_=ZFR-_ZFE__F+_H8
=+—H AHEBEEBRFTERT=

& A e -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e KRR @
Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

21. Contract Assets, Trade and Bills 21. 6N EE EZRWNFERE

Receivables (Continued)

21(b). Trade receivables, from third parties
The Group’s business with its trade debtors is mainly
on credit basis and the credit period is ranging from
30 to 120 days (2022: 30 to 120 days). At the end
of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables, net of loss allowance, by invoice date was

WEE @)
20 RBEE=ZFWE Z EWFIE

AEBREEFEBAZEZITE

RARERLAET

mEEHTF

301208 (ZZE = =4 : 30E 120
B) - RIEHR HEZEHHENE
S REWGRIE (OB B IB ) M BRIk

as follows: ST :

2023 2022

—EC-=F —EgE-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Less than 1 month LR 11{E A 10,616 18,139
1 to 2 months 12218 A 12,083 5,086
2 to 3 months 2Z= 3@ A 9,328 4113
Over 3 months HBim31E A 3,261 2,961
35,288 30,299

At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade receivables (net of loss allowance) by due date

RBMEHR ZIHENEFHEK
HIE (B BB M) 10 BRik o AT a0

is as follows: T

2023 2022

—E-=HE —=E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Not yet past due 3 4% 180 2 31,813 29,560
Less than 1 month past due EH P 1 8 A 2,931 373
1 to 2 months past due wE1 = 2@ A 431 120
2 to 3 months past due w2 = 3@ A 113 246
35,288 30,299

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks
and loss allowance on trade receivables is included in
Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

21. Contract Assets, Trade and Bills 21. 6N EE EZRWFERE
Receivables (Continued) WEE @)
21(c).Bills receivables 2(c). BN R E

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, all bill receivables are
interest-free and guaranteed by banks in the PRC and
have maturities of less than six months.

R-ZB-_=FK-_ZFT-_—_F+=-H4
=+—H FERKEEAETS
AP BEMNRITEEREREISHEIR
NEA -

21(d).The carrying amounts of the Group’s contract assets,
trade and bills receivables were denominated in the

AQAEBEANEE BEHRKHEAR
R REE T E%EHE

following currencies:

2023 2022

—_E-= e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFIT
RMB AR 92,766 73,887
Usb e 17 2,125
92,783 76,012

22. Cash and Cash Equivalents 2. BERREEEY

2023 2022

—ECZ=F S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T NS
Cash at banks RITEE 60,611 113,130
Cash on hand FHEE® 85 68
Less: Pledged bank deposits W BEIRITER - (1,696)
Cash and Cash Equivalents BERIREEEBY 60,696 111,502

At 31 December 2023, bank deposits amounting to RMB

R-ZE_=+-A=+—HB R1777F

Nil (2022: RMB1,696,000) were pledged to secure banking
facilities (Note 25) granted to the Group.

FAANRBKET (ZE-_—F: ARK
1,696,0007T) EEHEAR T AEER
TRVE MR (FisE25) »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

22.

23.

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents and pledged bank deposits were denominated
in the following currencies:

22.

RERBEELEEY @)

AEERERBASEEY RS ERRT
FROEEEATIIEEE

2023 2022
:‘%FE:E —_=__

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R AREF T

RMB AR 32,555 100,272

uUsD ET 4,991 6,333

HK$ BT 23,150 6,593

60,696 113,198

Cash at banks earned interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposits rate.

At 31 December 2023, cash and cash equivalents of
the Group amounting to approximately RMB36,630,000
(2022: RMB104,652,000), were deposited with the banks
in the PRC where the remittance of funds out of the PRC
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the Government of the PRC.

Trade Payables

The trade payables are unsecured, interest-free and with
normal credit terms ranging from 30-90 days.

At the end of each reporting period, the ageing analysis of

23.

RITREERBEARTHERMNRZZS
FRERENA B

R-EBE-_=ZF+-_A=+—8 ' K&EH
Re MRSZEEWH A AR 36,630,000
T(ZE=—4F: AR¥104,652,0007C) °
GRPBEFEANMIRT MEESEDLS
B 5 A B R T AR A0 HNEE B 3R AR Bl RROA AR
HE -

EZENRIE
BHRNFBEBAERT THERIESR
FEBNFI0RENKX -

REREHMR HHEAHMNEZEMN

the trade payables based on invoice date is as follows: FERREDITAT

2023 2022

—EB-=F —F-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT R ARBTT
Within 1 month 118 AR 8,886 15,899
1 to 2 months 1Z=2{@A 4,676 7,759
2 to 3 months 2E3fEA 1,166 84
Over 3 months Him3MEA 148 79
14,876 23,821
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

23. Trade Payables (Continued) 23. E 5 ERRIE @)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables were AEEEZEMNKENERAENATIE
denominated in the following currencies: BEETHE -
2023 2022
—Z=-= =mE==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARET T
RMB AR 12,608 22,059
UsbD eV 2,268 1,762
14,876 23,821

24. Contract Liabilities, Other Payablesand 24. 8488 HttENRERE

Accruals TEH
2023 2022
—E-=F —=E-—
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® T AR T T
Contract liabilities eEHNEaE 24(a) 1,175 4,180
Other payables and accruals HihEARIERETEH
Payable for operating expenses e AR
JE S FRIE 2,649 4177
Payable for staff salaries and BRNEIHFERAN
manpower service expenses RIS X 9,729 14,516
VAT and other tax payables B R N H A E A I8 5,666 13,608
Other payables BT ROR 584 297
Accruals Est &R 3,034 2,877
21,662 S5475
22,837 39,655
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R SRR MEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 #{%2 —F — =4+ - H=+—HIFF/&

24, Contract Liabilities, Other Payables and 24. 84 8@  HttEENRERE
Accruals (Continued) Eig-4::KC )

24(a).Contract liabilities Up.EHNEE

Contract liabilities represent advance payments
received from the customers for services that have
not been transferred to the customers. The contract
liabilities fluctuated during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 due to fluctuation in sales
orders with advance payments.

The balance at the end of each reporting period is
expected to be recognised as revenue in the next
reporting period. The movements (excluding those
arising from increase and decrease both occurred
within the same reporting period) of contract liabilities
within HKFRS 15 are as follows:

AEHEEERNAE TFTEFOR
BHEE W B R T8 U FIE o B R BT
EFEWRBENEEIEERS &=
B =FR_ZFT__HF+=A8
=+ HIFENEOEBEEEE -

EBRESHRNERBHR T —®/E
HIRERARRa BB MBHREE
AIFE15RBBANSNREZES (T

345 7 — 5 45 9 0 2 A £ 48 0 R
SERMEB) T :

2023 2022
—E=-= —_=__
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

At the beginning of the reporting PR & HA 47

period 4,180 1,503
Additions NE 1,175 1,570
Revenue recognised (Note 4) TR (HaE4) (3,989) (1,503)
Acquired through acquisition of FRWENB A ES

subsidiaries (Note 32) (FF3E32) - 2,610
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 34)  H & E A 7 (MizE34) (191) =
At the end of the reporting period 7 &5 Hik 1,175 4,180

The contract liabilities at 31 December 2023 and 2022
represented the aggregate amount of the transaction
price allocated to the performance obligations that are
unsatisfied as of the end of each reporting period. The
Group expects the transaction price at 31 December
2023 and 2022 of approximately RMB1,175,000
and RMB4,180,000, respectively, allocated to the
unsatisfied performance obligations will be recognised
as revenue in one year or less when the obligations are
performed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MR RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

24. Contract Liabilities, Other Payables and

Accruals (Continued)

24(b). The carrying amounts of the Group’s contract liabilities,
other payables and accruals were denominated in the

following currencies:

2. EHERE HttENRBERE
T2 A @)
Ub). AEBEANEE  HMENKER

FEET B RMREEI T E%EHE :

2023 2022
—®=-= ot - i

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T AREF T

RMB AR 20,093 36,599

usD ETT 28 1,019

HK$ BT 2,716 2,037

22,837 39,655

25. Bank Borrowings 25. RITE ™

The secured bank borrowings are repayable ranging from EERRBRITEREBEBART —FR
within one year to over five years since their inception. At EAFUEER R T _=F+_F7

31 December 2023, the secured bank borrowings carried
weighted average effective interest rate of approximately
4.70% per annum (2022: 5.40% per annum).

=+—8 AE\ETERILZNEES
BEFEFRGALT0% (ZFE = —F : FF|
R5.40%) °

REREMR  AEBERITEKNFE

At the end of each reporting period, details of the bank

borrowings of the Group are as follows: wm
2023 2022
—E-=F -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Secured bank borrowings BEMRITER 3,750 8,022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

25. Bank Borrowings (Continued)

The bank borrowings are secured by:

(i)  certain property, plant and equipment with aggregate
net carrying amounts of approximately RMB10,129,000
at 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB22,960,000), as set
out in Note 14;

(i) pledged bank deposits with carrying amounts of RMB
Nil at 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB1,696,000), as
set out in Note 22; and

(iiiy corporate guarantee provided by the Company.

All banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants, as is commonly found in lending arrangements
with financial institutions. If the Group was to breach
the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become
repayable on demand. In addition, the subsidiaries’ loan
agreements contain clauses which give the lender the right
at its sole discretion to demand immediate repayment
at any time irrespective of whether the subsidiaries have
complied with the covenants and met the scheduled
repayment obligations. Therefore, the entire balance for the
bank borrowings was classified as current liabilities.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants and does not consider it probable that the banks
will exercise their discretion to demand repayment so long
as the Group continues to make payments according to
the schedule of the loans. Further details of the Group’s
management of liquidity risk are set out in Note 36. At 31
December 2023 and 2022, none of the covenants relating
to drawn down facilities had been breached.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings were
denominated in following currencies:

25. SRITE R (&)

RITE IR AT 77 A

iy R-B-_=F+_A=+—H8"'%&
THHE - -BELREERTBBELHA
R#10,129,000 L (ZE = —4F : A
R #22,960,0007T) HAMIFE14 :

i) RZTE_=F+-_H=+—HB B
ERBTEREAEOARES T
(ZZ2EZ % : AR%1,696,0007T)
B ME22 0 K

(i) AARNRBIRHEMODELER-

FARITRENBETRSREBI L
MERLHEP T R R - M E AR
BERZw CRRGEERERARER
BE - MBRARANERBREE
R - ERTEAAEN  THRETERQ
ARAENRENENREEREFE
& - Al 2R IERER ZRADEE R © EI -
RITEREREBDERRBDAE -

AEBETHERZSHLENA BB -
TREAEBEEREETEERIMN
RITTRATBEITHEEMBEEERER -
FRAEEEERIUERBNELFE
HRHEG R T =ZFN T
F+_A=+—8 BMEERFRIER
MENRFE -E - BOTEREHREH
DEBREBERE -

AEERITERNBREEA T IIEEHE

2023 2022
—E-=F — ===

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARETF T

RMB AR 3,750 4,250

UsD ETT - 3,772

3,750 8,022
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Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

26. Lease Liabilities 26. HE& &
26(a). The consolidated statement of financial position shows 26(a). A EMBEN S EEHNLEE MBI
the following amounts relating to leases: MFET
2023 2022
—EBE-=F —_F--
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Right-of-use assets (Note 14) FEREEE (FfHE14)

Properties LES 7,228 9,258
Plant and machineries R 5 Be e A 478 =
7,706 9,258
2023 2022
—E-=F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR T T
Lease liabilities HEAE
Current portion BNER &L 5 6,122 4,391
Non-current portion JEBNEREL 2,131 5,286
8,253 9,677
At 31 December 2023, the weighted average effective R-ZFB_=ZF+_A=+—-H'A
1= =4 35 \[7 45 =
interest rates of the lease liabilities of the Group were HE Tﬁ EREMNMNEFHERSFF
approximately 5.35% per annum (2022: 5.05% per EHR535% (ZF__F : FFIxX
annum). 5.05%) °
At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the carrying amounts 5_/\\ =2 T i +=A
of the Group’s lease liabilities were denominated in =T —R AREHEEREMNER
RMVB. BEUARBEHE -
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26. Lease Liabilities (Continued)

26(b).The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows the
following amounts relating to leases:

26. HEEE
26(0). BT B AR B 10 2 A

M -

REEBRAER

2023 2022

—E-=HE = —
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT T ARETIT

Depreciation charges of right-of FHEEEREEHR
use assets

Properties LES 5,321 6,168
Plant and machineries 5 5 B HE A 765 108
6,086 6,276
Finance costs (Note 7) MR A (HaE7) 509 6387

26(c).During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
the total cash outflow for leases were analysed as

below.

60 BE_T_=ZFR-_T_—_F+=
A=+—RLELFE HERLRL

BT o

2023 2022
—E-=F —F-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREET T
Cash flows used in operating RETHFIARSRE
activities
Expenses under short term leases 2 HFAE THIA TS IER
in respect of (Note 7): S (FsE7) -
— Machineries — B 17,684 17,397
- Offices, warehouses, producton —HAZE - BfE - AERKE &
plant and staff quarters BIES® 3,751 4,483
Cash flows used in financing RMETEARERE
activities
— Payment of principal element of —XHHE&E 2 A& LD
lease liabilities (Note 31(b)) (M 5E31(b)) 6,095 5,238
— Payment of interest elementof ~ —XfIHHEBEZF EH 5
lease liabilities (Note 31(b)) (FF5E31(0)) 509 687
28,039 27,805
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27. Deferred Taxation

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets
and liabilities relate to the same tax authority.

27. IEER 1B

2B HOX ] 58 BB 1T 2 HE I 5 B H AR IR
BEENHARAAGERE BREME
HEEMBBESRA-—HERER &
EFFEHEERBBEEREH -

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated financial MEINGEMBREMS BEERIEZ
statements, the following is the analysis of the deferred DT
taxation:
2023 2022
—ZE=-= S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTx ARBTTT
Deferred tax assets R IBE E 2,923 7,972
Deferred tax liabilities BERIERE (345) (1,215)
Deferred tax assets, net R I8 & BT 5 2,578 6,757
The movements in the Group’s deferred tax assets (liabilities) RAEBRLEREE (BB MEBNT :
were as follows:
Rights-of-use (Accelerated)/
assets and decelerated
Contracts lease Tax  Government fax
assets liabilties losses grants  depreciation Others Total
FREEER () /"
AhEE  HERE  HERE  WRED  RERE H it
RMB000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
At1 January 2022 N2 F-A-H (2906) (19 - 3042 32 - 2%
Acquired through acquiston of FRlERELANE
subsidares Note 32) (k%) - - 3118 - - - 3118
Credited (Charged) o the REgtEE (k)
proft orloss 2514 (87 1,082 (191) (35) 4 3343
At 31 December 2022 and RoB-ZET2A=T-HR
1 January 2023 Z5IcE-f-8 (392 (229) 4170 2851 37 0 6,757
Wiiten off i - - (170 - - (12) (18
Credited (Charged) o te HERTES (R)
proft or loss 40 122 - (376) (125) 29) 3
At 31 December 2023 W-BZ=E+Zf=1-A 18 (1on - 2475 192 - 2578
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27. Deferred Taxation (Continued)

The Group had undistributed earnings of approximately
RMB97,223,000 (2022: RMB103,441,000) at 31 December
2023, which, if paid out as dividends, would be subject to
tax in the hands of the recipient. An assessable temporary
difference exists, but no deferred tax liability has been
recognised as the parent entity is able to control the timing
of distributions of dividends from the PRC subsidiary and is
not expected to distribute these profits in the foreseeable
future.

28. Deferred Government Grants

27. IR FEBLIE ()
RZBEZ=F+=—A=Z+—H ' KX&H
KO EF L AR 7,223,000 (=&
— 4 AR¥103,441,0007T) © 4 1E
BREIRM  BEWR S EASMTE -
JERRERBEZEFTHE  ERERRE
ERBEE RRAD LA EBEMT
HITk 5 E AP BB R R DR SRR
BESTERN ] R RO EZEFE -

28. i i BUF i BY

2023 2022
—=E-= =Em==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT T AREET T
Current portion BN ER =65 5,016 4,088
Non-current portion FERNEREL 11,479 14,917
16,495 19,005
Movement of assets related government grants: HENEMEENEEEZS)
RMB’000
AREET T
At 1 January 2022 R_ZE-_—_F—A—H 20,276
Received during the year FRFTIR 3,110
Credit to profit or loss (Note 5) T ABE (F3E5) (4,381)
At 31 December 2022 and R-B-_—_F+-A=+—HK
1 January 2023 —E-=%—H—H 19,005
Received during the year F A FTI 2,993
Credit to profit or loss (Note 5) s AEE (FEEs) (5,503)
At 31 December 2023 R=ZB=-Z=F+=A=+—H 16,495

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
government grants have been received for the purchase of
certain property, plant and equipment.
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29. Share Capital and Share Premium 20, BRAK BB =E
Number
of shares Nominal value
RO E HE
’000 HK$’000
Fi FAT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each B EiRR0.01 48T 100,000,000 1,000,000
Number Nominal Share Nominal Share
of shares value premium value premium
Ri%E HfE R [ RiEE
'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Tk TET T ARETT ARBTT
(approximate) (approximate)
(4) (§4)
Issued and fully paid: BRARAR:
At 1 January 2022, R-B-Z%-A-8B"
31 December 2022, Sl 25 - [y el =
1 January 2023 and ZEZ=§-A-BR
31 December 2023 ZB-=F+-A=+-H 250,000 2,500 109,640 2,250 98,676
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30. f#

30. Reserves

30(a). Other reserve

Other reserve represents the combined share capital
and capital reserve of the companies comprising the
Group, after elimination of inter-company transactions
and balances at 31 December 2023 and 2022
in relation to the Company’s reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) underwent in previous reporting
periods.

30(b).Statutory reserve

The PRC laws and regulations require companies
registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory
reserves, which are to be appropriated from the profit
after tax (after offsetting accumulated losses from prior
years) as reported in their respective statutory financial
statements, before profit distributions to equity holders.
All statutory reserves are created for specific purposes.
A PRC company is required to appropriate an amount
of not less than 10% of statutory profits after income
tax to statutory surplus reserves, prior to distribution
of its post-tax profits of the current year. A company
may discontinue the contribution when the aggregate
sum of the statutory surplus reserve is more than 50%
of its registered capital. The statutory surplus reserves
shall only be used to make up losses of the entity,
to expand the entity’s operations, or to increase the
capital of the entity. In addition, the entity may make
further contribution to the discretional surplus reserve
using its post-tax profits in accordance with resolutions
of the board of directors.

30(c).Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve has been set up and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for
foreign currency translation as set out in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

30(d).Financial assets at FVOCI reserve

222 fzm%

Financial assets at FVOCI reserve comprises the
accumulated gains and losses arising on the change
in fair value of financial assets at FVOCI that have been
recognised in other comprehensive income.

BEIEIRBRR AR Fik 2023

30(a). HL 1t £ 45

RZBEZ=FR=ZF-_=—F+=H4
=+—H HEt@FEEEAKEAEH
MARIKEHEEEANQARMERAA
REBEREHEER ([EEH]) 2

MAEARIBRE PHR AR S E AN -

30(b). 75 E 1%

REDEEMERBRE  FEZMA
AR AR AELRFI D IRAT -
AREBESBEATYBHRERMER
RIBR R &R (R B EFEMRET
BER)EENE T EERETIRE
H-FTBEERELAREEBONM
BT -ABRAARDIKEERFE
KT8 m AT - BEETDRTE
REZEZEEFI0NNEGEEEAER
HEE BETRMBHEENEERE
H 5 E AN B 50% 85 - AN R R A E
IFEE - EFRBRERERNTE
WEREE BErxEREEENEMN
TRER N BRABRBES
*mﬁﬁ'ﬁ W B E T8 R F
WIS B -

HY 18 ‘ﬂmh}

B R fRE
HMNERHEHE RIS B HREME2
FrEi sioNE M B SN 2 2 5T BUR &
NV RBRE o

-~

0. B A FEFAEMEEH KR

MEREERRE
BAVFEFARMEE RSN SR
BERBERRABRaERER It
DEENAtE2EKEaBERNEZA
FEAAEEHEEc SREE
ZRFEEE -
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31. Other Cash Flow Information 1. HBEERER

31(a).Cash (used in) generated from operations 3@.&L& (FrTA) MBMIRE
2023 2022
—E=-= i = b
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
(Restated)
(&%)
Loss before tax bR AT E 18
— Continuing operation —HEKEEL (19,006) (8,679)
- Discontinued operation —BERIEEEER (8,068) 1,113
Depreciation e 34,566 39,618
Amortisation BiH 1,747 1,114
Bank interest income F B U A (1,096) (1,159)
Interest income from unlisted LM EEEFHF WA
corporate bonds (1,808) (1,571)
Interest income from amount FEU — 2B LB = 5 FUIA
due from an independent third party ~ F 8. U A (80) =
Dividend income B 24 A (186) (205)
Financial costs B 75 B AR 772 1,203
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEM&E
plant and equipment, net (Wzs) B518 - V558 (6) 467
Government grants BT 77 B (5,503) (4,381)
(Reversal of) Provision for FEMR (BE) B
write-down of inventories, net FRE (3,069) 1,007
Impairment losses on financial assets & REE N A NEE
and contract assets VRIEN R 7,535 290
Impairment losses on intangible B EEREBEEE
assets 14,671 -
Written off of property, plant and Y - R R
equipment 2,578 -
Gain on bargain purchase arising from U B 1 & A 7] 2
the acquisition of subsidiaries EAEI - (2,133)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBRAR Z WS (13,016) =
10,031 26,684
Changes in working capital: EEEEMES
Inventories EE 2,925 11,610
Contract assets, trade and bills BRHEE B REBEK
receivables FIE (17,474) 37,327
Prepayments, deposits and other FENRIE - e REMEK
receivables IR (7,966) (1,584)
Trade payables 2 5 R FIE (6,405) 2,222
Contract liabilities, other payables and & #) & & « HE b EN KA K
accruals et &M (1,364) 395
Cash (used in) generated from R (FrAR)ETBIRS
operations (20,253) 76,654
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HiRERER
Nh.EMEHELENRBEH K

31. Other Cash Flow Information (Continued) 31.
31(b).Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

Details of the changes in the Group’s liabilities from

financing activities are as follows:

AEEEERESOEFBLT

Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
RITER HESE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRT AR%®ETTT
For the year ended BE=-Z=-=
31 December 2023 TZA=+—BLEE
At beginning of the year REH 8,022 9,677 17,699
Net cash flows Re M
Repayments of bank borrowings & &SR 17 {& 7K (4,324) - (4,324)
Payment of principle element of X NHE&BARL LD
lease liabilities - (6,095) (6,095)
Interest paid B E (263) (509) (772)
Other non-cash movements HEMIERcEH)
Exchange difference e 5 =5 52 - 52
New leases e - 4,671 4,671
Interest expenses FERX 263 509 772
At the end of the year RER 3,750 8,253 12,003
For the year ended o —
31 December 2022 +ZA=+—HILFE
At beginning of the year REF 12,614 12,693 25,307
Net cash flows REMFE
Repayments of bank borrowings 1B &R 1T (&7 (5,175) - (5,175)
Payment of principle element of X NHE&BEARE LD
lease liabilities - (5,238) (5,238)
Interest paid ERHE (516) (687) (1,203)
Other non-cash movements HMIERcEH)
Exchange difference 5 =5 583 - 583
New leases FHE - 2,222 2,202
Interest expenses FERX 516 687 1,203
At the end of the year RER 8,022 9,677 17,699
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Year ended 31 December 2023 {2 —FE - =+ -H=+—HIFFF

32. Acquisition of a Subsidiary 32. WiE—REMEB LA

On 25 July 2022, Wanhai Big Data (the “Purchaser”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) with Regan
Shiye Group Co., Ltd.* (ERBEZEE B R 2 7) (the
“Vendor”) and Regan Financial Information (the “Target”)
(together, “All Parties”), pursuant to which Wanhai Big Data
conditionally agreed to acquire and the Vendor conditionally
agreed to sell 60% of the registered share capital of
the Target at a cash consideration of approximately
RMB7,032,000 (the “Acquisition”), which enable the Group
to diversify and expand its business. On 14 October 2022,
All Parties and Wanhai Jinyuan, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a supplemental agreement
(the “Supplemental Agreement”), pursuant to which, among
others, All Parties agreed to amend the Purchaser from
Wanhai Big Data to Wanhai Jinyuan.

On 3 November 2022, the Acquisition was completed and
Regan Financial Information has become a subsidiary of the
Group since then.

Regan Financial Information is principally engaged in
provision of Financial Application Platform and Platform
Maintenance Services in the PRC.

Details of the Acquisition are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 25 July 2022 and 8 November 2022.

The Acquisition constituted a business combination and
had been accounted for using the acquisition method under
HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business Combinations” as set out in
Note 2.

The Group has selected to measure the non-controlling

interest at its proportionate interest in the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the acquiree.

* For identification purpose only

RZEBEZZF+tAZ+HB  ARFH
ENBRAAESAKE(ES)EE
REXEEERARTERD) RERS
BES((BEARD(SHBIFAERINA])
FVEBEBEWZ ((ZBED) Bt 88
REBEBEKRGHRAEZWERE S A K4t
HEEHEBZEQ A FMERAN60% -
BERELH A ARET,032,0007T ([UEE
FH|) EFEAKSEENZTHLBER K
BrREK - R-_Z_—_F+A+mA"
FIERIHN A RARRIZENBARES
SR AT HE ((HRpEl) Bt (K
FRE)MEINFRERE T RE R
HBETRABEETIR

R-B-—F+—A=H WESEZK
ERCREEBHKAREBMNHBAR

EREMEEIBZETERERMASA
FERF & RFafER -

WEEENHFBINARFBHA T
= e S e Rl ) S
ANBRRAER -

WIEEEBK —EEB A CWKE2
FEERBEBM RS EAFE IR (K
FDIEBEF] THWEAEAR -

AREEZRRE(GREET ARAEE
kafEnkastt fIFt 8 RER -
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32. W iE — KB 2R @)
BA BRI B AR (B R P UK BB R B R P
BEENSE URAKERBRERY
SRR S

32. Acquisition of a Subsidiary (Continued)

The following summarises the consideration paid and the
amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as
well as the amount of non-controlling interest recognised at

the date of acquisition:

3 November
2022
+—HA=H
RMB’000
ARBEFIT
Consideration, at fair value: RE - BRFER
Cash paid BffRE 7,032
RMB’000
ARBFT
FrUsEEr] R & = K
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets ~ FT&AE A EHR
acquired and liabilities assumed: ERREHE
Property, plant and equipment W - WE REE 100
Intangible assets mEAE 12,647
Deferred tax assets RIET G & E 3,118
Cash and cash equivalents BehkReEEY 663
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b e W GRIE 5,316
Tax recoverable B U [ 57 18 141
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk E bR FIE (4,100)
Contract liabilities EHaE (2,610)
Total identifiable net assets, AR B E R EAE  BRATES
at fair value 15,275
Non-controlling interests e IR A (6,110)
Gain on bargain purchase arising fromthe WE—XWEB AR ELENZEEE K
acquisition of a subsidiary (2,133)
7,032
Net cash flow on acquisition of WiE— R B AR
a subsidiary: REREFHE
Net cash acquired from the subsidiary HHBARESMIE S FE 663
Cash consideration paid BEe (7,032)
(6,369)

* For identification purpose only
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e RRME @

32. Acquisition of a Subsidiary (Continued)

The total transaction costs of approximately RMB1,681,000
have been excluded from the consideration transferred and
included in administrative and other operating expenses for
the year 31 December 2022.

The directors of the Company have engaged an
independent valuer (the “Valuer”) to provide assistance
in determining the fair value of the assets and liabilities of
Regan Financial Information in accordance with HKFRS
18. The Valuer has reviewed the methodologies, the key
valuation parameters and business assumptions adopted.

The Group recognised a gain on bargain purchase of
approximately RMB2,133,000 arising from the Acquisition
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2022. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the gain on bargain purchase is mainly
attributable to the immediate cash realisation and the
Group’s capability in negotiating the terms of the Acquisition
in favour of the Group with the Vendor. The gain on bargain
purchase has been reassessed by the management of the
Group on the Acquisition date.

Since acquisition, the acquired business has contributed
approximately RMB2,734,000 and RMB44,000 to the
revenue and results of the Group, respectively, for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

If the business combinations effected during the year
ended 31 December 2022 had been taken place at the
beginning of the year, the revenue and net loss for the
Group would have been approximately RMB271,606,000
and RMB9,259,000, respectively, for the year ended 31
December 2022.

7L ﬁ 7L H//Lgt/x
32. WiE— BB AR @)

WEE X 5k A58 4 A R 1,681,000
TERREESEFHG  IREBEEZZ
T+ A=+ —HLEFEFTAITE
MEAMEBERSE -

ARREECEZRB I HER ([(HER])
B REBEE BV B RELERFE1IRETE
EREREENEERAANAFE-
HEMEBREARABOTE  BREE
S2HNEBRR -

AREBEREBEE_T__F+=-A
Z+—HALFENGRABRERA  BR
RUBEBEEENZEBEREZOAR
#2133,0007C °c A AR EER A HE
HEBBUS FEFEARNKESE
BEAEENEFATSA  BEHE
PN EHERMEE N - HZEEE WS

BEAREERWE B HBEETGE -

BREEEUR  TkEESALEE
BHE_T_—F+-_A=+—HLEE
rlia R EEER D RIH AR 2,734,000
TR AR 44,0007T °

WREBE—_T-_—_F+=-A=+—HI1E
FEBEBMEBAGHNEIE L A
AEBEHE_ZT_—_F+-_A=+—H
EEENRERFEESINAAR
#& 271,606,000 7T & A R % 9,259,000 7T ©

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2023 227



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e BTSRRI @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

33. FEM =
TR ITR R 6 HA P A SR 3R AR 25 ([ 9
IR AR B ERNBEE
ERARMEHEATOSHE -

33. Non-Controlling Interests

The following table shows the information of the Group’s
non-controlling interests (“NCI”) during reporting periods.
The summarised financial information represents amounts
before inter-company eliminations.

At 31 December 2023/Year ended 31 RZB-=F+=-A=+-—-8/
December 2023 or period from 1 January BE-E2_=%+=-RA=+-—H
2023 to the Disposal Date HtFEFR-_ZFE-_=5—HF—H
EEHEAHILEE
Chongqing Regan
Xinken Financial
Technology Information Total
EEGEEMNE ERMBER et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®Tx AR®Tx
Non-current assets FEMBEE 12,367 - 12,367
Current assets MENE E 31,275 - 31,275
Non-current liabilities EmEatE (1,176) - (1,176)
Current liabilities mENBE (5,951) - (5,951)
Net assets EEFE 36,515 - 36,515
NCI % IR ER % 30%
Carrying amounts of NCI FERERWIREE 10,954 10,954
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTr AR¥BTR AR¥T:R
Revenue and other income W as R E At I A 40,850 1,188 42,038
Expenses 53 (32,737) (26,419) (59,156)
Profit (Loss) and total Frm T (EE) &
comprehensive income (loss) 2EWE (BIB) 8%
for the year 8,113 (25,231) (17,118)
NCI % FEERER % 30% 40%
Profit (Loss) and total G 1 FF 20 B 2 P (LR A
comprehensive income (loss) (E8) REEksE
for the year attributable to NCI  (E518) &8 2,434 (10,093) (7,659)
Net cash flows used in: AT ®IBFTHA
REemEF5E
Operating activities T TES (4,523) (1,807) (6,330)
Investing activities BREEE (188) (9) (197)
Financing activities BEEE (3,351) - (3,351)
Net decrease in cash and cash BekReEEBYH
equivalents FR (8,062) (1,816) (9,878)
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Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

33. Non-Controlling Interests (Continued) 33. =R (3
At 31 December 2022/Year ended 31 R=—B==F+=A=+—-8/
December 2022 or period from the Acquisition BE-E2_—_+=-RA=+-—H

Date to 31 December 2022 LtEERWEBRPZE T -

tZA=+t—BHH

Chongging Regan
Xinken Financial
Technology Information Total
EEEEE SRMBER HBEr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT AREBTT
Non-current assets FERBEE 18,850 19,840 38,690
Current assets mEBEE 27,898 3,507 31,405
Non-current liabilities ERBELE (113) = (113
Current liabilities RBAE (6,232) (8,028) (14,260)
Net assets BEFE 40,403 15,319 55,722
NCI % TR AR % 30% 40%
Carrying amounts of NCI R ERMREE 12,121 6,127 18,248
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT ARETET
Revenue and other income W g Kz EL At g A 44,656 2,780 47,436
Expenses 53 (38,040) (2,736) (40,776)
Profit and total comprehensive FRRF R EER SRR
income for the year 6,616 44 6,660
NCI % IR AR % 30% 40%
Profit and total comprehensive F N FEVE R 4 2 R 1
income for the year attributable to & 2 U &= 48 58
NCI 1,985 17 2,002
Net cash flows from (used in): AT &IBFS (FTA)
REMEFR -
Operating activities 1 TEE 13,366 4,608 17,974
Investing activities KREES (1,266) (3,228) (4,494)
Financing activities BMEEE (175) - (175)
Net increase in cash and cash BehkReEEBYH
equivalents FIE AN 11,925 1,380 13,305
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Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

33. Non-Controlling Interests (Continued) 33. =R (@)
Notes: M EE -
)  The financial results for the Group’s NCI for the year ended 31 i) AEEFEEREENEBEE_S=_=F+=A
December 2023 included the share of financial results of Regan S+t HLEFENMEEERREBEHERR
Financial Information up to the Disposal Date (2022: Since the HEGERMBENNMBEE (S ZF
Acquisition Date). RS B ERE)
(i) During the year ended 31 December 2023, dividends of approximately i) MEBEZZZ=F+=-A=+—BLEFE"'E
RMB3,600,000 was paid to the NCI of Chongging Xinken Technology. MEEERRIEZFEREZRMKRELHA
During the year ended 31 December 2022, no dividend was paid to R#360000T- REE-ZE-_—_F+=-A
the NCI. =t+—BILFE  BHEAEERERR RS
34. Disposal of Subsidiaries 34. Wi — R B A =]
The following summarises the consideration and the LT ESEENEERABEREE
carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the Disposal BEMARERERE :

Group at the Disposal Date:

RMB’000
AR®T T

Property, plant and equipment Y - E KR 83
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b e W GRIE 703
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEFEY 227
Trade payables B 5B RIA (2,540)
Other payables H A E AT ROE (8,231)
Contract liabilities EHEE (191)
Amount due to Wanhai Big data R BE KB RIE (7,032)
Net liabilities at the Disposal Date REERBMNEETE (16,981)
Non-controlling interests FERER 3,965
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERTB AR M E (13,016)
Net cash flow on the Disposal HEZENBRESHRETFH
Net cash disposed by BHERESFRE (227)
Cash consideration received BUHRERE =

(227)
Details of the Disposal are set out in the Company’s HEFH ABHERARGBEBACZST
announcements dated 21 August 2023. Z=FNAZT—RZRE-.
** Represent amount less than RMB1,000 > (L F LA R A,0007THI50H
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Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

35. Related Party Transactions 3B.BHRIERS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed BRI ELRENBHRREMIL D TIEE

elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the MRS /ERIN REBBUATERS

Group had the following related parties transactions. R o

(a) Related party transactions () BABARS
Transactions between the group entities have been SEERC AN ZIEREE AR
eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed. FRE8E - R B ISR - MRS HIM -
During the reporting period, the Group had the AEBHEBABTETTUTERR
following significant transactions with related parties. S ARBNEERE BETNERQT
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, they EEEFEAEEREN N —K
are under normal commercial terms that are fair and P SERFRET SL ©

reasonable and in the best interests of the Group.

Name of the related company Nature of transaction 2023 2022
2L N REME —EZ=HF Sl
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Discontinued Operation BARIEREETR
Shanghai Regan Asset Management Financial Application Platform - 39
Co., Ltd.* (“Regan Asset and Platform Maintenance
Management”) (Note i) Services income
LBEREEEBEARAA TRUERTAE R
(TEREEER]) (FEi) B 4R RRTE WA
Shanghai Regan Insurance Brokers Financial Application Platform - 1,730
Co., Ltd.* (“Regan Insurance and Platform Maintenance
Brokers”) (Note i) Services income
FBERRBRELBRAA] TRUER T &R
(ITEREREL D) (D FaMEEREHBA
Note: B3
)  Regan Asset Management and Regan Insurance Brokers are i) EREEEBERERRBELAEER
the related company of the Group which are controlled by the Bt A BEREEE S EIEERR
non-controlling shareholders of Regan Financial Information. FHATEE o

* For identification purpose only
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Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

35. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, representing amounts paid to the Company’s
directors and certain of the highest paid employees as
disclosed in Note 8, is as follows:

35.

AR Z @

b) EEEEABEFHMH
AEETEEEAETMIECHA
ATBEERETESHIEE (R
SEE)MEE WmT -

2023 2022
—=E=-= Se ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
Continuing Operation BRESEER
Salaries, discretionary bonus, Fe o WIEEL 2R
allowances and other benefits-in-kind ~ E 4 & #4& 7 4,404 6,480
Contributions to defined contribution H R EHET B K
plans 130 130
4,534 6,610

The remuneration was based on the terms mutually
agreed between the Group and the related parties.

36. Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
financial assets at FVOCI, financial assets at amortised cost,
deposits and other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, other payables and accruals,
bank borrowings and lease liabilities. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise and maintain
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and bill
receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

* For identification purpose only
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Year ended 31 December 2023 #{ 2 —F — =4+ - H=+—HIFF&

36. Financial Risk Management Objectives  36. f I E M B B Z & BUX @)
and Policies (Continued)

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been SR TANEBFERERNNATIER :
applied to the line items below:

2023 2022
—=E-= ) T Lol
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
Financial assets tHMEE
Financial assets at FVOCI BRAFEFAHEMEER
Wa &R E E 8,658 9,840
Financial assets at amortised cost: BB HEKATENESREE
— Unlisted corporate bond at — BB N2
amortised cost FLEMRARIES 17,215 17,274
— Trade and bills receivables — B ZEWGRIE R ERERE 48,020 36,694
- Deposits and other receivables — & M E A U FRIA 7,505 3,106
— Pledged bank deposits —BERRITER - 1,696
— Cash and cash equivalents —-BekBEeEEY 60,696 111,502
142,094 180,112
Financial liabilities TREE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: ?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ’\]ﬁ@ﬁifﬁ :
- Trade payables —B 5B 14,876 23,821
— Other payables and accruals —H b ER S IE MIEETE A 9,004 13,418
— Bank borrowings —RITERK 3,750 8,022
- Lease liabilities —HERE 8,253 9,677
35,883 54,938
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments $ SEsRmITAEANTERARRTS
are market risk, (including price risk, interest rate risk and % (’E%FWJ—L g~ ) 2 & B K ONES R
foreign currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The ) EERRETBESRER - KA A
directors of the Company review and agree policies for BEgRE & H EEREBEZERE R
managing each of these risks and they are summarised s IRBE A an —F CAREBINERAE
below. The Group also monitors the market price risk arising SR T AMEANMISERERR -

from all financial instruments.
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36. Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (Continued)

(a)

234 m

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risks arising from
financial assets at FVOCI amounted to approximately
RMB8,658,000 (2022: RMB9,840,000). The
management of the Group manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risks and different return profiles. The sensitivity
analysis has been determined based on the exposure
to equity price risk. At the end of the reporting period, if
the fair values of the financial assets at FVOCI had been
10% (2022: 10%) higher/lower while all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s pre-tax result (net off
against the total other comprehensive result) would be
increased/decreased by approximately RMB866,000
(2022: increased/decreased RMB984,000) as a result
of changes in fair value of financial assets at FVOCI.
The Group’s sensitivity to equity price has not changed
significantly from the prior year.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the reasonably possible changes in the fair values
of the financial assets at FVOCI had occurred at the
end of the reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to equity price risk in existence at that
date. The stated changes represent the management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in the fair
value of the financial assets at FVOCI over the next
12 months after the reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for the year ended 31
December 2022.

In the opinion of the management of the Group, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the price risk
because the exposure at 31 December 2023 and 2022
does not reflect the exposure for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

BEIEIRBRR AR Fik 2023

F+-_HA=F+—HIFE
36. KA EER £

= & B (@)

(@) ERERE

AEBRBEAFEFAEMEEYK
=R E R E E X A R 8,658,0007T
(Z==—=% : AR%9,840,0007T)
EEERER ASEEREEEA
#HHETR AR KR E RO KR E
HE REBYEER SREDNT
ERERAERARBOERE - R
WEHKR WIEAFEFAEME
ARENeREENAFELA
TR10% (ZE = =F :10%) ' M
FrEEMEHRETE  AIXAEE
RIBRRIATEE (REEMEEELER
)RR A ET AR M2 E K
NEMEENAFELZS ML N,
A AR 866,000 (ZE ==
& 1806 AR 984,000 7T) ©
AEBEHRABRNBREREF
L EEREE -

BEBREINMKERREAFE
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36. Financial Risk Management Objectives  36. B i B b2 &1 B & R BUR (&)
and Policies (Continued)

(b) Interest rate risk

(b) =&k

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s cash at
bank net off bank borrowings with floating interest
rates of approximately RMB56,861,000 (2022:
RMB105,108,000) at 31 December 2023. The Group
currently does not have a policy to hedge against the
interest rate risk as the management of the Group
does not expect any significant interest rate risk at 31
December 2023 and 2022.

If interest rates had been 1% (2022:1%) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s pre-tax results would increase/decrease by
approximately RMB569,000 (2022: increase/decrease
RMB1,051,000) during the year ended 31 December
2023.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the beginning of the reporting period and
had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for financial instruments in existence at the end of
the reporting period. The stated changes represent
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the next
annual end of the reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for the year ended 31
December 2022.

In the opinion of the management of the Group,
the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent interest rate risk because the exposure at
31 December 2023 and 2022 does not reflect the
exposure during the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022.

In addition, the Group’s financial instruments measured
at amortised cost are considered not to materially
expose to fair value interest rate risk at 31 December
2023 and 2022.

AEERFEEHmMAENTSER
ST ER T -_=—F+_-_H=+—
BAEEREBITHRSINRZ SR
1783 H AN R #56,861,0007T (=
T —fF: AR#105,108,0007T)
B ASE B AT &Y R ER
SHHRE EALAEEEREES
RZBEZ=FR_ZF-__F+=H8
=t+—BXWETAEAFRERL -

REE-_ET-_=F+-_A=+—H
IHFE AR EAKTE1% (=
T_F 1%) MATE &R
BAE AIRNEENBRBATES
#5318 00,8 #9 A R 569,000 7T
(& BN/ BPARE
1,051,0007T) °

BT L8R E o TR B R A R
BENMEBVCLHELE TEE
ARRBREHRTENERTARN
TR - FTisE e ig BB E L
RET—FERESHPERBILHRA
MEBENEER ZOoMIEHE
=T = = — A = o e
B FR R EAE AT o

AEEERERE  SHKESTIL
FREZEMNERR  AAE=-FT
ZTE=EFERZZEZZFE+ZA=+—
HOEBRTTITRBHBEEZE==F
B _F+-_RA=+—HLHF
R

AN REBIREEK AT ENS
BMTAERABRN_ZE_=FK=F
T+ A=+ BTEABE
AAFEFERR -
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36. M EREERE

36. Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (Continued)

()

236 &=

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in
RMB, USD and HKS.

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities of the
Group are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the respective group entities
and therefore exposed to foreign currency risk. The
carrying amounts of those financial assets and financial
liabilities are analysed as follows:

Z N BUR (@)

(c) s pe

REENRSGEIZUARE ET
KABITEHE

AEEETEREERERBEMN
HHEEERNDEEEUINE
BitE AUtEEINERR - ZF
TRMEELEREBENKREED N
LN

2023 2022
—®'=-= e —
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARBTT
Assets (net against liabilities) BE(CFEHAE)
usD X 4,608 1,896
HK$ BT 103 102

At 31 December 2023, if the relevant financial
currency had weakened/strengthened by 5% (2022:
5%) against the USD with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s pre-tax results for the year
would have been approximately RMB230,000 lower/
higher (2022: RMB95,000 lower/higher), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange difference on the translation
of USD denominated contract assets, trade and bills
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and bank
borrowings.

At 31 December 2023, if the relevant financial currency
had weakened/strengthened by 5% (2022: 5%) against
the HK$ with all other variables held constant, the
Groups pre-tax results for the year would have been
approximately RMB5,000 (2022: RMB5,000) lower/
higher mainly as a result of foreign exchange difference
on the translation of HK$ denominated cash and cash
equivalents and other payables.

BEIEIRBRR AR Fik 2023
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36. Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (Continued)

(c)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to Group’s exposure to currency risk for
financial instruments in existence at that date, and that
all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. The stated changes in foreign currency
represent management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in foreign exchange rates over the
period until the next annual end of the reporting period.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

In the opinion of the management of the Group, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
foreign exchange risk because the exposure at
31 December 2023 and 2022 does not reflect the
exposure during the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets and contract
assets recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial position, which is net of impairment losses,
represents the Group’s exposure to credit risk without
taking into account the value of any collateral held or
other credit enhancements.

Contract assets, trade and bill receivables

The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy
third parties. The Group has policies in place to ensure
that credit terms are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history and the Group’s performs
periodic credit evaluations of its customers. The
Group limits its exposure to credit risk from contract
assets and trade and bill receivables by establishing
a maximum payment period of three months from
invoice date or respective maturity dates stating on
contracts.

36. M EREERE

(c)

= & R (@)

SN = B ()

Bra B E AN BRERS
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B=Z= = EEE SR ElN
ERER
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RIEEHMBRARNRERNEREE
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36. EEREREEEREE @

36. Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

Contract assets, trade and bill receivables
(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a
concentration of credit risk as approximately 37% and
87% (2022: 21% and 74%) of the contract assets was
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers, respectively, and approximately
66% and 89% (2022: 52% and 93%) of the total trade
and bill receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers, respectively.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure ECL which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all contract assets, trade and
bills receivables. The Group measures the ECL on a
combination of both individual and collective basis.

Contract assets, trade and bills receivables with known
insolvencies are assessed individually for impairment
allowances and are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
prepayment plan with the Group, and a failure to make
contractual payments.

ECL is also estimated by grouping the remaining
receivables based on shared credit risk characteristics
and collectively assessed for likelihood of recovery,
taking into account the nature of the customers, its
geographical location and its ageing category, and
applying the ECL rates to the respective gross carrying
amounts of the receivables.
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36. Financial Risk Management Objectives  36. B i B b2 &1 B & R BUR (&)

and Policies (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued) d) EERE @)

Contract assets, trade and bill receivables
(Continued)

The Group’s customer base consists of a wide
range of clients and the contract assets, trade
and bill receivables are categorised by common
risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in
accordance with the contractual terms. The contract
assets relate to unbilled services and have substantially
the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables
for the same types of contracts. The Group has
therefore concluded that the ECL rates for trade
receivables are a reasonable approximation of the
loss rates for the contract assets. The Group applies
a simplified approach in calculating ECL for contract
assets, trade and bill receivables and recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
to reflect the effects of existing market conditions as
well as forward looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables. There was no change in the estimation
techniques or significant assumptions made during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Considered no significant default history and no
forward-looking factors that give rise to significant
increase in credit risk on contract assets at 31
December 2023 and 2022, the management of the
Group estimates that the ECL for these balances was
insignificant, hence, the provision for loss allowances
of these balances was close to zero or no provision
was recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

36. Financial Risk Management Objectives  36. B E ke E 1 B Z & BUXR @)
and Policies (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued) d) EERE @)
Contract assets, trade and bill receivables BREE  BHREWBFIEKR
(Continued) eI R (&)
At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group BN SRR e e R
= o s =) o
recognised loss allowances of approximately =+—H $%/ﬁa%ﬁ§uﬁlm%
RMB131,000 on the trade and bill receivables. The RERREERERBEHARSE
=, AgmEE | E =
movement in the loss allowance for contract assets, 131,0007C « GRVEE - H 5 BUK
= - 12 2 s
trade and bill receivables is summarised below. AR B R R R S B AL
mE
2023 2022
—Z=-= =E==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AREET T
Trade and bill receivables B ZREN AR FEN S 15
At the beginning of the reporting RS H )
period 131 129
Increase in allowances BB E N - 2
At the end of the reporting period RS R 131 131
At 31 December 2023 and 2022, in the opinion of the RZE_=ZFR_F-_—_F+=A8
Company’s directors, there was no significant credit- =t+t—H AXRREERE B
impaired trade receivables. FEWRIB I I E REERE o
Impairment losses on contract assets, trade and bills EREE BZREKFEREKRE
receivables are presented as “impairment losses on BRREBERNGEEBETIES
financial assets and contract assets” in the consolidated [eRMEENREGREERERE] -
profit or loss. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is B —IAEWGRIEEERE - 2R
written off against the impairment allowance account BB ERRIENRERER S
for receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts WEH o S5 AT M SE A FRIE 1 5 BE 1A IR
previously written off are credited against the same line B BErAR—IER °
item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR RMET @
Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

36. Financial Risk Management Objectives  36. B i B b2 &1 B & R BUR (&)
and Policies (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued) d) EERE @)

Other financial assets at amortised costs

The Group’s other financial assets at amortised costs
included deposits and other receivables (included an
amount due from an independent third party and an
amount due from Wanhai Jinyuan), unlisted corporate
bonds at amortised cost, pledged bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents. The impairment loss
of other financial assets carried at amortised cost is
measured based on the 12-month ECL. The 12-month
ECL is the portion of lifetime ECL that results from
default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
However, when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be
based on the lifetime ECL.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group’s
management considered the credit risk of deposits
and other receivables, other than the amount due from
an independent third party and the amount due from
Wanhai Jinyuan, to be low as counterparties have a
strong capacity to meet their contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term. The Group has assessed
that the ECL for these deposits and other receivables
were immaterial under 12-month expected losses
method. Therefore, the provision for loss allowance
for these balances was close to zero and no provision
was recognised.

127 8 5 A AN 5] B B EL At <2 R
BE
AEBEZBHKAGTENEME F
BEBRBRERMEAMEUR G AR
W—2BIYE=TREREEESE
TIRFIA) « MEHA AT EMIEL
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AAEMEMEREENRBERRKXT
RE12EANEREESEE -
12@EANEMEEERT2HEN
FEERT RemTANENS
Al aefE SRS A AR 121A A A&
EHERD - AT BEEERRAF
REEBRERMNE  SREZHE
HIEEERELRME -

R-BE-_=FK_ZT-_—_F+_H
=t+—H FAEBEEEERAEGEN
MEMERZIE(TEEREK—E2E
N E=FHIAKREREESIRRIE)
MNEARRRE BARSHTER
BN EEBRNEITHEARAE
MRS RES - BIE12(E A T8 H
EEZ ASEBEFEHETREE
MEWRIENTERERAEEEER
BEE-FHi L EHRBOBERESE
BRT - TN BREREEE -

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2023 241



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

R SRR MEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 #{%2 —F — =4+ - H=+—HIFF/&

36. Financial Risk Management Objectives  36. B E ke E 1 B Z & BUXR @)
and Policies (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued) (d) ESERE k&)

Other financial assets at amortised costs
(Continued)

In assessing the ECL allowance for unlisted corporate
bond at amortised costs, the Group’s management
considered the probability of default, loss given default,
exposure at default and other adjustment factors. At 31
December 2023, the Group recognised loss allowance
of approximately RMB910,000 (2022: RMB591,000)
on unlisted corporate bond at amortised cost. The
movement in the loss allowances for the unlisted
corporate bond at amortised cost is summarised
below.

ZESHACAR D BR ) LAt 2 R
B E (%)

R A RBERATENIELTA
AIEHFMERERBREER X
CSEERECEFRENBME - ED
B EHRRMEMARERE-
R—ZE—_=F+=ZA=+—H"
AEBERZREHEKAYERANIEEL
MARBEHFERBEBEOAR
#0910,0007c (CE - —F: AR
591,0007T) ° IE ETH R A EH IR #
R AN EEREZSIBMRDT

2023 2022
—EBE-=F —_F-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Unlisted corporate bond at 1B 5K K5 R A
amortised cost FEE T2 A&
At the beginning of the reporting PR R A
period 591 272
Increase in allowances B IE N 309 560
Amount recovered BllEEEE - 272)
Exchange realignment B 5, 38 B 10 31
At the end of the reporting period REEER 910 591

In assessing the ECL allowance for the amount due
from an independent third party and the amount
due from Wanhai Jinyuan, the Group’s management
considered the probability of default, loss given default,
exposure at default and other adjustment factors
individually and specifically for these receivables.
At 31 December 2023, the Group recognised loss
allowances of approximately RMB194,000 (2022: Nil)
and RMB7,032,000 (2022: Nil), respectively, for the
amount due from an independent third party and the
amount due from Wanhai Jinyuan.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEERRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 #{ 2 —F — =4+ - H=+—HIFF&

36. Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

(e)

Other financial assets at amortised costs
(Continued)

The majority of the Group’s pledged bank deposits
and bank balances are deposited in major financial
institutions located in the PRC and in Hong Kong,
which are of high credit rating. The management of the
Group does not expect any losses arising from non-
performance by these counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the shorter and longer term.

At 31 December 2023, the Group held cash and
cash equivalents amounting to approximately
RMB60,696,000 (2022: RMB111,502,000), that are
expected to be readily available to generate cash
inflows for managing liquidity risk.

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of sources
including orderly realisation of receivables that the
Group considers appropriate and long-term financing
including long-term borrowings and lease liabilities are
also considered by the Group in its capital structuring.
The Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by
keeping sufficient bank and cash balances, committed
credit lines available and bank borrowings which
enable the Group to continue its business for the
foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2023, the Group had approximately
RMB4,447,000 (2022: RMB10,688,000) undrawn
banking facilities and the Group’s total drawn banking
facilities amounted to approximately RMB3,750,000
(2022: RMB8,022,000).

36. M EREERE

= & R (@)

(d) EEEE @)

T2 SH P AR D1 B O H b 2
BE ()
REBMALS EEARTERRE

THRBE/STFRURPEREE LK
BEEFENALSREE AL
BEEEBRMTERZEHTFIT
J& 40 EE A AR5 1R -

RENE < =k

AEENBRAERERRARK LA
HHRBESFR  UBRESE
ME IR T EEARNEER R RS

RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—H &K
SEHFEENRESRRSEEVHN A
AR #60,696,0007T (ZF ==
AR #111,502,0007T) * 78 27 A &
HEBRERANEEBREESRER

AEBBEEZERFHFTRBDES -

BRAFERAKERREENE
WEkEBEE (BRRBEE) -

MAREEREAZEBRETR TS
ZRHEERBE -AKEEEEBHE
RARWRITREBESER BEEAH
TRAEERLRRITEERERES
MEEME  UEAKERA R KK

RZE_=F+=—A=+—H : 4
EERERMBRTHRENAEARE
4447000 (ZEZZF : AR
10,688,0007T) * BIREAIERITRE
wEE 4y B AR 3,750,000 (=
——F: AR¥8,022,0007T) °

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2023 243



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e BTSRRI @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

36. Financial Risk Management Objectives  36. B E ke E 1 B Z & BUXR @)
and Policies (Continued)

(e) Liquidity risk (Continued) (e) REBESREM ()
The remaining undiscounted contractual maturity AEERBRERRNIFETESRE
profile of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities BERESRREIRE LR AIFR (RIE
at the end of the reporting period, based on the AEBELENSET BE) BanT

earliest date on which the Group is required to settle,
is summarised below.

Over Over
Less than 1 year 2 years
1 year or but within but within
on demand 2 years 5 years Total
D1
FERER 1E2F 2E5%F st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTRT AR®BTRT AR¥®TxR

At 31 December 2023 R=ZE==4

+=A=+—H

Trade payables g ZENFIE 14,876 - - 14,876
Other payables and ~ Efb B ZIE K&

accruals FEETE A 9,004 - - 9,004
Bank borrowings RITIE R (FF3ED

(Note i) 3,750 - - 3,750
Lease liabilities HEAE
— Principal portion — K& D 6,122 1,807 324 8,253
— Interest portion —FBEBD 259 60 3 322

34,011 1,867 327 36,205
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEERRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 & 7 — & — =

36. Financial Risk Management Objectives

and Policies (Continued)

(e) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Ft_A=+—HItFE

(e) REBESER @)

36. EEMREEEEREE @

Over Over
Less than 1 year 2 years
1 year or but within but within
on demand 2 years 5 years Total
D1 E
AR E R 15224 2E5F HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTET AREKTRT
At 31 December 2022 AR=-Z = —
+=—A=+—8
Trade payables =) ANE e 23,821 = = 23,821
Other payables and ~ E b & ZIE &
accruals FEt & F 13,418 - - 13,418
Bank borrowings RITE R (BT
(Note i) 8,022 - - 8,022
Lease liabilities HEAE
— Principal portion NG el 4,391 4,671 615 9,677
— Interest portion —FBEHD 390 152 11 553
50,042 4,823 626 55,491
Note it MizED: B T RS T ERAEEEER

The amounts repayable under a loan agreement that includes

a clause that gives the lender the unconditional right to call
the loan at any time are classified under the “on demand”
bracket. In this regard, bank borrowings of approximately
RMB3, 750,000 (2022: RMB8,022,000) as at the end of the
financial period have been so classified even though the
directors of the Company do not expect that the lender(s)

AIRERFE B E I B E R RIER
RIMRER] M-t s - R
REYIRITERAAREES,750,0007T (=
T-—F: AR¥8,022,0007T) B 01t
D REARRESTTAEHERA
ITEEENERER ML ZEENR
AR IR B S T A R R RIS

would exercise their rights to demand repayment and thus

these borrowings would be repaid according to the following
schedule as set out in the loan agreements:

2023 2022
—g=-= =t s
Principal Interest Principal Interest
Portion Portion Portion Portion
FI 232 xRS MEE S e HH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®TF T ARETT ARETT
Interest-bearing borrowings FFEER
Within 1 year 1FR 500 173 4,272 272
Over 1 year but within 2 years 1524%F 500 148 500 173
Over 2 years but within 5 years 2E5EF 1,500 297 1,500 371
Over 5 years 5 E 1,250 79 1,750 154
3,750 697 8,022 970
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Py

g =

PSS EL R E )

Year ended 31 December 2023 #{%2 —F — =4+ - H=+—HIFF/&

37. Capital Management

246 ==

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the total debt to
total capital ratio. Total debt and total capital represent total
borrowings and total equity, as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet. The total debt to total capital ratios at 31

37.

EAXERE

AEEEREANBREEREAKER
SEREAERBELZBNEN  UAK
REREHK  RASFRERMCHDHERE
EI’M'“'J I%?%E*&E’Jézli 21 LARE

RERIABEARE AKEXEH
ERABRRENORESE RRRED
BARHEEENRIERETS -

AEBEZRRBRBEEHRERN L RKEEREE
K-BEBERBERADAEEEEER
BRAINTHEBEERBEZ RNZ2F
__iﬁ_g::¢+_ﬁi+—aﬂ

December 2023 and 2022 were as follows: BEEHBRERLENT
2023 2022
—==-= =mos
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREET T
Total borrowings IR
— Bank borrowings —RITER 3,750 8,022
— Lease liabilities —HEBE 8,253 9,677
12,003 17,699
Total equity HarEL 273,495 306,271
Total debt to total capital ratio BEEHRERLE 4% 6%
The decrease in total debt to total capital ratio from BEBHBEARALER T _F+=
approximately 6% at 31 December 2022 to approximately A=+—B#6% BRI E_T=_=F+=
4% at 31 December 2023 was mainly due to repayment of A=+—H#%4% DHEEHREE_Z
bank borrowings and lease liabilities for the year ended 31 ==4E ‘f’ A=+ —HIEFEEERIT
j:l:

December 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR RMET @
Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

38. Fair Value Measurements

The following presents the assets and liabilities measured
at fair value or required to disclose their fair value in these
financial statements on a recurring basis across the three
levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13,
Fair Value Measurement, with the fair value measurement
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the entire measurement. The levels of
inputs are defined as follows:

(a)

38. AP &

Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the

Group can access at the measurement date;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly;

Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset

or liability.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair

value
At 31 December 2023

AR ARIREBEFEVHRELASE
1BRAFEAEETREZAFEER=E
BAA - BAFEFERBARZSENE
BRARKEFUHEERBEEQAFENE
EREE MERLAFEHAEREHE
BHrEMEBEANREEGAZEE
TP - BABEBNRRERWT :

pal]

9

s F—HR(RFEH) : AERERFTE
FHARSHRAEELABNGR
M5 L2 RE CRERE) :

s FH-KRE-EBAMEBREBREMN
S REEXBENERIRERE
SRS EABE

e FE=ZR(REHH): BEERAEDN
TR BRB AR

() RAFEFENEERERE
R-EBE-_=F+=-"A=1—

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-8 -8 EZ® b
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR AR®T R
Assets measured at fair value BATEFENEE
Financial assets at FVOC! BATEFAEMZE
hatsREE
- Listed tracing securities A Fob 8,658 - - 8,658
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e BTSRRI @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

38. Fair Value Measurements (Continued) 38. X F{EFE @)
(a) Assets and liabilities measured at fair () RAFEFENEERAE
value (Continued) (#&)
At 31 December 2022 RZEBZZF+_A=+—
H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Et E-R F=R @3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETT ARETTL ARETTL
Assets measured at fair value BATEGENEE
Financial assets at FVOC BATEHAEMZE
- Listed trading securities -InR5ES 9,840 - = 9,840
There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 BE_Z_=FR-_F-_—F+=
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. AR=+—BLFE - — k=
BEWEER -
(b) Assets and liabilities with fair value (b) BEHEBEAFEEXREAFE
disclosure, but not measured at fair value FTENEEREE
All other financial assets and liabilities are carried at FBEEMEREERABEHNER
amounts not materially different from their fair values at REBREHARNAFEIEERE
the end of each reporting period. ENSEEE -
39. Commitments 39. &
Capital commitments BAREE
At the end of the reporting period, capital commitments not RIBEBER RERGREWBERRBER
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were ZEREAENT
as follows:
2023 2022
—E-= g
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Contracted but not provided for ERIAERBHENWEYE -
acquisition of property, plant and TR 5= K 5% 1
equipment 1,306 3,207
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR RMET @
Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —F — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

40. 7= 1 B) #Y B #5518 0 Rk

REBEEBRBGD  ARAFBHRRE
MEFBZEBH25IMT

40. Statement of Financial Position of the
Company
Pursuant to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the
statement of financial position of the Company and the
movements in its reserves are set out below:

2023 2022
—E—= i = i
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M5 ARET T ARETF T
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B A RIRE 164,532 162,181
Financial assets at FVOCI BAVEFAEMEZE
WM S RE E 18 8,658 9,840
Amount due from an independent B —E2BLE=7
third party SRIE 17 4,357 =
177,547 172,021
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TEfRIE - EZe Rk
receivables E fth fE W FR T8 2,671 245
Financial assets at amortised cost B AT E R
SREE 20 17,215 17,274
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFEUR BT B8~ B W) FRIR 33,846 45,804
Cash and cash equivalents BeMRSEEY 9,010 6,204
62,742 69,527
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals FERT & F 2,710 2,596
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE A5 B B A B R IE 25,222 24,484
27,932 27,080
Net current assets REBEEFE 34,810 42,447
Total assets less current liabilities BAEERRBEE 212,357 214,468
Share capital A& A 29 2,250 2,250
Share premium I 17 @ B 29 98,676 98,676
Other reserves E b 40(a) 111,431 113,542
TOTAL EQUITY B 212,357 214,468
This statement of financial position was approved and AP BERARBESERN S _MFE=
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March AZ+tEA#ERBTEREMG  WHUT
2024 and signed on its behalf by ATREKEE
Li Hao Xu Shizhen
5 it E
Director Director
o EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MR RMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 —E — =4+ -HA=+—HIFE

40. Statement of Financial Position of the

Company (Continued)

40. A A 7] B B 7 AR R 3R ()

40(a).Movement of the other reserves 40(a) Hftt B2 B
Exchange Capital Financial  Accumulated Total
reserve reserve assets losses
(Note) at FVOCl
(Note 30(d))
BRTEA
Eth2EhE
EXfEE  MepEE
B 5 (s (MEEs0) 2HEE b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  AREFT  ARETRT  ARETRT  ARETR
A1 January 2022 W-B-—%-F—R (13.909) 155,404 (5,173) (35,111) 101,217
Loss for the year FRER - - - (6,839) (6,839)
Exchange differences EHERE 18,491 = = = 18,491
Financial assets at FVOCI BATEGT AL
EYENERHEE
- Changes in fair value taken to - —&T A& #)
reserves NTEZY - - 673 - 673
At 31 December 2022 RZB_—F
+-B=+-H 4,588 155,404 (4,500) (41,950) 113,542
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEERRMEE @)

Year ended 31 December 2023 #{ 2 —F — =4+ - H=+—HIFF&

40. Statement of Financial Position of the 40. 7~ A B B9 B FE AR R 3R (@)
Company (Continued)
40(a). Movement of the other reserves (Continued) 40(a). H b fE B 2 B) (40
Exchange Capital Financial ~ Accumulated Total
reserve reserve assets losses
(Note) at FvOCl
(Note 30(d))
BRATETA
A2 EbE
EAfE  HemEE
EiffE (Wa)  (MEE3od) 2 FR -
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  AR®Tn  AR®TR  AR®TR  AR%T#n
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-=%-A-H 4,588 155,404 (4,500) (41,950) 113,542
Loss for the year FREE - - - (3,873) (3,873)
Exchange differences EHEZR 3,079 - - - 3,079
Financial assets at FVOCI BLTEFAEM
FENGNERAE
- Changes in fair value taken to - —&T A& #)
reserves NEEES - - (1,317) - (1,317)
At 31 December 2023 R=B==%
+=A=+- 7,667 155,404 (5817) (45,823) 111,431

Note: The capital reserve of the Company represents the aggregated
net asset values of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company

pursuant to the Reorganisation.

41. Events after the Reporting Period

Subsequent to 31 December 2023, save as disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the

Group has no significant subsequent events.

41. &

NEEE

M ARBMERFERERRRREBEEAR
BB A R R A EFE -

RIBE_=F+"_A=+—RH#%& K&

B BmREMMBT AEEEIN

B EERKEEE -

ZNS

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2023 251



FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LB

Results ¥E

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1t-HL%EE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Bz T B4 _T-TF _TNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARETT AR®ETR

(Restated)
(FE7I)
From continuing operation REFECEEY
Revenue g 264,457 260,514 353,896 246,531 284,588
Cost of sales HEMAR (247,713)  (232,389)  (299,916)  (196,123)  (190,560)
Gross profit ER 16,744 28,125 53,980 50,408 94,028
(Loss) Profit before tax BRELAT (B518) B A (19,006) (8,679) 12,325 13,683 35,395
(Loss) Profit for the year attributable to &A1 8B A E{EER
owners of the Company (B18) &7 (21,683) (11,239) 7,241 11,736 27,710
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
As at 31 December
R+=A=1+-H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—EZ=F Tz ZEZ-Ff ZZZTF ZEZ-NF
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT AREBTT ARETT ARETT AR®ETR
Non-current assets ERBEE 147,506 183,435 192,980 157,894 122,155
Current assets REEE 193,308 227,985 208,472 226,413 232,299
Total assets AERE 340,814 411,420 401,452 384,307 354,454
Total equity RmEE 273,495 306,271 297,361 291,931 278,673
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 13,955 21,418 25,659 19,815 16,902
Current liabilities MEEE 53,364 83,731 77,932 72,561 58,879
Total liabilities AERE 67,319 105,149 103,591 92,376 75,781
Total equity and liabilities EnkaELEH 340,814 411,420 401,452 384,307 354,454

The financial figures for each of the four years ended 31 #HE-ZZTE-_—_F+-_A=+—HINEFE
December 2022 as at the respective year-end were extracted RZEKEHBEERNFEEETI D HE
from the published audited financial statements of the Group, as  $(fE AL EE I EEXT ERE - TE
restated, where applicable. BRABRT FAEMR -

The summary above does not form part of the audited  FiiiiBVWIEREZRGATHHRER—D o
consolidated financial statements.
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